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P-ROGCGEEDI-NGS
(9:29 a.m)
CHAIR MLLER. Good norning. Very

nice to see everyone here. W've been really

excited. | think | can speak for Ann and nme when
| say that about having this hearing. | am Deb
MIller. | amserving as the Acting Chair at the
Surface Transportation Board. | think many of
you wi Il know ny fell ow comm ssioner, Ann
Begeman, who is up here with ne today. | want to
thank all of the panelists who will be

participating in this hearing. W really do
recogni ze and realize you have travel issues, the
time and energy it takes to get all of your

materi als prepared, can be a very big lift and we
know t hat and appreciate it. | think we have

| mportant policy issues before the Board and the
only way we can make really val uabl e i nf or nmed
decisions is by hearing what you have to say and
havi ng the opportunity to engage and so we're
really pleased to have this chance today.

As |'m sure many of you know, being
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active watchers of issues before the Surface
Transportati on Board, we're having anot her
hearing in July on the issue of revenue adequacy.
| could inmagine that when we announce this
heari ng and the hearing on revenue adequacy,

t here nmay have been coll ective groans that went
up fromthe community. In fact, | think I m ght
have heard a few even sitting in ny office. |
know in the past there have been tines when the
Board has started proceedi ngs, held hearings and
t hen our stakeholders, after waiting patiently,
saw the Board do nothing. | want to assure you,
that is certainly not our intention today. |
certainly viewthis hearing as a neans to an end
and that end would be a resolution of this
proceeding. But it's not just this proceeding
that the Board is |likely to be | ooking at.

A nunber of the proceedi ngs that have
been initiated at the Board and are currently
open as well as the issues we'll be | ooking at
today, have a lot that is in common. | think

when we want to | ook at these proceedi ngs, which

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

10

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

woul d i nclude issues |ike exenpt conmodities,

reci procal switching, grain rates and the revenue
adequacy issue we'll be exploring in July, that
because of the common issues that they share, we
want to think about all of these issues together
and jointly.

It would be ny hope, as many of you
may have heard nme say, that we can cone out of
this sumrer's hearings |ooking at all of those
| ssues together and conme back with a
conpr ehensi ve package of approaches that w |
make sense for how the Board noves forward in the
future on a nunber of issues. It's too early, of
course, to say what the Board will do but what |
can tell you is that |'ve got sone ideas; | know
our staff has sone ideas and |I'm confident that
Vi ce Chai rman Begenan has sone ideas as well.

So, we may find that in the next few
nonths we'll be | ooking at making significant
changes to our processes and | ooking at a | ot of
Board refornms. Perhaps what we'll find is that

things are going pretty well based on what we're
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heari ng from our stakehol ders and | earning
t hrough the pl eadings you filed and the testinony
we'l |l be hearing and perhaps all we need to do is
make a few tweaks or do nothing. But one way or
another, what | want to be sure is, is that we
have a resolution to the issues that are before
t he Board.

So, ny goal today for this hearing,
for nyself at least, is to beconme nmuch nore
know edgeabl e on these issues and to have a mnuch
better understanding at the end of the day about
how our rate processes apply to grain shipnents.
What those issues are both fromthe perspective
of those of you who deal in the agricultural
i ndustry as well as those of you who are in the
railroad industry. In nmy year at the Board, |'ve
had many opportunities to neet and engage with
agricul tural shippers and based on those
conversations, | certainly understand how
i mportant consistent, reliable rail service is at
a fair price in order for those businesses to

flourish. But it's also inportant to hear from

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

12

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

the railroads and understand the issues from
their perspective as well.

W all know that there are chall enges
dealing with the grain markets and it's not
necessarily easy to be the one who is serving
those narkets either. Certainly, since the
passage of Staggers, when we saw a railroad
i ndustry literally on the verge of coll apse,
going to one that's strong and heal t hy today,
we're all very vested in ensuring that the
continues to be a strong and thriving railroad
i ndustry. Still, it's clear fromthe
conversations that we have with grain shippers
fromthe neetings we have in our offices fromthe
things that are filed before us, that many grain
shi ppers do not feel they have fully received the
benefits of Staggers and have concerns and so
that's why we're here today. |'mcurious to hear
nore and will be listening very attentively and
Vi ce Chai rman Begenan, would you like to make a
st at enent ?

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN:. Thank you Deb.

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

13

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

14

"1l be relatively brief. First, | want to
certainly thank the Acting Chairman for hol ding
this hearing today and | welcone all of the
wi t nesses who have taken the time and effort to
join us today and give us their views on what |
consider to be areally, really inportant issue.

The AG community has had sone deep
frustrations with the agency's rate methodol ogi es
since they were first created. Despite the
efforts that the Board has taken to establish a
process for small cases as Congress directed, we
hear the same nessage that our nethodol ogies,
even the nost sinplified 3B nmethodol ogy, is
unusabl e for a grain shipper. W heard that
nmessage yet again during the rate reformrule
maki ng proceeding fromthe National Gain and
Feed Association and the Alliance for Rai
Conpetition, anong ot hers.

| really appreciate that the forner
chairman, Dan Elliott, |'mnot sure if he's here
yet, | think he was going to join us --- yes, he

is here. Hello Dan. He agreed that we coul d not
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i gnore these inportant stakehol ders' concerns and
we really need to explore what nore the Board can
do to fulfill its statutory obligation.

The whol e purpose, at |east certainly
ny purpose, isn't to debate rates. W already
know t he perspectives. The shippers think rates
are high and we'll hear fromthe industry that
they're not too high. But ny goal is to fulfil
the statutory mandate to ensure that there is a
process here that every shi pper has access to in
order to have their rate judged fairly and
tinmely.

So again, | also want to thank the
Acting Chairman for making this issue her very
first to explore during the hearing process. |

think it sends a really good signal to

st akehol ders, it certainly does to ne, and | | ook
forward to the hearing. | will probably have a
few questions during the hearing, | guess that's

why we're here. And just one nore final comrent.
In preparation for a hearing like

this, alot of work goes intoit. | know that
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the Board staff put a lot of work into it and
there are a couple of unsung heroes around this
agency. A fewthat | see in the audience, Mke
Sm th, Douglas Plesey, Frank O Connor, who really
have such a handl e on the AG conponent of what
goes on with rail service, and | just want to
publicly thank you for your service to the Board
and to the public. Thank you.

CHAIR M LLER: Thank you very much,
Ann, and thank you for thinking to call out
staff. It certainly is true, getting ready for a
hearing like this, as |'msure in your worlds,
it's been very hectic. It certainly has been in
ours and | do want to say Dan Elliott, former
chai rman here and perhaps soon to be chairmn
again, Dan, if you could stand up. 1'mglad you
could be here today. Cone on. Thank you for
coming. | think it's really great you have tine
in your schedule to be able to be here. It wll
be inmportant to hear the issues.

Now, before we get started with the

testinony, let me do kind of the standard

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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procedural points so everybody is kind of
prepared. | want those who will be testifying to
know t hat we have the lights up here. Your
testinmony is tinmed. Everybody has been sort of
assigned roughly a tinme, generally what you
requested, and | know it can be very difficult

but we'd |ike people as best as possible to stay
within their timeframe. W have a long |ist of
those who will be testifying today.

Just so you know, what's going to
happen is the yellow light will go on when you
have a minute |eft in your testinony and when you
see the red light, that's going to be a signal to
you that your tine has expired. W would ask
that you nove as quickly as you can to wap up
your testinmony and if not quickly enough, then
"1l push the button that sends a mld electrical
shock to your seat. No, I'mjust kidding. No
el ectrical shocks in the room But, at any rate,
we ask that you be as m ndful as you can be in
the thick of giving your testinony. So a couple

of things. |If you' re scheduled to speak, please
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be sure that you've checked in with the clerk who
is at the front of the room | want to rem nd
speakers, as I'mtrying to rem nd nyself to speak
clearly into the m crophone. Not only does it
nmake a difference in terns of the ability of all
of those in the roomto hear what you're saying
but we are recording this and so we want to be
sure we capture all of your words because we know
how good and interesting they're all going to be
and then for those who are both with us today as
wel | as those who might be watching. W w il be
placing this hearing on the STB website a few
days within the close of this hearing.

In the unlikely event that we have a
fire alarmor there are other events requiring
evacuation, we ask that everybody proceed to
t hese doors in the back of the roomand then exit
this building through the front doors that you
canme through. There are specific instructions
posted at the back of the roomfor assenbly and
notification should we have any issues |like that

and of course, as we would often do, we rem nd
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everyone if you haven't already done it, to
pl ease turn your cell phone off which is a good
rem nder to nme because | don't think |I've turned
ny cell phone off yet so I'll do that here in
just a mnute.

| want to remnd all of the parties,
we're going to be leaving this proceedi ng open
for fourteen days after the conclusion of the
hearing. |If there are additional pieces of
i nformation you didn't have a chance to provide
or you realized later you wi shed you woul d have,
you' || have an opportunity to do that. |If you
have rebuttal information for things you hear
t oday, you're welconmed to provide that as well.

| want to say one final thing before
| turn it over to our first wtness, we weren't
able to get it all done today, but for those of
you who have regularly participated at the Board,
| want you to know that we have sone inprovenents
comng that we're very excited about. Hopefully,
i f nothing goes wong, the next tinme you cone

here for a hearing, there will in fact, be wfi
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available in this room W're |ooking at
i mprovi ng and enl argi ng our screens. | don't
know about you all, | just know when I'min this
room they are sinply not big enough for ne to
see the materials that's on them So hopefully,
for any of you who are back for our revenue
adequacy hearing, you'll see sone inprovenents in
the hearing roomand we're very excited about it.
W're going to get started now. |'m
very pleased that we have with us today Dr.
Ri chard Schmal ensee who is Dean Eneritus fromthe
M T Sl oan School of Managenent. He has j ust
conpl eted chairing a policy study for the
Transportati on Research Board that has to do with
the STB, how we regulate in the rail industry.
Dr. Schnal ensee, please cone to the table and
t hank you for being here.
DR. SCHVALENSEE: Thank you Madam
Chai rman for the opportunity to testify this
norning. | think we will try to set up sone
slides. 1'Il be reporting on sone of the

results, the findings and recommendati ons of a
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study that a nunber of us have just conpleted for
the TRB, an arm of the National Academ es of
Sci ence, Engi neering and Medicine. The study was
formally rel eased twelve mnutes ago. |It's
avai l abl e on the National Acadeny's website and
there are summary descriptions at the back of the
room

This study, there we go, was requested
by Congress in 2005, funded in 2013 and conpl et ed
as we said just a few mnutes ago. W were asked
to tal k about rate and service trends post-
St aggers, particularly since 2000 to |ook at the
performance of the regulatory reginme and to make
recomrendations for the future role of STB. [|I'm
going to focus on the |ast of these just in the
i nterest of being relevant to this hearing. The
study process is famliar to those who follow TRB
studies. W were briefed by |ots of people. W
reviewed the literature. W did an unusual
amount for one of these commttees of statistical
anal ysis of the waybill data, the carl oad waybill

sanpl e and ot her data and, of course, we
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del i ber at ed.

One of the key findings, as | said we
were asked to tal k about events post-Staggers and
| guess | would sunmmarize our findings in that
respect by saying that this is just not the sane
i ndustry in al nost any respect that confronted
the authors of Staggers. It was being bailed out.
It was financial shaky. | think many observers,
particul arly many economni sts, thought that when
regul ati on was rel axed, prices would, of course,
rise since you had financially distressed firns.
In fact, as everyone knows, prices fell
dramatically particularly over the two decades
after Staggers because | CC regul ati on had
restricted the industry's ability to innovate.

It restricted its ability to consolidate traffic,
to negotiate contracts, to match up with shipper
needs and on and on. So the industry becanme nuch
nore efficient.

Wil e rates have risen recently, they
are still below the levels of the 1980's. This

slide nentions one change post 2000 that | want
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to enphasize that's particularly relevant to
today's hearing. The use of contract carriage of
non- exenpt commodities has risen sharply since
t he year 2000. 2012 was the | atest year for
whi ch we have data and a lot of that has to do
with coal. |If you look on the left, that pie
chart shows that in 2000, coal accounted for just
about half of the ton-mles noving under tariff.
By 2012, coal's use of ton-mles of coal under
tariff went fromabout half of all coal ton mles
to just about 5 percent. So coal traffic shifted
rat her dramatically over this relatively short
period, fromtariff to contract. That did not
happen, for what we have there is the total of
grain, oil seeds and food and kindred. It didn't
happen. About 70 percent of that traffic by ton-
m | es nmoved under tariff in 2000, noved under
tariff in 2012.

Thus, this hearing is particularly
rel evant because when one considers the
reasonability of tariff rates, one is

i ncreasi ngly considering the reasonability of
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rates charged to grain, oil seeds and the

shi ppers of food. So, | want to focus on the
rate relief process and our findings and
recommendati ons with the background that we're
not thinking nmuch about coal anynore. Really, we
are thinking about the particular characteristics
of these other shippers, grain, oil seeds and

f ood.

The current process, as | think
everyone in this roomknows, has three steps.
There is the initial screen based on the
rel ati onship of the rate charged, the tariff rate
posted to variable costs as deterni ned by the
uniformrail costing systemuniversally referred
to as URCS. |If a rate exceeds that 180 percent
threshol d, the next step in the process is an
i nqui ry about whether the market involved is
dom nated by the carrier at issue. Assum ng that
hurdle is cleared, there then becones an inquiry
i nto the reasonabl eness of the rate using either
the stand al one costs process, the first process

devised or the sinplified SAC or the three
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benchmar k processes.
It's inmportant here to note that our
commttee, as | think nost people retain the
obj ectives of Staggers which is to have an
i ndustry with adequate revenue. That is to say
not to treat it as a public utility but to treat
it as an industry governed by the market pl ace.
But also to nake sure that we respect the
St aggers goal of protecting shippers agai nst
unreasonabl e rates, particularly in settings
where those rates are driven by market dom nance.
Qur first finding relates to this
first step in the process, the 180 percent of
variabl e cost test. |If you read our report, this
i s perhaps the point on which the committee felt
nost strongly that the URC systemattenpts to
estimte sonething that is not defined as a
matter of econom cs and thus produces inevitably
estimates that are arbitrary and unreliable.
Costs are omtted, railroads points out that the
cost of bearing the risk of shipping hazardous

chem cals don't show up on their incone
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statenments and thus don't show up in URCS and
it's not a surprise that many hazardous chem cal s
nove at rates above 180 percent of URCS.
Determ ning what's fixed and what's variabl e and
what fraction of a |oconotive is variable and
what fraction is fixed is essentially arbitrary.
Al l ocating commobn costs anong the traffic
involved is inherently arbitrary. W have plenty
of exanpl es of that.

There are odd features that go beyond
arbitrariness as that second set of bullets
i ndicates. Sone kinds of traffic, particularly
short haul traffic have rates systematically
above this threshold, above 180 percent of URCS
vari abl e cost and 20 to 25 percent of traffic
year in and year out noves at rates that the
system says are bel ow vari able costs. That, of
course, doesn't make any sense.

If you take it literally, that neans
that railroads are noving 20 to 25 percent of
their traffic in an out of pocket |oss. The key

part that we would stress is this can't be fixed
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in the sense that you can't reformthe procedure
of deciding what's fixed and what is variable and
al l ocating costs anong el enments of traffic

wi t hout producing an arbitrary outcone.

Now, to step back, it's not hard to
see why when Staggers was passed, the authors
want ed sone threshold to determ ne the
eligibility of shippers to challenge rates and
this was, you know, you could do it and if | were
sitting in 1980, it's not clear, | would have
done anything different. But it's not 1980. W
now have plenty of rates that are determ ned
under conpetitive conditions and those rates, we
submt, can be used as a benchmark and those
rates as a benchmark make nore econom c sense
than essentially arbitrary estimates of variable
costs and I will conme back in a nonent to how we
m ght do that. The second finding relates to the
second step in the current process and that is
t he mar ket dom nance hearing or the market
dom nance assessnent.

Now, we understand why the Board has
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excl uded evi dence on product and geographic
substitute ability. That's conplicated evidence.
But of course, excluding a category of evidence
t hat suggests market dom nance is not present is
clearly going to bias decisions. It just is an
econonmic or a logical nmatter. That evidence can
be difficult to process, of course, but |'ve done
a fair anount of anti-trust work over the years
and one observes the Departnent of Justice and
t he Federal Trade Conm ssion dealing with
evi dence of that conplexity routinely and sinply
in informal proceedings. |In quasi-judicial or
judicial proceedings, of course, evidence of this
conplexity is hard to deal with. In informal
proceedi ngs, not that difficult. Tinme limts, we
suggest, ought to replace exclusion of categories
of evi dence.

Sorry, | went past one. All right.
| need to go back. Excuse ne. Manual
intervention. The third step in the process is
ei ther the standal one cost test or one of the

sinplified procedures introduced later. Qur
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comm ttee suggested, concluded, found that those
shoul d be replaced. It's inportant to understand
that given the Staggers Act's enabling of shipper
specific contracts, railroads and shi ppers have
every incentive to nove all traffic that can be
profitably noved so that you don't have here the
sort of classic nonopoly |oss problemthat you
have in regulating electric power or tel ephone
that gee, if the price is too high, there will be
too little volume. There is not that |oss
probl em

The regul atory issue here seened to us
to be inherently about fairness. And the
st andal one cost tests enbodi es one notion of
fairness that if |I'm paying nore than the
st andal one costs then |I' m subsidi zi ng sonebody
el se under public utility regulation. The
st andal one cost test cones out of public utility
regulation. It comes out of tel ecomdebates in
fact in the 70's and conmes out of a concern that
prices to high encourage inefficient entry not as

we understand it a live issue in rail today.
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It seemed to us that the sinplified
procedure, and the fact which the slide doesn't
state but everyone knows, well it sort of does,
that this SAC procedure has really not been
useabl e by small shippers particularly by grain
shi ppers that ship to nultiple destinations.
Maybe one reason why there is |l ess contracting
for those shippers but in any case the SAC
procedure, we were told, about five mllion
dollars a case is not useable by small shippers.
The sinplified procedures are sinpler but they
make use of URCS and if that's fundanental ly
flawed, sinplifying by maki ng nore use of a
fundanental ly flawed neasuring stick is not, we
submt, a nove in the right direction.

So |l et me say what we suggest be done
instead and | will preface this by saying al nost
everything |I'mabout to describe al nost certainly
required | egislative change, which is good news
or bad news dependi ng on your point of view but
our task was not to think about what's feasible

but to think about what should be done. So we
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proposed using the conpetitively deterni ned rates
that | nmentioned a few nonents ago as benchmarks.
The report describes how we do that but the
fundanmental notion again, is a fairness notion
that it ought to be the case that a shipper in a
mar ket dom nated by a single railroad shoul dn't
have to pay a rate that is too far out of |ine
with rates paid by shippers in conpetitive

mar kets for simlar shipnents.

So, we can |look at statistically, we
can nodel the determ nation of rates in
conpetitive markets as a function of shipnent
characteristics. W can then ask what does that
nodel predict for rates in non-conpetitive
mar ket s and what that graph shows for farm
products is it happens, given our data, the
ratios of actual rates in non-conpetitive markets
to predicted rates in those markets. Predicted
on the basis of the nodel of conpetitively
determ ned rates. Now you will see that a
reasonabl e fraction of the actual rates are |ess

than the predicted rates. Those are the rates
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represented by the nass to the left of the
vertical line at 1. And that's, of course,
because it's a nodel and it doesn't fit data
precisely and we don't, we aren't able to
precisely predict all conpetitive rates. That's
a worthwhil e caution because it says that many of
t he observations to the right of that |ine where
the actual rate exceeds the rate predicted under
conpetition, are there sinply because the nodel
is like all nodels, inperfect. So we wouldn't
propose that all of the tariff rates to the
right, be treated as subject to detailed

exam nation. That is to say, treated, as if they
had passed the URCS test, the 180 percent test.
But the farther out you go, the nore likely it is
that what's happening is serious use of market
power to raise rates.

Qur suggestion is this sort of
nodel i ng can be perfected. Qur report contains
what we consider to be a proof of concept using
waybi || data and other data that are readily

accessible and a lot of work. Two of the menbers
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of our commttee produced a nodel of conpetitive
rate setting, applied it to non-conpetitive

mar kets and such a nodel can be tested, can be
refined, can be debated but those are technical
guestions. The policy question is what repl aces
180 because 180 is an arbitrary nunber. There is
no economcs to it. | assunme it was a |late night
negoti ati on.

To use this approach, one needs to
come up with a replacenent nunber to say that
rates that are twice the conpetitive or three
times the conpetitive prediction or one and a
hal f tines the conpetitive prediction or 180
percent of the conpetitive prediction if you |ike
that, are subject to chall enge.

Thi s approach, a few points about it,
we advocate this to replace the URCS test and
this could have not been done when Staggers was
witten. There weren't rates that you woul d say
are determ ned under conpetition in an efficient
rail system W have such rates now. The

t hreshol d, what replaces 180? It's a policy
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decision. If you set it too |ow, you place
revenue adequacy at risk. |If you set it too
hi gh, you risk not granting rate relief to people
who ought to get it. There is no magi c nunber.
It's likely to be controversial but I|ike the
determ nation of 180, it can be transparent.
Appendi x B of our report, thanks to a
| ot of work by two nenbers of our commttee, has
detail ed analysis and a proof of concept. It is
not the last word but it suggests that you can do
this credibly and we think it's nmuch better than
SAC. For the second and third stages, the
dom nance test, the dom nance proceedi ng before
the STB and t he standal one cost test for
reasonability if dom nance is cleared, we propose
again in the interest of reducing costs and
proceedi ng expeditiously and not excluding
rel evant evi dence, we propose noving to
arbitration at that point. |f the screening tool
i s appropriate, one doesn't have to rely on
stringency at the second and third stages to

preserve revenue adequacy. Arbitration can be
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i nf or mal .

W propose it to be behind cl osed
doors with confidential results so we don't set
precedent. It can be fast, it can be econom cal,
and it can consider conplex evidence. W propose
this be final offer arbitration, baseball style
arbitration, because experience has shown that
pronotes settl enment because of uncertainty about
the arbitrators decision. It also pronotes the
parti es maki ng reasonabl e of fers because
unreasonabl e offers are unlikely to be accepted.

Now, one reason why we have sone
confidence in the nerits of this recomendati on
is the Canadi an experience. Now this is not to
say the Canadi an experience is a panacea or we
should imtate all aspects of the Canadi an
experience but in Canada, a shipper doesn't have
to pass any sort of screen to be entitled to
arbitration. A shipper can raise its hand, get
rate arbitration or get service arbitration even
The Canadi an system as we can tell, has not

i nvol ved a | ot of cases even w thout a screen for
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eligibility. Most of those have settled and
whi l e nobody likes to be at the nmercy of an
arbitrator, the system proceeds w thout five
mllion dollars of case costs and it proceeds in
a manner that nmakes it accessible to snmall
shippers and it proceeds w thout the need to
excl ude evidence in order to nove on a tinely

f ashi on.

We think dom nance does need to be
part of the arbitrator's task but there is no
reason why an arbitrator can't, like the Anti-
Trust Division does, consider conplex evidence
with atine limt. W also think there is no
reason why the kind of cost evidence that woul d
undoubt edly be brought forward in this sort of
arbitration can't be consi der ed.

Agai n, the Canadi an experience, while
not perfection and not necessarily something we
want to imtate in detail, suggests that this
approach is workable and can be done in a tinely,
expeditious, relatively inexpensive fashion.

| would nmention, since |l still have a
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green light, two other aspects of our proposals
and then of course, | would wel come your
guestions. | know you have before you a proposal
by NI TL regardi ng reciprocal sw tching and we

di scussed reci procal switching at our

deli berations. W did not take a position on the
NI TL proposal. W did observe that Canada has
reci procal switching everywhere if you're within
20 kil onmeters of a switch point.

W didn't reach a concl usion on that
proposal or proposals like it but it did seemto
us that in the context of arbitration, that it
woul d not be unreasonable to allow either side to
propose reciprocal switching as part of its final
offer. A railroad m ght say well we think our
rate is terrific but if you really think it
isn't, we will allow for switching at a certain
price and |l et you negotiate with the ot her
railroad at the switch point or the shipper m ght
say | don't want to rely on you at all, | want
switching and "'mwilling to pay X for it. W

think that if you get to arbitration, it's not
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unreasonabl e to have that be part of either
party's final offer.

Wth elimnation of the URCS test,
there is no longer a concern that this m ght |ead
to a rate bel ow 180 percent of variable cost.
Again, putting it in through arbitration and not
a bl anket nati onw de policy renbves concerns
about fee schedul es, distances and so forth.

That would be part of the arbitration. The
second point up there that is relevant here, of
course, it's nore relevant to your next hearing
but 1'mhere today and if you will permt ne a
few nonents to just round this out, we recomend
elimnating the annual revenue adequacy

determ nation described by the Board itself as a
mechani cal process, pass/fail grading.

Qur reason is twofold, first, the
prol onged use of this process that | ooks on its
surface |ike public utility regul ation, conpare
the cost of capital, to learn the cost of

capital, suggests to sone on both sides of the

debate that perhaps there out to be a cap of sone
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sort based on this kind of conparison of returns
with cost of capital. W think that's

i nconsi stent with Staggers. W think it's

i mpractical and we think it's not the way
forward. The second reason is there is good
reason why the railroad industry needs to be

| ooked at closely in terns of revenue adequacy,
in terms of conpetitive conditions, in terns of
exerci se of market power. The annual revenue
adequacy determ nation is not such a | ook.

Qur reconmmrendation is that the annual
exerci se be dropped but that the Board be tasked
with periodically, let's say every five years,

i ssuing an in-depth report on conpetitive
conditions, revenue adequacy, |ong-term prospects
and so forth to assess whether you know, the
policy we have is producing the results that we
want, which | don't think and we don't think the
annual revenue adequacy determ nations do. Wth
that, I will pause and thank you for your

pati ence.

CHAIR M LLER: Thank you very much,
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Prof essor Schmal ensee. | suspect there are lots
of people in the audience right now that w sh

t hey had the opportunity to ask you questions and
if we could do that, we could probably just spend
the rest of the day peppering you but fortunately
for Ann and |, we get the opportunity to ask sone
guestions and | would say that those of you who
are in the room we did have the opportunity
yesterday, Dr. Schnal ensee was ki nd enough to
come up and give us a preview of the report so we
have had an opportunity to already ask a few
guestions but | certainly find that | come up

wi th other questions every tinme | hear you go

t hrough this anal ysis.

There are just a couple of things |
want to clarify. You' ve tal ked about the issue
of market dom nance not restricting categorical
evi dence but using tinme limts and that works
better in an informal proceeding. Wen you talk
about informal proceeding, is that another way to
say arbitration? |Is that really what that neans?

DR. SCHVALENSEE: That's what that
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means in this context. Yes nma'am

CHAIR MLLER Ckay. | just wanted to
be sure that there weren't other ways you al
were thinking about it. One of the other things
that | was wondering, when you tal k about SAC and
you say, really the purpose is really nore to
determne fairness than to efficiency. |s one of
t he reasons why the committee concl uded that
there is no economc justification for the use of
SAC because the analysis is a fairness anal ysis,
not an efficiency analysis? Am| draw ng too
many connections from what you sai d?

DR. SCHVALENSEE: Well, it's ny lack
of clarity I"'mafraid. | think the approach we
take is fundanentally a fairness approach as is
t he SAC approach. So that's not, if you could do
SAC i nexpensively and quickly and it could be
made accessible to small shippers, you could
argue that this is one definition of fairness.
The conparison with conpetitive rates that we
propose is another. Qurs is very quick, however.

The arbitration is very quick and an arbitrator
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will naturally be concerned with issues of
fairness. The SAC test is a particular neasure
of fairness. W could have a | ong discussion
about its properties. |It's not obviously the
right one here. | could see why it was done when
St aggers, after Staggers was passed when
confronted with a railroad industry that you know
the costs are too hi gh because of the | egacy of
regulation then to say well, let's | ook at the
costs of an efficient alternative that just
serves you and fairness says you shouldn't be
subsi di zi ng ot her peopl e.

O course, wthout a rate of return
constraint, it's not clear there is a subsidy but
you shoul dn't be paying nore than a standal one
cost of an efficient system That nakes a
certain anmount of sense but there is no theorem
that says that's the way to do fairness. | could
see why it happened when Staggers was passed. |
t hi nk experience has shown that it's unw el dy and
not the only way to think about fairness.

CHAIR MLLER Certainly it is
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unw el dy, no question about that. | have a final
guestion and then I'll turn it over to the Vice
Chai rman, but | want to go back. |In terns of the

i ssue of revenue adequacy, again, this is maybe
ny interpretation of what you said and that is
that really where we are, 35 years post- Staggers,
is that there is no real purpose served by the
revenue adequacy test and the approach that's
been suggested by your committee of doing nore of
a five-year in depth analysis as much as
anything, is a way to continue to nonitor whether
or not we're continuing to see you know, a good
conpetitive market but not really because revenue
adequacy is needed in the regulatory process?
Again, am|l going too far in interpreting the
panel ' s recomrendati ons?

DR. SCHVALENSEE: No, | don't think
you're going too far. | think the notion that
the Board should revise its process if the
i ndustry is found to be revenue adequate, which
kind of lurks fromearlier statenents; | think

it's too nmechanical in a way. Nobody asks, is
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General Electric revenue adequate this year? You
| ook at busi nesses over the business cycle. You
| ook at |long-term prospects. You |look at a
variety of things in judging the health of an
institution or an industry.

Now, we were not tasked with assessing
t he met hods used in the annual review. W did
have di scussi ons about them but at the end of the
day it seened to us that what's happened after
St aggers, 35 years after Staggers as the industry
has i nvested and i nnovated and rei nvented itself,
is it looks a lot nore Iike a normal industry
than it did with Staggers.

CHAIR M LLER  Uh- huh.

DR. SCHVALENSEE: When Staggers was
passed, you could see why you woul d want annual
revenue adequacy determ nati ons because are we
going to have to bail themout again? It was
clearly on people's mnds and logically on
peopl e's m nds gi ven how nmuch had been spent.
That's not on anybody's mnd today as far as |

can tell. The industry is naking substanti al
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i nvestnments. The industry is expanding capacity.
So the notion of, do they have what they need to
live and if they do, naybe we should tighten the
regul ati on, seenms counter to the thrust of
Staggers at the end of the day.

St aggers was about nmking this into an
ordi nary, nmaybe whol esonme or not, healthy
i ndustry. W can debate whol esone if you' d liKke.
But healthy industry that yes, still needs
regul atory oversi ght because it has inevitably a
fair anount of market power and is an inportant
i ndustry but Staggers pointed toward |i ght-handed
regul ation not public utility style regulation
and the annual revenue adequacy | ooked to us a
lot Iike public utility regulation and peri odic,
say five year exam nation of the industry, | ooked
alot like let's informpolicy and see if we're
in the right direction and do we need to nmake
changes. It just seenmed to serve, that seened to
be the right purpose today. Are we on the right
track? Not turn the crank, yes, no, revenue

adequat e, not revenue adequat e.
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CHAIR M LLER: Thank you very much.
Vi ce Chair Begenan?

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN. Yes, thank you
very much. | think you have a | ot of people
needi ng sone air in the room Thank you for
getting us out of the group-think nentality, that
a lot of tinmes we get sucked into when we start
dealing with these issues and rate case
nmet hodol ogi es. You certainly have made cl ear that
much of what you're suggesting is not in our
power to do without |egislation. But one of the
guestions | wanted to ask, you nentioned that
because of the change in coal shipnments, you did
not include that elenment in your process as far
as what you were devel oping. But, even if you
had, woul d you have conme out with a different
out cone?

DR. SCHVALENSEE: No, we would not. |
woul dn't say that we excluded them it was just
that we noticed that you know, alnost all coal
now travel s under contract. M sense is, and |

think the sense of the conmittee, w thout being
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able to docunent it, is that one reason why, a
coupl e reasons why contracting coal is easier
than contracting in grain but an inportant
reason, we suspect, is that there were all of

t hose coal cases which sort of set bounds on what
kind of rates m ght stand up. That makes
negotiation a little easier. W didn't exclude
coal from our consideration, the approach we
proposed woul d apply as well to coal as to

anyt hing el se. But coal shippers appear willing
to enter into contracts and thus not be eligible
for a reasonability determ nation.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN:. Thank you for
correcting ny inpression because | thought you
said that you weren't thinking about coal
anynore, but it had a different neaning?

DR, SCHVALENSEE: No ma'am It was
just to point out that the conposition of tariff
traffic has changed but what we proposed woul d
apply to all tariff traffic.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN. On the nodeling

that you had on the screen for the farm
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commodities of the different pyramd, if you

will.

DR. SCHVALENSEE: Ri ght.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN. WAs that just
illustrative or was it actually based on the
waybi | | data?

DR SCHVALENSEE: It was based on the
waybill data. It was based on the waybill data

plus data on, and | don't renenber the nane of
t he dat abase, but it provided | ocational
information so that we could assess is there
barge conpetition nearby and so forth. It was
based on the real waybill data.

VICE CHAIR BEGCEMAN.  So it was where
the traffic was, what was noving, if there was
conpetition, and what the distance was?

DR. SCHVALENSEE: Yes, we started with
contract or exenpt traffic, where there was rai
conpetition nearby or barge conpetition nearby.
W treated those as conpetitive benchmark rates
nodel ed how t hey depended on shi pnent

characteristics such as di stance, nunber of

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

48

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

carl oads and so on and so forth, and then used
that nodel to say well, if this other shipnent,
this tariff shipnent without rail conpetition
avai | abl e, what would that rate have been if it
had been conpetitive in line with these other
conpetitive rates and of course, the nodel is not
perfect. It can't be perfect. So there is
nodel i ng error.

As opposed to URCS, we're at | east
trying to predict sonething real, that is to say
the conpetitive rate not sonething imaginary like
vari able costs. So, that was based on a rather
extensi ve anal ysis of the waybill data done by
two nenbers of our commttee with staff hel p.
Again, we don't, let ne be clear, we don't say
take Appendix B, wite it into the |egislation
and use it. The point of Appendix B, which is
where the analysis is done, is to say this
approach is feasible. It can undoubtedly be done
better than we did it, but it's feasible.

VI CE CHAIR BEGEMAN: And as far as the

“punch line" of arbitration, did you have
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opi nions on whether or not it's sonething that
coul d be done within the Board, or actually,
should it be outside of the Board?

DR SCHVALENSEE: W resisted the
usual academ c tenptation to reorgani ze the
federal governnment. M understanding is, again,
|"mnot a |lawer and nobody involved is, but that
it would be --

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN. That's okay,
neither are we.

DR. SCHVALENSEE: |'m not sure --

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN: It's a feature,
not a flaw

DR. SCHVALENSEE: |'m not sure the
Board has the authority to hand off decision
making to an arbitrator. |If it did, then it
could. If it doesn't, then it can't.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN: But if the
parties would agree to it, they could.

DR. SCHVALENSEE: On, if the parties
woul d agree to it, then perhaps it can. W don't

propose nutual agreenent to be the test. W just
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propose that to be what you do at that point. 1In
part, based on prior cases, would save an

enor nous anount of person hours at the Board to
be able to do that.

VI CE CHAIR BEGEMAN.  Well | guess
we're sort of left with trying to fix the
unfixable, at least with this proceeding. Thank
you for that. But if you have any ideas on what
we could do, we still have a nmandate, we have an
obl i gati on.

DR SCHVALENSEE: You do and it is a
difficult one and it's a little bit of an
unw el dy mandat e which was part of the point that
we tried to nake and I wi sh we had been able to
come up with, given your statutory authority,
here is the obvious way forward but we didn't
i npose that constraint on ourselves and | don't
want to make something up here as | sit here.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN. Wl |, thank you
very much

CHAIR M LLER: Thank you. W

appreci ate your being here today.
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DR. SCHVALENSEE: Thank you for yo
tinme.

CHAIR MLLER Ckay, we're going t
nove to Panel Il and ask that those who are on
Panel 11 come forward which includes Deputy Un

Secretary Gary Whodward and fromthe Mntana

Departnent of Agriculture, Benjamn Tiller and
M ke O Hara fromthe Montana Weat and Barl ey
Committee, | think. And for those of you int

audi ence who m ght need to do sone planning or

will likely take a break for lunch after Panel
1l and before Panel IV. GCkay, thank you. It
| ooks like we're ready to begin. So Deputy Un

Secretary Whodward, |'Il turn it over to you.

Chai rman. Madam Vice Chairman. |1'mgoing to
start out this norning doing sonething that I
told | should never do at the beginning of a
neeti ng and apol ogi ze. | woke up this norning

and realized that ny allergies had given ne a

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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swift kick in the pants and so ny throat is a

little scratchy and ny voice is com ng and goi ng

but I will do ny best to project as well as | can
this norning so that you all, and the fol ks at
hone can hear ne. Again, Gary Wodward, |'mthe

Deputy Under Secretary for Marketing and
Regul atory Prograns at the United States
Department of Agriculture. It's a mssion area
at USDA that enconpasses the agricultural
mar keti ng service, which has as part of their
mandate, the task of nonitoring US transportation
systens as they relate to agriculture.

"1l join the Chairman and the Vice
Chairman this norning in pointing out the good
work of staff and | want to thank Arthur Neal and
his teamat AMS who are sitting behind nme for
their yeoman's work in this area. They are the
real policy experts on these issues and so | want
to thank them and highlight their work on behal f
of US Agriculture. The US Departnent of
Agriculture does appreciate the opportunity to

present testinony at this hearing and sincerely
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t hanks the Service Transportati on Board for

i nvestigating ways in which rail rates chall enge
procedures can be made nore accessible for grain
and oil seed shi ppers.

The USDA believes that it is critical
for these procedures to provide effective
protection agai nst unreasonable freight rail
transportation rates where there is an absence of
effective conmpetition. For too |ong, nost
agricul tural producers and shi ppers have been
|l eft with no practically accessible neans to
challenge rail rates, nuch | ess seek redress. It
is telling that no grain or oil seed shipper has
filed arail rate challenge using any of the
Board's processes since the McCarty Farns case
was decided in 1997. This is not because there
have been no conpl aints about rates, instead the
USDA believes that there have been no rate
chal | enges mai nly because the Board's procedures
are too | engthy and expensive for virtually all
agricultural shippers. The cost of bringing a

challenge is only part of the issue.
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Equal ly inportant but as easily
guantified is the constant changing of rules and
procedures within the current rate chall enge
system This makes the outcone of any rate
chal l enge very difficult to predict and
underm nes the shipper's willingness to take part
in such a system Any newy proposed processes
or amendnents to existing rate challenge
procedures are likely to be nmet with skepticism
by agricultural shippers if they believe the new
process will not be consistently applied and
t herefore subject to unattai nable preconditions.
A consi stent process al so establishes
credibility, not only will it encourage greater
shi pper participation but it will also | essen the
need for litigation and/or rate chall enges by
shi ppers as time goes on.

In the opening coments of this
proceedi ng subnmitted | ast year, sone rai
carriers argued that the possibility of
litigation before the Service Transportation

Board served to prevent rate increases in areas
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where conpetition is not as strong. Litigation
only serves as an effective check, however, if
STB's processes are consistently applied. This
al so underscores the inportance of designing and
effective and accessible rail rate chall enge
procedure for grain shippers and producers in
order to ensure its credibility as a check
agai nst unreasonable rail rate increases. USDA
bel i eves that effective regulatory mechani sns are
critical to rounding out the rail transportation
policies conplinmentary directive of allow ng
conpetition to establish reasonabl e rates.
Ther ef ore, USDA encourages the Board to purposely
seek sinplicity, practicality and consistently in
devel oping alternative rate relief methodol ogies
for agricultural shippers and their uni que needs.
USDA bel i eves that the npobst prom sing
ways for the Board to encourage greater use by
agricultural shippers of a specific rate
chal | enge procedure are through one,
significantly lowering the costs associated with

t he procedure; and two, denonstrating a
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commtnent to a predictable set of outcones

t hrough the devel opnent of a process that is
sinple to use and easy to understand. USDA
bel i eves a fornula based procedure using data
that is easy to obtain and deterministic in
nature, would have w de appeal to agricultural
shi ppers. Two such procedures have been
submtted for the Board' s exam nation in the
course of this setting. The AG conmmodity maxi mum
rat e net hodol ogy proposed by the National Gain
and Feed Association and the two benchmark tests
proposed by the Alliance for Rail Conpetition.
Both of these alternative nethods adhere to the
criteria of sinplicity, practicality and
consi st ency.

Additionally, their inclusion into
treatnment of railroad revenue adequacy nake them
strong candi dates for challenging rail rates
noving forward as the regul atory environnent
i ncreasingly incorporates this concept. To
conpliment formal processes, USDA has al so

encouraged nediation and arbitration in its
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opening reply coments. A major benefit of

medi ati on and arbitration is that they have the
potential to offer rail rate chall enge procedures
that are less tine consum ng and | ower cost than
formal Board processes.

In addition, these informal processes
foster direct business discussions, facilitate an
i nformal resolution of many issues before they
require formal procedure. |f broadly utilized by
the nation's shippers and railroads, nediation
and arbitration systenms could offer agricultural
shi ppers greater access to rate dispute
settl enent nechani sns that have a reputation for
being fair, easily understood, accessible and
af fordabl e. Exanpl es of these types of
arbitration systens that already exist include
the National Grain and Feed Association's rail
arbitration system and the Mntana BNSF nedi ati on
arbitration system These systens have not been
broadly used for rate disputes because railroads
have generally been unwilling to arbitrate rates.

In addition, the scope of these
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systens cannot handle all agricultural rate
di sput es because of limtations on shipper
menber shi p, geographic application and commodity.
Nevert hel ess, they serve as good exanpl es of how
such systens can effectively resol ve disputes and
foster good business relationships. As a
practical way to advance fairness for
agricultural rate disputes, USDA believes that
t he Board should actively assist in facilitating
t he expansi on and creation of the nediation and
arbitration system Such system could be the
nost prom sing and vi abl e procedure for the
average agricultural shipper who may not have the
di sposition, inclination or time and noney for a
formal process. At the sane tinme, the use,
expansi on and success of nediation in arbitration
i s contingent upon the Board encouragi ng
rail roads to use them when handling rate
di sput es.

As a result of decades of efficiency
i mprovenents and recent, but consistent rate

i ncreases, the railroads are now earning
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approximately their cost of capital as docunented
t hrough the study by Christiansen Associ ates and
there is no doubt that the rail industry today is
in far better financial health than it was in the
i medi at e post-deregul ation period and it's in
everyone's interest for railroads to earn
sufficient returns on their investnents to be
able to nmaintain, inprove, expand and safely
operate their extensive and expensive
infrastructure and rolling stock. USDA realizes
that gains in efficiency, inprovenents in service
and investnents in infrastructure would not be
possi bl e without the financial success of the
rail industry. Yet, railroads are national
nonopol ies and the rail transportation policy
requires the board to maintain reasonable rates
where there is an absence of effective
conpetition. Producers with few transportation
options such as wheat farners in renote areas
have the highest rates and bear the brunt of any
rail service disruptions. Look no further than

the rail service problens of 2014 to see nunerous
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exanpl es of grain and oil seed shi ppers who | acked
conpetitive transportation options. As a result,
| nadequate conpetitive transportati on options,

t hose shippers faced skyrocketing costs, which in
sone areas wi den the grain basis and depress the
vignette prices that farmers received.

Utimately, this |owered i ncones as producers
absorbed rmuch of the increased transportation
costs. USDA recogni zes that policy changes
shoul d not reduce railroads ability to invest in

a network or to grade service.

Furt hernore, the USDA does not believe

that every rate increase by a railroad is
unreasonabl e or that railroads necessarily charge
nonconpetitive rates to grain and oil seed

shi ppers in general. The ability to charge such
rates exi sts in nonconpetitive markets, however,
and this warrants careful consideration of
prescriptions by the Board. This is why the rail
transportation policy requires the Board to

mai ntai n reasonabl e rates where there is an

absence of effective conpetition and why
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devel opnment a workabl e rate chall enge process for
grain and oil seed shippers is so inportant.

As its core, this proceeding is being
hel d to establish a neans for challenging rail
rates for grain and oil seed shi ppers who have
nei ther conpetitive transportati on options nor
access to regulatory relief. Once such processes
are established, this objective of the rail
transportation policy will have been net. Going
forward, the task will be for the Board to deci de
the nerits of the rate challenges that are
brought forth. Wth that, | will end and say
t hanks again for allowing nme to present the views
of the US Departnment of Agriculture here and |
thank you all for your interest in American
agricul ture.

CHAIR M LLER: Thank you and thank you
for being with us today. M. Tiller?

MR, TILLER  Thank you, Madam Chair.
May it please the honorable nenbers of the Board?
My nane is Benjamin Tiller and |I'm here today

representing the Montana Departnent of
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Agriculture. The Departnent's mssion fits
squarely within the subject matter of VP665 and
we appreciate the Board's recognition of these
i mportant issues to Anerica's farners. Wth ne
today is Mke OHara. He is a farmer from Fort
Bent on, Montana. He's a nenber of the Mntana
Weat and Barley Committee and he is the forner
Chair of Montana's Rail Service Conpetition
Counsel. | appreciate the Board giving himthe
opportunity to speak today on short notice.

|"d like to preface nmy comments with
an assurance that the Mntana Departnent of
Agriculture is not here today as a rail critic.
We appreciate the services that the railroads
provi de and understand their critical role in our
AG econom es. Positive comuni cati on between the
Departnment of Agriculture and the BNSF has
i ncreased consi derably since the service col |l apse
of 2013 and we commend them for those efforts. |
wi |l speak on four principal issues today.
First, I will give an outline of Mntana's

rapi dl y changi ng AG economy. Next, | wll
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di scuss the difficulty Montana's snmall el evators
face when negotiating rates and service with the
railroads. Next, | wll explain how not having
an accessi bl e appeal option directly affects the
producers. Finally, | will offer the
Departnment's suggestions for neani ngful changes.
Mont ana produces 5.2 million netric
tons of wheat per year. 75 percent of which is
exported to foreign markets. Nearly all of that
reaches the export termnals via rail. Recent
shuttle facility devel opment by private industry
t hroughout the state has nade it nore efficient
for the railroads to deliver this grain to port.
Despite these efficiencies, however, we have not
seen a decrease. W've only seen increases in
shi ppi ng rates per bushel since the m d-2000"s.
The increasing costs of shipping grainin a
systemthat is increasingly nore efficient is
concerning to the Department. More concerning,
however, is how substantial devel opi ng
agricultural industries in our state are facing

an ever widening pricing differential.
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Mont ana, | ast year, becane the nunber
one producer of pulse crops in the nation. Mbst
peopl e know pul se crops as chickpeas and lentils
but they also include various edible dried beans
and peas. Since 2000, Montana's pul se acreage
has nore than doubl ed and our data indicates that
it's going to double again in the next five
years. This rapid devel opnent neans nore
productive farns and a greater abundance of
highly nutritious food for the rest of the world.
Unfortunately, as these crops gain marketability,
shi ppi ng costs are qui ckly becom ng a mar ket
deterrent. Smaller elevators that |ack
negoti ati ng power handl e nost of the pul se crops
in our state. This lack of negotiating power
stens fromthe absence of a neani ngful regulatory
threat and that's why we're here today. Pulse
crop volunmes mght, in the future, justify
shuttl e shipments but today's vol unes don't
support it. This is why the smaller facilities
handl i ng these crops continue to pay higher rates

and suffer greater service problens than the
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| arger, nore established wheat trades.

This hearing could not have been
tinmelier. On May 1st, new BNSF rail rates went
into effect for the State of Montana. The new
rates will decrease the bottomline on Montana's
farms in three concerning ways. First, BNSF
elimnated the differential between donestic and
i nternational shipnments. The new rates are in
excess of both the donestic rate which was
traditionally nore expensive and the
international rate. To put it another way,
shi pping on the cheap route on May 1st this year
was nore expensive than shipping on the expensive
route the day before. Second, BNSF elim nated
the fuel sir charge and incorporated that expense
back into the tariff. The rates from Shelby to
the PNWare roughly equal to what they were this
time last year. Unfortunately, the fuel sir
charge on April 30th of 2014 was 38 cents per
mle. On April 30th of 2015, it was 9 cents per
ml e.

I n essence, BNSF has captured as
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profit what used to be a fuel expense and taken
away the oversight the STB has over fuel sir
charges. Mntana's farnmers are no | onger
receiving the benefit of 63 dollar barrel oil.
Finally, and nost concerning is that the
differential for |less than shuttle rates, those
cars that will carry the bul k of those pul se
crops that | tal ked about at the beginning, have
i ncreased at a rate far greater than the |arger
shuttle shipments. This pricing differential is
a market deterrent. Montana farmers shoul d not
be forced to grow wheat because the rail enjoys
maxi mum efficiency to ship it. Snaller elevators
shoul d not be forced by unreasonable rates to
bear the entire cost of expanding to shuttle
operations before the industry can support the

i nvestnment. The BNSF will tell you that these
rates are getting higher because noving smaller
units is sinply less efficient. |If the increase
of shuttle and non-shuttle rates was on the sane
trajectory or there was sone indication that the

system as a whole was getting |less efficient then
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this argunent m ght nake sense.

However, as private industry shuttle
facility investnment has continued to nake the
rail systemnore efficient as a whole, BNSF' s
prices continue to go up. Increased efficiency
in one area should not cause another area to
beconme nore inefficient. This is counter to the
railroad's constant refrain that efficiency on
the network is efficiency for all. This pricing
differential and the disparate trajectories of
the increases likely has less to do with
efficiencies and nore to do with carrier
preference. It runs contrary to the railroad's
common carrier obligations. The railroads often
di sm ss, out of hand, potentially cost saving
solutions fromthe industry. For exanple, even
i f various small shippers were to organize a 110
car train fromvarious |ocations within our
state, what the Departnent has terned a reverse
DET or Destination Efficiency Train so in effect
it's an origination efficiency train. The

railroad won't offer the di scounted DET rate and

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

68

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

we haven't received an explanation for why this
train is less efficient to nove than the reverse.
Smal | er shi ppers are di scouraged by these rates
but they have no recourse.

First, they fear retaliation. Qur
smal | el evators struggle weekly with inconsistent
car deliveries. For exanple, they will order
three cars a week yet consistently get twelve
cars every four weeks. Is this because of
crowding on the rail systemor is it because it
j ust makes nore econonic sense for the railroad
to deliver all of those cars at once? In any
event, it is cheaper to deliver all of those cars
at once and those savings are profit to the rail.
But rather than risk retaliation by chall enging
the service, these snmall elevators sinply
scranble to try and fill these cars and they have
to pay the denerge while they're sitting there.
Retaliation is a large and real fear for these
smal | er shippers. Second, they fear the cost of
the rate case. W've heard it twice today. The

STB estimtes a three benchmark proceedi ng woul d
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t ake approxi mately ei ght nonths and cost

$500, 000. A standal one cost case woul d cost nore
than 5 mllion dollars. Small shippers can't
take that risk when there is virtually no
precedent gui dance. But the small shippers
aren't the ones suffering here.

Wien faced with the risk of
retaliation or the cost of a rate case, the
common sense solution is to sinply pass the cost
off to the customer. Renenber, the custoner is
the farnmer, the Mke O Hara's of the world.

Large shippers face a simlar conundrum Are
they nmeeting their duty to the sharehol ders if
they chose to litigate over a rate that they
could sinply pass off to their custonmer? And the
farmer has no power. He possesses a nmssive

vol une of a product with an expiration date. Hi's
market influenced is limted to the next tine his
| oan paynent is due or the next tinme he needs
somewhere to put his new crop. The Depart nent
has sonme ideas to help solve these issues.

At a very mninmm standing to bring
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the case nust be granted to the real party in
interest. | can think of no other judicial or
guasi -judi cial proceeding in which the entity
that doesn't suffer the harmis the only entity
that can bring a case. The farnmer bears that
cost of shipping and shoul d have the change to
chal | enge those rates. Second, parties mnust be
allowed to aggregate their clains to take

advant age of econom es of scale. Mntana farnmers
nove their grain fromthe sane termnals on the
sane rails and are charged the sanme rates. Wen
the real parties in interest can prove they are
simlarly situated, they should be able to bring
an aggregated claim This would increase
efficiency for the Board and protect the rail
from constant pieceneal litigation. Then, state
Attorney's General should be allowed to bring
cases on behal f of shippers and producers. This
policy is sound because the state need not fear
retaliation. |t can act on behalf of others

wi t hout regard to sharehol der profits and it has

the resources and transportati on expertise to
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effectively pursue a just renedy.

Rat e cases shouldn't be the only
renedy available. Binding arbitration should be
explored and it is with Senate Bill 808. Qhers
in this proceedi ng have suggested an arbitration
system based on the NGFA nodel. This may be a
good pl ace to begin but nodifications are
necessary. The NGFA calls for choosing three
arbitrators fromthe industries in the dispute.
What this nmeans is that one industry in the
di spute will always have a majority on that
arbitration panel. W reconmend the arbitration
panel include a nenber of the STB Board or
governnental magistrate and we think that wll
wor k, especially if this Board is expanded to
five nmenbers. Then add to that panel, one nenber
fromeach of the industries.

Second, appeals fromthe arbitration
should be imted to those grounds in the Federal
Arbitration Act and expanded to al so incl ude
situations where the arbitrator's concl usions of

| aw are clearly erroneous and where the findings
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of fact are not supported by substanti al

evi dence. Wthout such limtations, arbitration
will sinply becone an expensive first step at an
even lengthier litigation process.

Third, arbitration nust be subject to
time limts. An arbitration decision should be
rendered within six nonths of the filing of the
case, except in instances of extraordinary
ci rcunst ances.

Finally, the Board coul d consider
mandating arbitration for certain cases to bring
the parties to the table. Ooviously this m ght
require a legislative change but it could serve
as an effective deterrent to abuse of pricing on
smal | er shipments. For the sake of discussion
and for the sake of discussion only, the rule
could require aggregated clains with a val ue of
| ess than $500, 000 brought by fewer than 15
farmers to be subject to nandatory arbitration.

If an arbitration mandate is
consi dered, we woul d encourage further hearings

to explore the appropriate jurisdictional limts.

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

73

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

74

O hers have supported final arbitration. W' ve
heard that already today. W're hesitant to join
t hem because inevitably the railroad will always
have nore information. The shipper will be

incented to request only a mninml concession for
fear that the railroad's offer will receive
def erence because it owns the data and professes
expertise on its own rail system

Montana's farners are in an unenvi abl e
situation right now Commodity prices are | ow
and they have no power to effectively negotiate
or appeal the rail rates that are eating up a
consi derable portion of their margins. The
Department of Agriculture is confident that
today's conversations will provide the Board with
the information it needs to make mneani ngf ul
changes. W believe that the solution begins
with allow ng producers to bring clains since
they are the ones bearing the cost of
transportation, allowing parties to consolidate
their clainms to increase the efficiency of the

process and devel opi ng a binding arbitration
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system Mandatory in certain situations perhaps
wher e deci sions are made by a bal anced panel of
arbitrators.

You will hear later that BNSF is

investing 6 billion dollars this year and it
spent 5.5 billion dollars last year in capital
i nvestnments. |If these investnents are working,

why is the price to ship our snaller volune yet
very high potential and high val ue crops,
increasing at a faster rate than the increase on
other conmmodities? |Is it because their
i nvestments di scrimnate against these snall
shipments that fall within the common carrier
obligation? Until there is a cost efficient way
to challenge these rates, there will be no way to
know. Wth that, | would |like to turn over the
remai nder of nmy time to M. Mke O Hara. Thank
you.

MR O HARA: M nane is Mke O Hara
and | would like to thank you for giving ne tine
today for this testinony. M testinony will be

specific to Montana grain growers and nore
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specifically to our farm M grandfather, Qi ver
O Hara, arrived in Fort Benton, Montana in 1912
in a box car on the Geat Northern Railroad with
his life's possessions and the dream of naking a
|ife of honmesteading.

Today, ny wife and | have a famly
partnership with our two sons in the same area
t hat nmy grandfat her honmesteaded. Located in
Chot eau County, we are in the heart of the
| ar gest production area of quality mlling wheat
in Montana. Qur farm has been predom nately
rai sing wheat for the past 45 years until five
years ago. W have diversified into oil seed,
pul se crops and nalt barl ey because the profit
mar gi ns had nore potential. Qur farmwll be
payi ng $150, 000 freight on its 2015 wheat crop.
The wheat production on our farmthat freight is
to deliver it to the West Coast for export to our
forei gn custoners.

Wth the current price of wheat for
this marketing year, we show a 70-cent bushe

profit after our production costs. This is close
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to the break-even cost reflecting an average crop
year, not taking into account the risk of drought
and other perils that agriculture faces every
day. The crops we have diversified to currently
depend on single car tariff rates. These new

mar kets are being threatened as a result of the
hi gher costs of transportation.

Al'l these costs are passed on to the
farmreflecting lower prices. As freight rates
rise on the smaller shipnents, how long will the
profitability remain in these crops? How much
time do we have until margins of these crops are
as tight as wheat currently is? As we innovate
into crops with nore profit margin, those profits
are being taken by higher freight rates. Thank
you again for this opportunity to share our story
and the effects it has on our famly farm depends
on our livelihood. Thank you.

CHAIR M LLER: Thank you M. O Hara.
Thank you so nuch for being with us today. W
real ly appreciate that. Vice Chai rnan Begeman,

do you want to start the questioning?
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VICE CHAIR BEGEMAN: Yes. M. Tiller,
could you tell ne what role has your agency had,
or what understanding you have of the arbitration
process that, | believe it's with Mntana,
certain Montana farms, or a group in Mntana has
with BNSF and |'msure that M. MIler |ater can
be nore specific fromhis perspective. But what
has your experience or your constituent's
experience been with that?

MR. TILLER Yes man'am Vice
Chairman. So there is an arbitrati on agreenent,
a standing arbitration agreenent between the
Montana Grain G ower's Associ ati on, Montana Farm
Bureau Federation and t he BNSF.

VICE CHAIR BEGEMAN: And is that a
| ar ge group?

MR. TILLER Yes. Those are two of
the largest farmgroups in the State of Mntana
especially when it conmes to wheat commodities and
this arbitration agreenment has been in place, you
know, soneone else will have to fill you in on

the date but it's only ever been used once and
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it's only effective for negotiating wheat and
barl ey rates. BNSF has not agreed to negotiate
these smaller rates that we discussed earlier
today. It was used once in a rail case for

shi ppi ng wheat from Shel by, Montana which is the
| ocation | mentioned earlier today to the PNW but
| believe that was nearly a decade ago. So, to
tell you what the perspective is, | think that

t he usage kind of answers that question. |It's
been used one time and |'msure that that's
because the rate is necessarily reasonable, |
think it's because the process just doesn't work
as well as one might hope.

CHAIR MLLER. Can you say nore about
why do you think there's only been one attenpt at
using it? Ws that because the farmers and
others who were interested just didn't think it
was going to work for then? Has it been a
rel uctance on the part of the railroads to
parti ci pate?

MR, TILLER No, there is certainly

not a reluctance, Madam Chai rman, on the
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railroads to participate. | think the agreenent
is standing. |If sonebody wanted to arbitrate one
of these rate cases, they could bring it. |
think in the countryside there is some perception
I ssues on how that's done and | think that goes
to Deputy Under Secretary Wodward's conments
that any of these proceedi ngs have to have, they
have to be trusted by the constituents in order
to be utilized.

VI CE CHAIR BEGEMAN. Wl |l certainly,
| realize that's outside of our purview W have
a job that we need to do as well, but to the
extent that private agreenents or private
resol uti ons can be achieved, I'mall for it. You
know, every now and then, actually fairly
frequently, we hear the comrent that the Board
needs to clarify standing for the growers or
farmers. Can | ask, why don't farmers think they
have standi ng?

MR, TILLER  Madam Vi ce Chai rnman, |
think our request is for clarification on that

i ssue. As you | ook back at the federal court
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opinion in MCarty Farns, you will see that they
do nention that they are in fact, suffering this
harm However, | think that this concern about
whet her standing actually exists is nore of a
fear of having to litigate that issue at the
begi nning of a case. Because it isn't an
entirely settled precedent. So you know t hat
that's going to be one of the very first
di spositive notions filed by your opponent in the
case and | think that's probably the deterrent
there and that's why sone clarification would be
hel pful .

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN:  And since we
ki cked the hearing off with sort of, kind of,
putting the | aw asi de, how best can the Board
acconplish a fair process or fair rate
nmet hodol ogi es? |Is arbitration your preference?
What woul d your silver bullet be? I'Il really ask
all three of you if you don't m nd.

MR, TILLER  Madam Vice Chairnman, |'m
not sure if | could put ny finger on what the

Departnent thinks the silver bullet is. | can
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tell you, | nmean, | ama litigator and when |

| ook at the conplexity of bringing a stand al one
cost case, | don't understand how even a | arge
group of farmers with a very |arge case woul d be
able to find the representation that they
actually needed especially considering you're
breaki ng new ground. There is no precedent. As
atrial |awer, you would | ook at that and say
wel |, yeah, | think you' re probably right.

think the damages are there but can you nmake that
determi nation as to whether or not you're
actually going to have a chance to succeed?
There is just no precedent and so you don't know.
" mnot sure what the silver bullet is. | think
that there probably is no silver bullet but what
we need is sone sort of access.

W need sonething that the people who
are harmed by these rates can actually understand
and that they can actually get fair
representation on. | think arbitration is a good
pl ace to begin because it is nore informal, it

doesn't require litigators to learn an entire new

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

82

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

83

area of |aw and procedure and they can get in
there and nmake their cases in a nuch nore
informal setting and | think that's what's
beneficial about arbitration noving forward.

MR, WOODWARD: Maybe 1'I1| just say
that for reasons of protocol and practicality,
USDA is not in a position at this point to really
of fer specific statutory fixes that m ght
alleviate the situation froma shipper's
standpoint but | think we'd be happy to coment

on any proposals that come forward at the STB's

request.
VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN: Thank you.
MR O HARA: Well froma farner's
perspective, | think arbitration has a | ot of

potential because of the systemw th that nowis
economi cally infeasible for us to bring cases
bef ore you, so this could be a huge inprovenent
and sone place where we coul d have a voi ce of
what's going on with our freight rates so --

VI CE CHAIR BEGCEMAN. M. O Hara have

you testified in Washi ngton before?
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MR. O HARA: Have | testified before?

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN: Yes.

MR, O HARA: No.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN: | thank you for
the effort that you nade to cone here. Many
fol ks have heard nme say, and they're naybe tired
of hearing it, but I'ma farnmer's daughter. |
certainly know that it's not the first thing that
farmers do, to come to Washington to try to get
hel p. Really, they usually just conplain a bit.
Rightly so, perhaps. But they have other nore
i mportant things to do than to cone here and nake
their case, so thank you for the effort that you
made to be here today.

MR. O HARA: Thank you. | appreciate
t hat .

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN: Thank you.

CHAIR MLLER: M. Tiller, I'm
curious, you nmade the point when you were talking
about one of the things that's frustrating is
t hat even though private investnents being nmade

in shuttle services and other things that should
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be maki ng the costs nore, naking the system nore
efficient therefore, lowering the costs. You're
not seeing that. You made the comment that there
has been a price increase for grain. |'mnot
sure if it was wheat or basically the various
pul se crops as well that's outpaci ng ot her
commodities and |'mcurious, are you all tracking
that and sort of what's the basis for concl uding
that grainis, the price rate is going up faster
than it is for other commodities?

MR, TILLER Madam Chai rman, thank you
for the question. W do track that and Mntana
Wheat and Barley comrittee hired Terry Witeside
who has consi derabl e past data on those rates.
This one was easy because we had April 30 rates
i n our possession and then we had the May 1st
rates, which were published and announced 20 days
prior. So what we did is we conpared. W said,
what is the percentage increase on these shuttle
shi pments of grain? | can't site the percentages
but then we conpared that to what is the

percent age i ncrease of these snaller shipnents
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and it went up higher. It went up faster and so
when you graph this out, you'll see that there is
a steeper increase on these snaller shipnents.
Renenber, these smaller crops have a higher

mar ket price on average. You're |ooking at, and
M. OHara will correct ne if |I'm wong,
averaging five dollars for wheat roughly and you
can sell chick peas for twenty-two dollars a
bushel thereabouts. Correct nmne.

MR OHARA: |'mpretty sure it's
ei ghteen but it's still profitable.

MR TILLER R ght. So you see, you
have that nore val uabl e conmopdity and you see
that steeper increase filling in that space there
and so as M. O Hara said earlier today, when
does that margin becone as small as the margin is
for wheat?

CHAIR MLLER So | just want to be
sure that | understand. Wat you're saying is,
is that the rate for those carload pul se crops is
going up nore rapidly than the shuttle?

MR TILLER  That is absolutely

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

86

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

correct, Madam Chair.

CHAIR MLLER: But the carload pul se
crops are likely nore expensive to transport than
the shuttle services, aren't they?

MR. TILLER  They certainly are but
our question is, are they getting |ess efficient?
You know? So as the systemincreases inits
ef ficiency because of these shuttle shipnents,
the systemas a whole should be nore efficient
and so when you see these price increases going
up, there is no real justification for why it
should go up nore for these pulse crops than the
| arger shipnments. Wy should it go up at a
faster clip?

CHAIR MLLER:. You're saying that that
systemis nore efficient as well but you're not
seeing the benefit of the efficiency playing out
in the rate?

MR, TILLER That's correct, Madam
Chair. W have not seen an explanation as to why
that rate should be going up at a faster rate.

CHAIR MLLER: | thought, also, you

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

87

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

had sai d when you were kind of going through your
exanpl e the donestic grain, did you say it was
| ess expensive and that it flipped?

MR, TILLER  Madam Chair, what
happened is donestic grain was usually nore
expensi ve because once it got to the PNW it had
to go sonewhere el se.

CHAIR M LLER. Right.

MR TILLER So there is the
operational costs of exploding that train. So
that was traditionally nore expensive. But, no,
what we're seeing there is so we had those two
different rates, when the new rates cane out,

t hose base tariffs were actually higher than both
the cheap rate fromApril 30th and the expensive
rate fromApril 30th and so they basically

| eapfrogged and so we now have the npbst expensive
rate, which is the rate that we're stuck with
now. And so a producer cannot nake the deci sion
anynore, well, you know, it is cheaper for ne to
find an international market than a domestic

market. It's the sane either way and so they' ve
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| ost that kind of market advantage that they had
prior to April 30th.

CHAIR M LLER.  Uh-huh, | see. One of
the things |I'mcurious about is going back to the
i ssue of arbitration. Wen you all talk about
arbitration, does that invariably when you say
that nmean binding arbitration? | mean, is it
your view for arbitration to be effective, it has
to be a binding arbitration?

MR, TILLER Madam Chair, it does.

O herwise, like | said, it becones just the first
step in an even lengthier litigation process. |
think that it would be beneficial too if those
deci si ons, although they don't have precedent

val ue, they do have informative value. | nean we
have non-site opinions fromthe federal courts
all the tinme and those non-site opinions they
still informus as litigators as to what the

| i kely outcone is and so | think you heard
earlier today the professor nmentioned that the
coal cases, you know, those are al nost all under

contract now because they have sonme certainty
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fromthe coal cases that existed at the begi nning
of this type of regulation and so |I think you
woul d see that sane kind of effect if those
arbitration results were made public with

obvi ously trade secret information redacted.

CHAIR M LLER: Deputy Secretary
Whodwar d, do you have anything to add to that?

MR, WOODWARD: | woul d just say the
USDA does feel that it should be binding but, of
course, the devil is in the details.

CHAIR M LLER:  Unh-huh. D d you want
to ask a foll ow up questions?

VI CE CHAIR BEGEMAN: Do you mind if |
ask anot her question? M. Tiller, back to the
arbitration programthat does exi st between BNSF
and the two Montana Associ ations, with respect to
t he wheat growers essentially, of the world of
farm products grown in Mntana, what percentage
of your industry does actually have access to
this arbitration progran? 10 percent, 2 percent,
80 percent? |I'mjust curious, who is left out?

MR, TILLER Madam Vice Chair, and |
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know M. O Hara will get into what percentages on
his farmare represented by the different
commodities. He can provide that to you. Weat

i s the nunber one commobdity in the State of

Mont ana.

VICE CHAIR BEGEMAN: It is?

MR TILLER Yes. So nost farners, at
| east at some point, include wheat in their crop
rotation. | can safely say, w thout quoting an
exact percentage, that a vast majority of Montana
farmers are putting wheat in the ground at sone
poi nt during their rotation and if you'd liKke,

M. O Hara probably has nore detailed
i nf or mati on.

VICE CHAIR BEGEMAN: Is it the
associ ations that have to arbitrate or is it the
actual grower that has the opportunity to
arbitrate?

MR TILLER Do you know the answer to
t hat question?

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN:  You can answer

for the record if you don't know. Wth BNSF
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here, they can answer as well.

MR, TILLER  Yes, and | know t hat
Kevin Kaufrman is here as well and he can answer
t hat .

VI CE CHAIR BEGEMAN. He's no | onger
with BNSF, | don't think.

MR, TILLER No, he is not but he is
here.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN: He does have a
wealth of information, | know that.

MR TILLER Yes.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN: M. O Hara?

MR. O HARA: Specifically, through the
arbitration that has been used once and |'m sure
Kevin will correct nme if I'mwong when he has a
chance, it was on one specific freight rate from
Shel by, Montana to the Pacific Northwest. The
per cent age of our wheat that goes to there is
zero. So, what percentage of the wheat that
woul d be affected by that freight rate from
Shel by, | couldn't answer that question because

it was specifically to that point of origin. It
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woul d be not a |l arge percentage of the wheat in
the State of Montana.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN:  Thank you.

CHAIR MLLER M. Tiller, | have one
final question. Just the nature of grain and the
mul tiple origination points in many ways,
destination points, nake it understandabl e why
there don't tend to be a | ot of contract
novenments but |'mwondering is that sonething
that you all have tried to create opportunities
to get contracts for novenents that nore conmonly
have gone under tariffs? |Is that even an
opportunity for your farmers?

MR TILLER Well Madam Chai r nan,
obviously and I'mnot | conpletely understand
your question but many farners do contract with a

pur chaser at the begi nning of the season.

CHAIR MLLER I'mthinking with the
railroad.

MR TILLER When it comes to the
rail road, you will see that our |arger elevators,

| i ke Colunbia Gains of the world, they are
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contracting rates. However, it is the smaller
el evators who are paying the tariff and are
sonetines left with purchasing freight on the
secondary narket when they need it, which is an
added cost and so no, it's not, they are not
getting the benefit of contracted rates and it's
private too. Again, back to the coal exanple,
you don't know what a good rate is. Wat are
ot her people negotiating? Until you have that
precedent, until the STB has cone out and said
these are the rates and this is how we determ ned
this, I mean that is really the notivating
factor. That's the influence, to bring it to the
table to say let's put this under contract
because it's fair.

CHAIR M LLER: Thank you all very
much. Thank you for being here and again, M.
O Hara, thank you for coming in. W really do
appreciate it. It's very hel pful.

MR, TILLER  Thank you for the
opportunity.

CHAIR M LLER  So, Panel IIl, which is
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t he Association of Anerican Railroads, if you
could start making your way to the front.
Everybody ready? So, we have Tinothy Strafford,
Counsel to the AAR and John T. Gray, Senior Vice
President for Policy and Economics. Wl conme to
bot h of you. Thank you for being here. M.
Strafford?

MR. STRAFFORD: Good norni ng Chair man
MIller, Vice Chairman Begenan. M nanme is Tim
Strafford. |1'mhere today on behal f of the
Associ ation of Anerican Railroads. |'mjoined by
ny col |l eague John Gray, Senior Vice President for
Economi cs and Policy at the AAR.  This norning, |
will provide a brief overview of the AAR s
comments in this proceeding and try to put this
proceedi ng into historical context of the
agenci es previous attenpts to craft rate
reasonabl eness standards consistent with the
statutory responsibilities. M. Gay wll then
briefly discuss the econom ¢ environnent in which
rail roads transport grain products, the economc

under pi nni ngs of sound rail rate regulation and
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the flaws and proposal s made by shi pper interest
in this proceeding. |1'd be happy to answer any
guestions the Board nay have at the concl usion of
our testinony.

The Board began this proceeding with
the stated goal of ensuring that its rate
r easonabl eness process is accessible for railroad
custonmers that ship or receive grain. There is a
fundanental difference between ensuring a process
is avail abl e, the proposals by shipper interest
in this proceeding that received rate
prescriptions based on econonically suspect
revenue desirable cost ratios and generic
fornmulas. There is no basis in this record or
any other for the Board to conclude that the
transportation of grain should be subject to
uni que rate reasonabl eness rules. The AAR
submts the Board's processes are accessible to
rail road custoners and ot her stakehol ders and
that recent efforts by the Board have made t hem
nore so. Through its rail customer and public

assi stance program the Board makes its staff
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avai l abl e to answer inquiries about its processes
and engage in informal nediation efforts. Were
formal rate relief has been sought, the Board has
established two fornms of sinplified rate cases.
In the four cases decided under its
si npl est three benchmark process have rendered
deci sions within nine nonths. Mandatory
medi ation is part of all rate conplaint
proceedi ngs. |In response to calls from shipper
groups, the Board has |lowered its filing fees for
conpl aints down to $350, well below | evels
ot herwi se consistent with its user fee policy.
Al'so in response to requests by shippers, the
Board recently increased limts on relief on
sinplified cases by elimnating the [imt on
sinplified SAC and nearly quadrupling the limt
on three benchmark cases. Sone shi pper coments
in this proceeding and sone of the Board's
guestions in the notice scheduling this hearing,
refer to the concept of revenue adequacy.
For the purposes of today's hearings,

there are no uni que aspects of grain
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transportation that requires special
consi deration of revenue adequacy in this
proceedi ng. The Board has already conpiled a
separate record in X party 722 and schedul ed a
two-day hearing for next nonth. The AAR intends
to participate in that hearing and provi de expert
testinony on issues related to revenue adequacy.
My col |l eague, M. Gay, will speak to
sonme of the econom c principals underling sound
rail rate regulation and sonme of the problens in
shi pper proposals in this record that would rely
on unrestricted rate conparisons. Before he
does, I'd like to briefly note sone of the
hi storical struggles the agency has confronted in
j udgi ng the reasonabl eness of rail rates and
consi der some of those efforts that the court
adj udged to be arbitrary and capricious. This
hi story helps illustrate the | egal standards that
woul d apply to efforts to craft special rate
reasonabl eness rules for grain traffic.
Prior to the legislative refornms of

the 1970's, the I CC prescribed rates using its
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traditional pre-reformcriteria. Rate

conpari sons with other sim/lar novenents,

anal ysis of economc inpact to the community and
a determnation of the railroad's fully allocated
costs of nmoving traffic. This, along with other
regul atory constraints, contributes to a railroad
i ndustry in severe financial distress.

By 1978, the agency recognized the
rate conparisons were of limted value. The
agency began the long effort to determ ne rate
gui delines that would be consistent with sound
economics to three and four RX and later the
St aggers Act which culmnated in 1985, Coal Rate
Qui del i nes Decision. During that process, the
| CC struggled to find an appropriate way to all ow
for the necessary differential pricing for a
healthy rail systemthat could invest to neet
cust omer demand. The agency recogni zed the need
for pricing above fully allocated cost |evels and
tried to apply a 7 percent additive to attenpt to
reflect differential pricing. The courts

rejected this so called 7 percent solution as
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arbitrary and capricious. The agency al so
consi dered judging rates based on a ton to ton-
mle ratio but later recognized that such an
approach did not reflect custoner demand for
service. Coal rate guidelines recognized the
need for differential pricing and railroad rate
maki ng and a need for the rate reasonabl eness
standards to reflect demand characteristics.

The standal one cost standards
i mpl enented reflect such principals to ensure
that where a railroad has market dom nance, a
conpl ai ni ng shipper is not required to subsidize
parts of the network it does not use or pay for
inefficiencies. As the Board well knows, the SAC
standard can be tinme consum ng, conplex and
expensive. This is not necessarily surprising as
rail roads are networks noving a m x of
conpetitive and captive traffic and different
service and different equipnent. Railroad rates
used to be conplex litigation with hundreds of
mllions of dollars at stake. Conparable

litigation in the federal courts is tine
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consum ng and conpl ex as wel |.

The AAR has long stated its desire to
work with the agency to streamine the SAC
process where possible. Railroads do not |ike
spendi ng noney on | awers and consultants any
nore than shi ppers do but the proposals by
shi pper interest in this proceeding are not ained
at inproving the Board's processes but instead
are RIVC tests untethered from econon c theory
and unconstrained by any linmts on relief.
Previous attenpts to avoid the econom c anal ysis
of market demand and cross subsidy by applying
such tests have been overturned by the courts.

McCarty Farnms, the ICCtried to
shortcut an econonm c analysis of the rates at
i ssue and instead | ooked at whether the R/ VC
rati os generated by those rates were hi gher than
t hose of the comparison benchmark traffic. The
court of appeals for the DC circuit found that
the I CC s approach and expl anation | acked
"“supporting principal or intellectual coherence”

and the agency "had not intelligibly explained
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why the tradeoff chosen was reasonable". The
court concluded that R/ VC conpari sons not passed
for recent decision-nmaking and the court remanded
the case to the ICC. M. Gay will address the
limted val ue and econoni c neani ng of R/ VC
rati os.

| just note, in closing, that the only
i nstance where R/VC rati o conparisons have
wi t hstood judicial scrutiny in the |ast 35 years,
has been their use in the three benchmark test
where they have been allowed in cases of limted
val ue in response to direct congressional
aut hori zation for the agency to devel op
sinplified nethodol ogies for small val ue cases.
The agency and the courts have explicitly
recogni zed that the three benchmark test is crude
and i nprecise and the Court of Appeals for the DC
circuit has observed that the three benchmark
process does not facilitate the search for truth
and "there is good reason to believe that
j udgnments rendered pursuant to the three

benchmark franework nore often than not, will be
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the antithesis of nmathematical certainty". The
only justification for the use of R VC
conpari sons at all has been their limted
application; put Iimts on relief in small cases.
The Board has only justified their use by stating
that nost rates are set according to narket
forces and nost regul ator rates should be subject
to the SACtest. Wth that, I'Il turn things
over to John.

MR, GRAY: Thanks Tim [|'m John G ay.
"' m Seni or Vice President for Policy & Econom cs
at AAR and today, |'d like to put the discussion
on the grain rate issues into a bit of economc
cont ext .

First, to quickly overview the rai
system Today, railroads account for about 40
percent of our nations inner city freight ton-
mles and serve nerely every agricultural,
i ndustrial, wholesale, retail resource base
sector in our econony including both grain and
grain related products. In 2014, US C ass |

railroads originated alnost 1.5 mllion carl oads
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of grain which translates into alnost 140 mllion
tons of grain. Wile significant, grain
represents only 4.9 percent of total carloads and
7.6 percent of total tonnage for the rail system
as a whole. The United States is the world's top
grain producer with average US grain production
from 2005 to 2014 of 533 mllion tons. What
crops are grown where and in what quantities and
how and when they are transported is determ ned
by conplex interaction with international and

ot her market forces. The variety of forces that

i mpact grain production consunption nmake it clear
t hat generalized concl usions about grain are
exceedingly problematic. Sinply put, there is no
honbgenous grain market in the United States or
anywhere else in the world.

As illustrated in AAR' s witten
testinony, various types of grains and grades of
grai n have uni que characteristics and are al so
mar ked by uni que market volatility. Like US
grain production generally, US grain exports al so

fluctuate sharply because they are a function of
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many conpl ex market, regulatory and geopolitica
factors. Anerican grain shipper's benefit from
strong conpetition anong railroads, trucks and
barges. According to 2011 USDA data, the nopst
recent avail able, the truck share of total US
grains transported was al nost 60 percent. Wen
conpared with the just 28 percent for railroads
and 12 percent for barges.

The fact that the trucks share of tons
has been rising for several years, it was only 50
percent in 2006, is strong evidence of the narket
and of the intensity of the conpetition that
railroads face if they wish to participate in
grain markets. There is no escaping the reality
t hat absent governnent subsidy shippers including
grain shippers nust pay for rail services they
demand. G owh in this demand will provide the
incentive for railroads to nmake the investnents
needed to increase the capacity in their networks
but only if freight rates are allowed to refl ect
t he true market pl ace.

In recent years, railroads have been
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putting nore noney back into their networks than

ever before. From 1980 through 2014, they spend

$575 billion of their own funds on renewal,

mai nt enance and expansion of their infrastructure
and equi prent. Even so, nuch renains to be done.
For this reason, expenditures have rapidly

accel erated during the |last seven years with

al rost $165 billion spent during this period.

An additional $29 billion in spending
is planned for 2015. Recently, in a public
hearing and in witten cormments to the Board, it
was suggested that railroads needs to invest nore
in capacity to alleviate the service issues that
occurred in parts of the country. W agree.
However, we nust al ways renenber that the
railroad's ability to commt massive funding to
their network is entirely dependent on financi al
performance that produces the necessary cash fl ow
and returns on investnment. There is no question
that the majority of rail rates, including rail
rates for transporting grain, are driven by

conpetition including conpetition between
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rail roads, other nodes of transportation and by
product and geographi c conpetition, both at hone
and overseas. This conpetition results in grain
rates that are neasured by revenue per ton mile
bei ng 29 percent |lower on an inflation just basis
in 2013 versus 1981. The sane neasure is al so
| ower for major individual types of grain as
wel | .

Mor eover, according to USDA data from
2000 to 2013, the last year again that is
avai l abl e, average prices that farners paid for
nost of their supplies rose nuch faster than the
rail rates to nove their grain. Sonme novenents
of grain are governed by rail transportation
contracts. Additionally, over 60 percent nobves on
common carrier tariff rates generating revenues
to variable cost ratios bel ow 180 percent. Thus
the potential universe for rate conplaints by
grain shippers is relatively small. For those
limted instances where the Board is authorized
by statute to regulate rates, economnically sound

regul ati ons should seek to sinulate conpetitive
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outconmes rather than artificially constrained
rail road rates bel ow conpetitive market |evels.
So what do the econom cs of rail regulation and
operation tell us about what should be the

out cones of sound regul ati on shoul d be?

First, because econom es of density
exist in the railroad industry, that is that the
unit cost of transportation declines as traffic
vol une increases, marginal costs are al nost
al ways | ower than average costs. In other words,
the cost to a railroad with handling an
additional unit of traffic is usually less than
t he average cost of handling each unit of
traffic. Because of high, fixed costs associ ated
with track, facilities and equi pnent and the need
for railroads to cover their risk adjusted
capital costs, railroads cannot price all their
traffic at margi nal costs or even an average
variable cost and still cover their total costs.
Any firmthat cannot cover all of its costs,
ulti mately cannot survive.

Nei ther can railroads price on the
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basi s of average costs. Because of conpetition,
much rail traffic noves at rates bel ow average
costs and above margi nal costs. Any traffic
novi ng at rates above margi nal costs makes at
| east sonme contribution to the fixed cost and
everyone is therefore better off than they woul d
be if that traffic were not noving at all. If
the rates on traffic were raised to the average
total cost, much of this traffic would be
diverted to other nodes and would sinply not nove
at all. That traffic's contribution to fix costs
woul d be lost. If this happens, railroads woul d
| ose revenue than they woul d have had ot herwi se.
Ei t her the revenue woul d have to be made up
t hrough other rail customers or the railroads
woul d have to reduce costs perhaps by reducing
enpl oynent, service offerings, cutting
reinvestnents or elimnating infrastructure or by
sonme ot her means.

For a sustainable rail system it is
absol utely necessary to price service

differentially based on demand in order to all ow
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the possibility of recovering their variable
costs plus a fixed cost plus the risk adjust and
cost of capital. Wthout differential pricing,
the rail industry could not have achieved its

t remendous gains operating efficiency and the
financial health which in turn, have all owed the
railroads to nake their massive investnents in

t he networks and to accommodate their custoner's
needs. This rate regulation principal

i mpl enented by the | CC and the Board foll ow ng
the Staggers Act, was not a tenporary renedy to
address the financial state of the industry.

Rat her, demand based, differential pricing was a
structural reformreflecting fundanental railroad
economi cs.

Now, I'd Iike to address sonme very
specific issues in this proceeding. The
proposal s made by shi pper groups for grain
speci fic reasonabl eness rates shoul d be rejected.
Sinmply put, the economics of rail transportation
do not change based upon the commodities in the

rail car. Wen shipper groups, including grain
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shi ppers, conplain about the stand al one cost
test or other Board nethodol ogi es, they often
sinply don't like the result produced by sound
econoni cs. For exanple, when the groups that
represent grain shippers talk about the SAC test
bei ng unwor kabl e for shippers on |ight density

| i nes, what they frequently are saying is that a
SAC analysis will show that rates are not

unr easonabl e.

When they say that varied destinations
of grain traffic nmake grains case anal ysis
difficult, the Board shoul d consi der whether a
grain conplaint would be significantly nore
conpl ex than chem cal cases which incidentally
may i nvolve hundreds of origin destination pairs
that it is already considering. Wen grain
shi ppers say diverse origin destination |anes
make great prescriptions undesirable, the Board
shoul d consider how or if the proposals that they
have put forward will solve that problem

Let's ook at a few of the details.

First, the Board should not nake specific
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adj ustnents to URCS wit hout maki ng holistic
changes to the costing system The Alliance for
Rai| Conpetition propose that the Board devel op a
grain cost adjustnent factor because it believes
that the uniformrail costing system overstates
the variabl e costs associated with grain

shi pments. ARC points to the fact that URCS
understates the costs of certain shipnments such
as the shipnent of hazardous nmaterials and

concl udes that URCS nust therefore overstate the
cost of other, non-hazardous materials. The AAR
has states in other proceedings that URCS does
under st ate hazardous material risk costs because,
as Dr. Schnal ensee noted earlier this norning,
they are not even included in URCS. Since they
are not even reported in the RL report on which
URCS i s based.

Thus, in terns of URCS, the costs ARC
is redistribute are really phantomdollars. In
fact, the extensive use of system w de average
costs throughout the regulatory reginme, strongly

counsel s agai nst pi eceneal adjustnments or
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favoring shippers of the 1.5 mllion carl oads of
grain versus the shippers of 15 mllion carl oads
of other commodities and 13 mllion internodal

units. The effect of such approach would be to
| ower the URCS cal cul ation of variable costs for
grain shipnents presumably with the intent to
artificially increase proportion of grain traffic
subject to the Board's jurisdiction. However,
since URCS is a closed system the Board woul d
then need to decide which other lines of traffic
shoul d absorb the increases of costs. Thus, the
Board would ultimately be set in the position of
having to artificially select winners and | osers
on this issue.

Second, both NGFA and ARC offer up a
variance of the Board's three benchmark test and
| ask the Board to use unrestricted RBC
conpari sons. NGFA' s AG commobdity nmaxi mumrate
nmet hodol ogy takes the already crude and
i nappropriately used average RBC ratios for a

group of conparable traffic and reduces that

analysis into a formula. ARC advocates for a two
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benchmark test that ignores conparable traffic
and therefore even the mninmal primtive analysis
of rail markets already enbedded in the three
benchmark nmethod is worth renenberi ng why a
conpari son of RFVCratios tells you al nost
not hi ng about narket demand. Economi sts think
about denmand elasticity in price terns by | ooking
at markup over long run margi nal costs. The URCS
vari abl e costs are not nmargi nal costs, have no
uniformrelationship to nmargi nal costs and can
never be adjusted to, nor approximte the
di rection of marginal costs.

In reality, all an RRVC ratio tells
you i s sonething about the value of a particular
| i ne of business to the provider of that service.
It says nothing about whether the price is that
which is appropriate in the market. 1In the rea
world, two novenents with the sane RFVC rati o can
have very different demand characteristics and
reflect very different market conditions. Wile
such a crude tool may be mninmally acceptable for

sinplified cases with limts on relief, it |acks
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any sort of economic justification as a mnethod
for judging all grain rates. To make matters
wor se, both NGFA and ARC seek to have conpari sons
of challenge rates to RRVC ratios on railroads
ot her than those handling the novenent in
guestion. The Board should reject these calls on
t he sane ground as done in sinplified standards
deci sion. Conparisons of R/'VC ratios of
different carriers defeat the very purpose of
trying to determ ne the appropriate contributions
joint and conmon costs conpl ai ni ng shi pper shoul d
be maki ng. The Board correctly concl uded t hat
"the RRVC ratio of potential captive traffic of
one carrier provides no useful information
concerning the appropriate contribution to fixed
and conmon costs of another carrier".

Third, as part of its fornula, NGFA
woul d have the Board conpare R/'VA ratios of a
chal l enged rate to an average R/'VC rati o that
i ncl udes novenents that are |ess than 180
percent. In sinplified standards, the Board al so

concl uded the conpari son groups shoul d consi st of
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only traffic noving in RRVA ratios in excess of
180 percent in order to judge the anpunt of
contribution to joint and comon costs that the
conpl ai ni ng shi pper should be responsible for.
The Board noted that "the rates available to
traffic with conpetitive alternatives wl|
provide little evidence on the degree of
perm ssi bl e denmand based differential pricing
needed to provide a reasonable return on
I nvest ment ".

In short, ARC and NGFA woul d have the
Board take the worst possible nmeasurenent tool
avai lable, the RRVCratio and use it as broadly
and as inappropriately as possible. Finally, |
woul d Iike to address the appropri at eness of
using RSAM as a rate reasonabl eness tool. RSAM
suffers fromseveral infirmties. First, the
Board' s annual revenue adequacy cal cul ati ons
dramatically understates the rail road net
I nvest ment base and therefore, overstates return
on investnment. Second, any use of averages

presents a ratcheting problem As R/ VC s above
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t he average are noved down by regul ation, the
correspondi ng average noves down as well. Third,
use of such an average fails to recognize that
sonme novenents with higher demand, are
appropriately priced above the average reflected
in the RSAM Fourth, the use of the RSAM as a
rate maki ng tool would force rates bel ow
conpetitive |l evels and does not allow for the
anal ysis of custonmer demand. Finally and
critically, RSAMis just another formof an R VC
ratio suffering fromall the sane frailties and
limtations as a market neasurenment tool as to
all other RI'VC ratios.

In conclusion, | would ask that the
Board continue to rely on sound economcs and its
establ i shed processes as a basis for judging the
reasonabl eness of all rail rates including grain
rates. Thank you.

CHAIR M LLER: Thank you both very
much. This is perhaps not fair because | know
you only heard this norning fromDr. Schmal ensee

but as you were tal king about RSAM and R/ VC bei ng
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very crude, |'mjust wondering how nuch his
description of URCS being flawed and really

unfi xabl e resonated with you and if you'd care to
comment on that as an econom st ?

MR. GRAY: | would coment that I
fully agree that URCS is flawed. It's very
flawed. As | discussed with themactually before
the neeting, | disagree with himon the fact that
it is unfixable. But it is not fixable in the
formin which it exists today. It would take an
enor mous anount of work, probably al nost as | ong
as it would take to change the statutes around it
to create the type of nodeling that woul d
reflect, be able to properly reflect density in
the rail system that would be able to deal with
the | ocation specific issues around the rail
system It would take a trenendous anount of
additional data to do that. So, |'mnot sure
that the fix is practical but | disagree that
wi t h enough noney, that it couldn't be done.

CHAIR M LLER: One of the things |I'm

curious about is the issue of arbitration that
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was raised by the fol ks from Montana and their
interest in seeing nore things arbitrated.

Again, it was an interesting thene that you saw
in Dr. Schmal ensee's presentation when you | ook
at the use of SAC and the conplications of that
process versus arbitration. Wat's your reaction
to the viability of nore arbitration?

MR GRAY: Well | reflect one of Tims
comments in his testinony that rail roads are not
great fans of the noney that is spent on rate
cases in ternms of the |egal fees or the
consultant fees. |In fact, they probably end up
spendi ng nore noney than the shipper conmunity
does. So a nethodol ogy that permits sone
acceleration of the process is attractive to us.
What we object to is not arbitration per se. It
is what | would call conpul sory arbitration. W
feel that arbitration if it is going to exist
needs to be voluntary between the parti es.
Oherwise it's unlikely to lead to a really
satisfactory sol ution.

CHAIR M LLER: We have t he

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

opportunity to arbitration now t hough and it
seens that it's rarely utilized so when left to
the choice of the parties it seens |ike the
parties are rarely willing to choose it. Is that
a m sperception?

MR, GRAY: | can't argue with the fact
that it has been very rarely used and apparently
as you say when left to the discretion of the two
parties involved that it is infrequently used. |
know t hat at | east one of our nenbers has offered
fromthe beginning to participate in arbitration
and | don't believe they've had any --

CHAIR M LLER: Any t akers.

MR, GRAY: Any takers.

CHAIR M LLER: Uh- huh. That's true.
Then one ot her question before | give the vice
chai rman a chance to get in here, but going back
to the issue of grain rates reflecting on the
testi nony that we heard fromthe Mntana
Departnment of Transportation fromM. Tiller,
| ooki ng back to the GAO Study that was done

nearly ten years ago now that tal ked about the
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fact that grain rates were trendi ng hi gher than
ot her conmmodity rates, | don't know if a renewal
of the GAO Study woul d say the sane thing today,
but certainly we have evidence at that tinme and
what we were hearing today fromthe Departnent of
Agricul ture and the Montana Departnent of
Agriculture is that grain rates tend to be
trendi ng hi gher than other cormmodities. Again is
that a m sperception? |Is that a fact? Wy would
grain rates tend to go up higher and faster?

MR GRAY: Well, first of all | had
not | ooked at that specific issue in preparation
for this. W looked at the grain rates within
t hensel ves and noted that yes, they, for a |ong
time they trended | ower and for the last few
years the revenue per revenue ton mle
measur enent that we have since we don't have
access to the actual rates, has noved hi gher.

Now, you know, is it sonmething that is unusual ?
| think on that or is there a reason behind it?
think on that it's probably at best when you have

the panel of the railroads later this afternoon
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to ask them about that because these things tend
to be very individual. They're focused on the

i ndi vidual market that a particular railroad is
engaged in and there are probably instances in
whi ch, significant instances in which grain rates
have not trended higher at a faster rate. | don't
know but that is sonething that the individual
rail roads woul d be nuch better equi pped to answer
t han our organi zati on.

CHAIR M LLER: kay. You want to
junp in, Ann?

VI CE CHAIR BEGEMAN: Yes, | won't take
too nuch of your tinme but | certainly appreciate
your representing a wi de group of nenbers, which
can be kind of difficult, so |I'mnot going to put
you on the spot as nmuch as | mght want. |Is your
nessage that the status quo -- although the 3B
nmet hod i s perhaps inaccurate, but it is
sufficient fromyour industry's perspective with
respect to rate cases?

MR, GRAY: | think that we are al ways

open to inprovenents in process. Wat concerns
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us is not inprovenents in the process whi ch make
it nore efficient, make it better for both
parties quite frankly if it is. Wat concerns us
is taking what is already a rather delicate item
| i ke the 3B net hodology, in terns of its economc
validity and pushing it ever further away from
sound economcs. W are always willing to | ook
at other types of proposals but again our
enphasis is that whatever those proposals are and
however they're devel oped, the ability to refl ect
econonmics that is as sound as possible is really
| mportant.

W think that the SAC nmet hod obvi ously
it is something as Dr. Schnal ensee indicated this
nor ni ng, was adapted from ot her network
i ndustries and we think that while it is being
used sonmewhat differently in this context, in the
regul atory context that the STB uses, that it
does represent a concept which has sonme economnic
validity behind it for |ooking at the range in
whi ch reasonable rates mght fall. It does not

necessarily get to the fairness issue that he was
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describing but it does get to a reasonabl eness
issue in ternms the market for those rates.

Li kewi se, the sinplified SAC net hod
retains nost of those characteristics while
sinplifying the application dramatically but
again the concept is process whatever can be done
to inprove that we're interested in. Straying
too far from econom c foundations, no. That's
sonething that is not where we'd like to go and
our problemw th the proposals that are in front
of you is as | said they take basically a very
frail systemin which the 3B nethodol ogy is
econonmically and push it further away from
economi cs.

VICE CHAIR BEGEMAN: Wl I, | will say
that with this proceeding, we really invited any
and all parties, including AAR and the industry,
to offer ideas and put sonething el se on the
table so that we could establish a neaningful,
wor kabl e process that | don't believe we have
necessarily fulfilled yet, and that is still on

the table. Really, | amopen to any and all
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ideas within the law. One of the things that your
boss nentioned during the House T& Hearing in
May was "speed and accuracy," and | can assure
you --- and | think I can for Deb --- that's our
goal as well.

W certainly aren't | ooking to just
make sonet hing up, whatever it takes to get a
case in and out. W want accuracy as well, so I'm
going to state for all the parties, all the
st akehol ders whether you're here or listening in.
| am open mi nded to ideas, creative ideas, maybe
even |like a negotiated rul e maki ng where severa
parties could cone together with different views
and see if there is sonething that fol ks could
tentatively agree on or reluctantly agree on just
totry to nove the process forward. Thank you for
partici pating here today. Thanks, Tim

CHAIR M LLER. So, John, | have a
coupl e of other questions. You said this pretty
clearly I think in your testinony but 1'd like to
hear you say a bit nore about it and that's the

proposal that | think canme from NGFA or perhaps
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it was ARC but that the traffic pool could
i ncl ude ot her railroads.

MR GRAY: Yes.

CHAIR M LLER: And you sort of rejected
that idea but, you know, |I'm wondering whether if
you' re tal ki ng about the western railroads or the
eastern railroads if you don't see enough of the
sanme characteristics in terns of their operating
environment |'mjust wondering why that isn't
reasonable to use themin the conparison group.

MR. GRAY: | think that one of the rea
concerns and |arge part on that is that first of
all as | said, it doesn't tell you a | ot about
whet her those two carriers are in what would be
conpar abl e markets. Even if you're only naking a
regi onal conparison, you find that the railroads
in the two regions while they have sonme narkets
that are in conmon and can be identified in
common, there are an awful | ot of markets that
are very different and have very different
operating characteristics for themto serve those

mar ket s.
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It's not uncommon that you'll have one
railroad that has very different route
characteristics between an origin and destination
pair. It has very different nmeans by which it
has to provide the service between those
| ocations and thus will generate very, very
different RRVC ratios on what is essentially the
sanme market, even if they may have simlar prices
in that market, will generate very different R VC
ratios fromthat market. It's kind of the
reverse issue of what | said earlier where you
have sone instances where novenents that have
very different characteristics will have the sane
R'VC ratio. This is one of those cases where they
may have the sanme very simlar price
characteristics because of the basic narket
they're in but will generate very different R VC
ratios so identifying the details of that is
first of all it's a huge job. It is sonething
you'd have to do on a case by case basis to even
i dentify whether you had simlar noves. Wen you

get to the end of it, you don't really know nuch
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about whet her these noves; even if you can
identify them as sonewhat simlar, you don't know
very nmuch about whether they speak to the issue
of what the contribution that particular traffic
should be to the fixed cost given that the

rail roads' business portfolios, the total

busi ness that they have may be very different and
they may be in very different positions within a
mar ket than another carrier.

So, first of all, it fails in terns of
the just the technical analysis because the
techni cal anal ysis cannot show you that you're
going to get a simlar result because of just the
operating characteristics. It fails probably in
terms of the market analysis and it certainly
fails in ternms of the portfolio business type of
anal ysi s.

CHAIR M LLER: As near as | can tel
in sone ways whether it's shippers | ooking at
vari ous processes or the railroads, | nmean you
hear sone of the sane thing, everybody's

interested in sinplified processes so we can go
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faster and it can be cheaper but when you start
tal king about a sinplified process then depending
on who thinks its disadvantageous to them they
find inaccuracies in that process that then
argues that it's not going to be useful process.
"' mjust wondering, do you have proposals or
approaches that would allow us to sinplify and
speed up our processes while retaining sufficient

detail to be reasonably accurate?

MR, GRAY: Certainly any process which

speeds up anything and sinplifies anything al nost
i nevitably results in conpromn se.

CHAIR M LLER: Ri ght .

MR, GRAY: It results in conprom se,
not just to the parties that m ght be
participating in it but it results in conprom se
of the technical accuracy and it results in
conpromse in the ability to use all avail able
information in the process. So putting together
what is a sinplified process | guess we could
cynically say, we're glad it's your job and not

ours on this, but the reality is that the Board
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has been working on trying to devel op the
sinplified processes so that they have at |east
sonme reasonabl e grounding in econonics for ten
years now and it hasn't proven to be a very
fruitful or productive process for you.

| applaud you for the effort that
you've made in trying to negotiate through this
mnefield, but it is a mnefield and | think we
can say that inproving the process should be a
goal but it is sonmething that is unlikely to
satisfy all parties, no matter what the proposal
is. | think it is, as evidenced by the difficult
time that you' ve had for ten years working on
this project, | think it's going to be very
difficult to nove forward. Wile | wish | had
sone ideas that could help with it, unfortunately
any ideas that | have that woul d make the process
si npl er woul d al so unconditionally conpron se the
validity of the results that you would get and |
think that's a | ot of the concern that you're
runni ng into.

CHAIR M LLER: One final question and
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l"mnot sure if |I understood correctly as you
wer e goi ng through your testinony and you were
tal ki ng about the fact that the RRVCratio really
doesn't tell you anything about narket and
mar gi nal cost pricing and what that is versus
average price. Did | understand you to say that
the marginal price is the best way to eval uate
the market price or did | m sunderstand?

MR GRAY: No, no. Econom cs says
that in a perfectly conpetitive world that the
price that you would charge in a narket would be
equal to the total marginal cost. [It's an
econoni c concept that's very, very difficult to
actually put into reality but it says that you
woul d price at marginal cost. What | was saying
on that was that because of the issues of density
that we have where the margi nal cost tends to get
much | ower much qui cker as you add volune to the
network than does the average cost or certainly
the total cost, effectively you cannot sustain a
railroad pricing at marginal cost. It just can't

be done.
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CHAIR MLLER. | said that was ny
final question but actually, | have one nore
guestion. Well, actually I'Il just leave it
there for now [|'ll just leave it there for now.

We'l|l come back to it maybe in July. Thank you
both very much for being here and we'll be
interested in hearing what your nenber railroads

have to say this afternoon. W can explore sone

of these issues in nore detail. Thank you very
much. | think we will plan to take our |unch
break now.

So |I've been asked to rem nd you,
which is the conplicated i ssue around |unch, that
security wants to be sure that you are aware that
if you | eave the building for your |unch break,
| eave your |uggage and bags in the Hearing room
so none of those have to be re-screened again
because you will have to sign in again when you
conme inif so you can let's sinplify that com ng
back into the building thing as nuch as possi bl e.
This may just be hopeful thinking but we'll try

to start again at 12:30 if at all possible. |
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know there are sone difficulties because you're
going to have to | eave the building and get
signed back in and if that proves to be too
aggressive, we'll certainly try to give people an
opportunity to reconvene. \Wat's nost inportant
Is that our Panel |1V nmenbers are able to be back
to the building so if they' re here and Ann and |
are here, we'll get started. Oherwi se we'll

wait for themto conme back

(Wher eupon, the above-entitled natter
went off the record at 11:48 a.m and resuned at
12: 37 p.m)

CHAIR M LLER: Qur panel has done an
exceptional job of being here right on tine and
ready to go so let's get started with our fourth
panel of the day and it should be an interesting
one when we get to hear nore about this proposal
t hat has al ready been di scussed extensively even
t hough we've not gotten through it yet so we have
fromthe National Gain & Feed Associ ation Kevin
Thonmpson, who is chair of the Rail Shipper

Recei ver Comm ttee; we have Bruce Sutherl and,
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vi ce president at M chigan Agricultura
Commodities; Thomas Crow ey, president of L.E.
Peabody & Associ ates and Thonas W1 cox, a
principle with GKG Law. So we'll get started
with you, M. Thonpson.

MR. THOWPSON. Thank you and good
afternoon. | think, Chairman MI Il er and
Conmmi ssi oner Begenan, |'m Kevin Thonpson,
assistant vice president and transportation | ead
for Cargill, Incorporated in M nneapolis,

M nnesota. | chair the National Gain and Fee
Associ ation's Rail Shipper Receiver Commttee
which is conprised of 24 NGFA nenber conpani es
fromall over North Anerica and responsible for
representing the broad policy interests of NGFA
menber conpani es who ship and receive
agricultural conmodities by rail. NG-A comends
the Board for initiating this public hearing and
for conducting this public hearing to exam ne
proposal s for creating nore accessi bl e,

streanli ned, cost effective and wor kabl e

procedures for captive gain shippers to use to
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challenge rail rates they believe are
unreasonabl e. NGFA's presentation is divided up
into four parts that address NGFA' s subm ssions
generally and al so the technical aspects of our
proposal .

NGFA nenber conpani es are nmjor users
of the nation's rail system Rail represents a
significant nodal share within maj or geographi cal
regions particular in the upper plains states as
wel |l as for major agricultural commodities
i ncluding nore than 70 percent of wheat, 52
percent of barley, 20 to 25 percent of corn and
beans. US Class | railroad revenues for STCC
Code 01 which are foreign products and STCC Code
20 which are food products equal 10.77 billion
and 11.97 billion in 2013 and 2014 respectively.
This represents 14.9 percent of classical and
railroad revenues in 2013 and 15.6 percent of
revenues in 2014. NGFA's opening statenment in
this proceedi ng echoed argunents NGFA made in
proceedi ngs dating back to 2006 detailing why we

believe the Board's three existing rate conpl aint
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procedures sinply are inappropriate and
unwor kabl e for ag commoditi es.

To sumarize, first, pursuing a rate
case under each of the existing procedures is
costly, conplex and tinme consum ng. Second,
agriculture cormmodity novenents typically are not
static or predictable. They typically have
mul tiple origin and destination pairs that vary
year to year as do the annual volunes. Third,
mar ket demand for ag commodities frequently
changes qui ckly which is not conducive to the
timeliness needed to process a rate case under
the Board' s existing procedures. Fourth, rate
setting practices that establish uniformy high
rates across the board for certain commodities or
groups of commodities nake reg relief under even
the three benchmark net hodol ogy unattai nabl e
since those rules are designed to renmedy cases
where a shipper is singled out for nmarket abuse.
This flaw is conpounded by the fact that under
the current three benchmark rules only the

novenents of the defendant railroad may be
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i ncluded in the conparison group.

The NGFA commends the Board for
recogni zing that its current rate conpl aint
process procedures need to change so they are
nore effective, accessible while rendering well
reason and sound outcones. W appreciate the
recent statenents to congress in that regard by
acting Chairman MIller as well as fornmer Chairnman
Elliott during his recent senate confirmtion
heari ng. The NGFA shares these goals. W
bel i eve strongly that having a rate conpl ai nt
process in place that is viewed by both captive
shi ppers and railroads as bei ng reasonably
accessible will have a broad salutary effect in
di sci pli ni ng unreasonabl e rate behavi or by
carriers which now operate in what, at best, is a
duopol i stic market.

Further, we do not believe that

adoption of NGFA's proposal will result in a
torrent of rate cases filed at the STB. | nstead,
by di sci plining nmarket behavior it will change

t he dynam ¢ under which comrercial decisions are

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

137

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

138

made outside of the Board's purview. This is not
unli ke the beneficial inmpacts NGFA has
experienced fromits rail arbitration rules
whereby the nere exi stence of nandatory
arbitration that works has resulted in not nore
arbitrations but reasonabl e busi ness behavi or and
ongoi ng conmuni cati ons between both railroads and
shi ppers to resolve differences in a bal anced
manner .

In any event, the NGFA took very
seriously the Board's willingness to consider
nodi fied or entirely new approaches to repl ace
the current rate rules that apply to captive
grain shippers. W began by serving captive
shi pper nenber conpani es and devi sed a new
approach that contains the follow ng features
that we believe are essential elenments of any new
rate conpl ai nt approach for captive shippers of
Ag commodities ultimtely adopted by the Board.

First, the approach nust be accessible
and i nexpensive to adm nister and preferably

shoul d be based upon an objective fornmula to
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provide a formfor conplaints with smaller
claims. In this regard, the NGFA s net hodol ogy
relies upon information obtainable fromthe STB
or avail able publicly and does not allow the use
of other relevant factors or other nethods
utilized in the current three benchmark rul es
that at times have been injected by railroads to
conplicate and del ay such cases.

Second, the rule nust provide a
meani ngf ul constraint on the current unfettered
ability of railroads to virtually dictate if they
wi sh to the markets to which captive ag conmodity
shi ppers can serve sinply through their rate
pricing or other neasures. The rules also should
reasonably preserve rail revenues and carrier's
ability to continue to invest in their networks.
We believe the NGFA' s proposed net hodol ogy
acconplishes this by using a rate conparison
approach sonmewhat simlar to the Board' s current
t hree benchmark approach that also takes into
account both revenue adequacy determ nati ons and

the current market for the type of captive
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traffic whose rate is being chall enged.

Third, any new system nmust provide for
expedi ted presentation of evidence, pronpt agency
del i berations and tinely decisions given the
fluidity and i nherent changes in the US and
gl obal agricultural nmarkets. NGFA' s proposa
achieves this by establishing a procedural
schedul e under which the Board could issue a
final decision within 170 days after a conpl ai nt
is filed, which we believe is a mninumtine for
a decision that parties could reasonably expect.

NGFA has al so proposed that the new
rate conplaint rules apply to a broad range of
agricultural conmodities as opposed to a narrow
subset of just grain. W recognize that our
recommendat i ons i ncludes grain based products
such as ethanol and bio-diesel. Qur rationale is
that the Board should err on the side of being
nore rather than less inclusive at this stage of
the process. W note that the 68 agricul tural
comodi ties and products that we propose be

eligible for the new rate chall enge process are
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identical to those that were agreed to by the
rail roads to be covered under NGFA s rail
arbitration rules.

Further, NGFA's proposal urges the
Board to reconfirmand if necessary clarify
existing rules that allow parties directly or
indirectly affected by potentially unreasonabl e
rates to seek relief. This would permt parties
such as farnmers who did not directly pay rail
rates but often bear the brunt of railroad
i ncreases to chall enge the reasonabl eness of the
rail rates charged to captive shippers such as
el evators to whomthey sell their crops and to
obtain refunds or other damages for their share
of the increased costs attributable to the
unreasonabl e rate | evels.

Finally, and inportantly, the NGFA
firmy believes that new rules to judge the
reasonabl eness of the rates for ag commodity
shi pments nust include a conponent that takes
i nto account the revenue adequate status of the

def endant rail road. The Board and the industry
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have entered a new phase where the rail revenue
rel at ed objectives of the Staggers Act of 1980
for carriers have been achi eved and that the
classman railroads are or nearly are revenue
adequat e under Board procedures. This should
change the way the Board exercises its regulatory
responsi bility.

So NGFA' s proposed net hodol ogy
i ncludes a way that revenue adequacy can be
accounted for in rate reasonabl eness
determ nations. As stated in NGFA' s reply
comments, the Board should reject argunments to
keep the status quo. These argunents ignore the
ground truths that have energed as a result of
t he reduced conpetitive options available to ag
comodity shippers fromthe consolidation of the
rail industry into regional duopolies. Sinply
put, ineffective and unworkable rate
reasonabl eness rul es have enabl ed and enbol dened
the railroads to extract excessive profits from
captive agricultural shippers at tines

determ ni ng who wi ns and who | oses and serving
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donestic and gl obal agricultural markets. Qhers
will propose that arbitration should be the sole
renedy avail able to captive shippers to challenge
unreasonabl e rail rates.

As the Board knows, the NG-FA is a huge
proponent of arbitration and as a form or
resol ving disputes in a know edgeabl e, cost
ef fective and busi ness-li ke manner. W believe
the nere existence of arbitrati on encourages nore
di rect and earnest communi cation between parties
and trying to resolve business rel ated di sputes.
NGFA's rail arbitration system has been around
since 1998. It was devel oped with the
i nvol venent and cooperati on of several of the
Class | railroads participating in this
proceedi ng. But while the NGFA s rail
arbitration system provides for conpul sory
arbitration of several specific types of disputes
between railroads and rail users, we have been
unsuccessful thus far achieving agreenent anong
rail carriers to consider naking arbitration of

rail rate conplaints nandatory despite a couple
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serious attenpts to do so. The NGFA, of course,
remai ns receptive to future di al ogue with rai
carriers on this possibility. | should hasten to
add that there is nothing to preclude a rail
carrier fromvoluntarily agreeing to arbitrate a
rate dispute with a shipper now under the NGFA's
exi sting system The STB' s experience has al so
been that arbitrati on has never been shown to be
usable for rate disputes. That may yet occur
soneday but until then there is real and
i medi ate need for the Board to establish new
rules that are accessible to captive agriculture
shi ppers and producers.

| also wanted to briefly address the
Board's request that parties address requirenent
that carriers file agricultural contract
sumaries pursuant to 49 CF. R part 1313. NGFA
has previously suggested in ex parte 725 that the
board make summaries nore readily accessible to
rail shippers electronically and that the data be
sear chabl e. Al so one of ny coll eagues at

Cargill found a letter in that proceeding
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suggesting that the Board may be nore diligent
about ensuring the railroads submt the data that
is called for in the regulations such as specific
QD pairs instead of vague ranges of origins and
destinations that are not particularly useful or
informative. We will provide additional
i nformation and t houghts when we file on the
record.

Now, let me turn to ny coll eague, M.
Sut herl and, who wi Il discuss sone of the inpacts
that current rate setting practices enployed by
rail carriers can have on the ability of
agriculture shippers to serve markets and the
farmer custoners.

MR, SUTHERLAND: Thank you, Kevin.
Good afternoon acting Chairman M Il er and Vice
Chai rman Begeman. | am Bruce Sut herl and, vice
presi dent of M chigan Agricultural Commodities
headquartered in Lansing, Mchigan. | amalso a
menber of NGFA' s Board of Directors and appearing
today at the request of NG-A to add sone current

real world perspectives on the rate issues you
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are considering in this proceeding.

As a brief background, M chigan

Agricultural Commodities, otherw se known as MAC,

was established in 1976 and consists of eight
grain elevators at seven | ocations throughout

M chigan with conbi ned storage capacity of over
43 mllion bushels. Qur facilities annually
handl e approximately 50 m | lion bushels of corn,
soy beans, dry edible beans and oats. MAC al so
oper at es an agronony busi ness that serves our
producer custoners in two |ocations in central
M chi gan.

M chigan is a short |ine dom nated

state and CSX Transportation is the dom nant and

often the only Class | connection for our short
line railroads. The nmgjority of M chigan
agricultural shippers are short |ine served and,
therefore, captive to CSX by C ass | connection
we had reached both donmestic and export markets
served by CSX and other Class | railroads. In
many ways, | regret the business rel ated

ci rcunstances that cause ne to be here today. |
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al so amreluctant to single out one C ass |
railroad for attention since the rate issues
faced by agricultural commodity shippers are
common to all Cdass | railroads. However, the
recent actions finalized on May 29, 2015 by CSX,
essentially changed its rates for agricultural
comodi ties nationwi de provided a tinely exanpl e
to this Board as to why captive agricultural
comodi ty shi ppers need access to a workabl e,
cost effective and expeditious rate conpl aint
process.

Let me provide a few specifics. CSX
rates for corn and soy beans are published in CSX
tariff 4315. Since 1999, very few novenents of
these commodities are by contract anynore by
carrier choice.

In April of this year, CSX announced
to the agricultural industry they had decided to
si mul t aneously nake whol esal e changes to nany of
its common carrier rates for agricul tural
commodities in Mchigan and ot her M dwestern

states. This was not done on an i ndivi dual
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custonmer basis but rather on a systembasis. The
i ncreased their rates and the rate spread for

M chi gan shi ppers ranged from 35 to 100 percent
and they are to take effect Cctober 1 of this
year. Wen | refer to a rate spread, | nean the
geographi cal and cents per bushel difference

bet ween Col unbus, Chio, which is one of the base
points for the CSX tariff 4315 and specific
origins naned in each state of the tariff. Two
of MAC s elevator locations in Breckenridge and
Marl ette, Mchigan were the nost affected by this
action with a rate increase of over 70 percent
applied to each location. This increase added
12.8 cents per bushel to those el evator shi pping
costs which far exceeds typical grain trading
margi ns. The increase forced us to imedi ately
reduce prices by 10 cents per bushel for corn and
soy beans purchased from farmer custoners that do
business with those two facilities just to cover
the increased freight rate. Since these two
facilities handle nore than 15 m|lion bushel s of

corn and soy beans annually this increased rail
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rate translates to a $1.5 mllion reduction in
i ncome to these corn and soy bean custoners.

Unfortunately, our conpany is not
al one. 1've heard reports of other shippers
operating facilities in Mchigan, Illinois, Chio,
and Indiana with even nore severe rate increases
that result in reduced price bids to farnmers of
up to 20 cents or nore per bushel. These
increases in rail rates are several orders of
magni tude greater than typically thin grain
tradi ng margi ns.

Consequently, if we were able to be
price conpetitive in selling comobdities to
i nvested users and foreign buyers that we
i nevitably have to try to pass on the cost of
i npacts we can't absorb back to the farnmer
custonmers. Seldomare we able to pass such costs
forward to the ultimte buyer as they have
ultimate sources of supply in the grain market,
which is a truly conpetitive market.

CSX is but one part of the overall

donestic and gl obal agricultural marketpl ace.
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The dramatic changes in the rates have resulted

i n changing the conpetitive balance in M chigan
and surroundi ng states and they stand to change
the flow of grain that normally woul d occur based
on the response to market demand. |In sone cases,
the new CSX rate structure will force a shift
fromrail to nmuch less efficient and nuch nore
costly truck transportation, creating nore
burdens on the states' hi ghways, roads and
bridges that already are at or beyond capacity,
given their current condition.

W are still analyzing the effects of
the new rate schene, but it is apparent that it
could result in fewer agricultural comodities
bei ng carried by CSX and a greater concentration
of these commodities being noved on CSX mainline
origins, to the detrinment of the M chigan short
lines which rely on agricultural volumes for that
economi c viability. Unstructured rate increased
for agricultural comodities al so have the
har nful effect of underm ning investnent that we

and others have made in our facilities, often at
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t he direct encouragenent of the rail industry.

MAC spent nore than $35 mllion over
the past five years to increase grain storage and
| oadi ng capacity to be able to handl e both the
grow h and grain production and the ability to
ship 90 car unit trains. The latter of which was
done in response to warnings from CSX about the
need to make i nprovenents to neet larger train
sizes that are preferred by the railroad.
MIlions of dollars simlarly have been invested
by other rail shippers in their storage and
handling facilities for simlar reasons. | know
of an NGFA Menber Conpany in GChio that invested
in expanding its facilities to handle 90 car unit
trains based on the inplicit or explicit
assurance fromthe Class | carrier, that the
rates spread through Col unbus woul d remain
conpetitive and be preserved.

However, the new 90 car unit trains
prices are now the equival ent to what previously
applied to only 3 car shipnments. This nenber

bel i eves the rug has been pulled out from under
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them OQher Class | railroads engage in simlar
pricing behavi or but CSX provides a current
exanpl e that substantiates the assertions in NGFA
submi ssions in this proceedi ng about how
unstructured unilateral rate increases can and do
dermar ket the novenent of agricultural comobdities
to donmestic and export markets.

In fact, another NGFA nenber conpany
reports that rail rates charged for transporting
mlling wheat from South Dakota through the
Chi cago gateway increasingly are being
i npl enented on percentage basis which
di sportionately affects shippers with higher base
rates. Rates were increased by five cents per
bushel in January 2015 for mlling wheat from
Sout h Dakota through the Chi cago gateway and are
schedul ed for additional three cent per bushel
i ncrease effective August 1. This shipper
reports that it had just invested $5 mllion in
track and storage upgrades as well.

These unil ateral rate actions can have

t he out cone of changi ng of conpetitive dynam cs
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Wi thin our industry and, in fact, picking w nners
and | osers based on a carrier's dictates and
preferences on which types and sizes of
facilities that it desires to serve and
commodities it wishes to carry. MAC believes
broad geographic areas of CSX grain origin
markets will see wenching changes as a result of
these rate increases and structure, wth
comensurate disruptions in customary grain flows
to customers.

From a gl obal perspective, it is not
unreasonabl e to anticipate that these increased
freight costs will encourage custoners
particularly those near ports to pursue inports
of grain from South America as a nore cost
conpetitive alternative to the detrinent of US
farmers and the American econony.

MAC and NGFA believe that the
exi stence of effective and a successful
agricultural rate rails rules would help prevent
or mtigate sone of the adverse consequences of

the railroad pricing behavior exhibited by d ass
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| railroads.

Again, we don't believe that this
woul d result through dozens of rate cases being
filed before the Board. Rather such neani ngf ul
regul atory backstop would alter the current
mar ket dynam ¢ such that railroads m ght not be
inclined to nake such dramatic and arbitrary rate
proposals in the first place and captive shi ppers
t hat conclude that they are harmed by such
practices would have a better chance of reaching
mut ual Iy accept abl e comrercial resolutions for
their differences.

Thank you for this opportunity to
di scuss sone of the real world inpacts that
actual rate setting practices by rail carriers
have had on captive shippers and our farner
custonmers and our markets we serve. Now |']
turn to M. Crow ey to explain NG-A s proposal.

MR. CROALEY: Good afternoon. Thank
you, Bruce. To be effective a rail rate regine
for agricultural commodities nmust neet certain

criteria. The rules nust provide neani ngful
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constraint against the ability of railroads to
unilaterally control access to captive ag
commodity markets while reasonably preserving
rail road revenues and incentives to invest in
their systens. The rules nust be inexpensive to
adm ni ster and based upon an objective formula.
The rul es nmust all ow expedited evidentiary
presentations and expedited final decisions.
Commodity producers, elevators, internediaries,
and processors captive to a single railroad at
origin and/or destination have little or no
ability to expand their business and to try to
devel op and/ or sustain |local communities.

| f rate reasonabl eness rul es and
processes are in place for ag cormodities it
woul d al | ow shi ppers the opportunity to expand
and sustain their businesses both nationally and
internationally. NG-A proposes a new naxi mum
rate approach for ag commodities. The ag
comodi ti es maxi mum rate net hodol ogy al so known
as ACMRM | will now outline the ngjor

conponents of ACMRM and provi de an exanpl e of how
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one woul d apply the ACVMRM approach and | have
sone slides to help ne. W've got severa
Power Poi nt presentations. |I'mnot sure which one
it is.

CHAIR M LLER What's it called?

MR CROALEY: | don't know.

MR, THOWPSON:. That's NGFA ri ght
t here.

MR, CROALEY: Thank you. That one
goes up? Ckay, thank you. ACMRM uses a
conpari son group approach simlar to the Board's
current 3 benchnmark net hodol ogy but sonme of the
conponents are different than the 3 benchnmark
met hodol ogy. The conpari son group includes rates
for shipnments above and bel ow t he 108 percent
R/'VC cost level. The conparison group includes
shipments fromall railroads, not just shipnents
fromthe incunbent carrier. The shipper woul d
sel ect all conparabl e noves that neet the
selection criteria for the novenment at issue from
a confidential waybill sanple. How do you go

back?
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CHAIR M LLER: W need to go back, is
that it?

MR. CROALEY: Get right to the answer.
QO her one. Yes, that's the one. Ofer ability
to the issue novenent will be based on the
followi ng factors. First, distance plus or mnus
20 percent of the issue novenent mles. Second,
cormodity at the five digit stick level. Third,
the rail car type. Fourth, the rail car owner.
And fifth, the novenent type, whether the
novenment is originating, term nating, originated,
delivered, received, term nated, et cetera.

Even though the conparison group woul d
i ncl ude novenents with R/'VC rati os bel ow 180
percent, the maxi mum reasonabl e rate produced by
this anal ysis woul d be subject to the statutory
180 percent floor. NGFA s ACVRM approach wil |
not allow for the exam nation of other rel evant
factors. It takes a |lawer and a consultant to
handle it. The ACMRM al so nmakes commodities
specific adjustnents to reflect each C ass |

carrier's revenue adequacy standards. This is
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acconpl i shed through the devel opnent of the
Revenue Adequacy Adj ustnent Factor or what we
cal | RAAF.

The use of the RAAF addresses two
flaws in the Board's 3 benchmark adjust nent
approach. First, the RAAF approach takes into
consi deration the amount of issued commodity
traffic and all ocates the burden of hel ping
achi eve revenue adequacy to those conmodities
that provide the nost revenues; and two, it
renoves the overwei ghing of the railroad's
hi storical financial performance by using the
nost current financial data reported to the
Boar d.

The RAAF is calculated as foll ows:

The forrmul a you see up on the screen is the

formul a used to devel op the RAAF. We'Il | ook at

this formula as its laid on the screen and then
we' Il show you an exanple of how it works, but

it's basically broken into two parts. The left
side of the RAAF takes into account the factors

that are readily calculated by the STB. The
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factors on the right, and when | say on the
right, | nmean to the right of the tine sign, are
factors that are drawn fromeither the
confidential waybill sanple or fromex parte

pr oceedi ng.

Usi ng the Union Pacific 2014, 1've
cal cul ated an exanple of the application of the
RAAF for STCC 01132, which is corn. Com ng down
the left hand item colum, the railroad industry
cost of capital, the return on investnent, the
i nvest ment base and the tax rate, all four of
those itens as you can see in columm two are
avai |l abl e and cal cul ated by the Board. The
val ues for these nunbers in 2014 are shown in
colum three. Lines five, six and seven on this
slide are assuned nunbers. W did not have
access to the 2014 UP data fromthe waybil
sanpl es so we assuned these val ues for purposes
of this slide. Line 8 is the first part of the
application of the fornula we were just | ooking
at. Line 9 is the application of the second part

of the fornula.
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When these two parts are conbi ned, the
RAAF for UP for STCC 00132, corn, is -12.5
percent. The way the formula works, a negative
nunber neans the carrier is revenue adequate. A
positive nunber nmeans the carrier is not revenue
adequat e based on the Board's current standards.
The RAAF fits into the overall ACMRM fornula and
the application of that formula is shown in the
exanpl e on the screen. For purposes of this
exanple, all of these nunmbers are hypothetical.
| have included, as part of ny witten comments
in this proceeding, actual exanples of the
application of the ACMRM using the highly
confidential waybill sanple so you can | ook in
that testinony, that file testinony and see rea
wor |l d application of how this would apply, but
for purposes of this exanple, it's all
hypot heti cal .

Now | et nme wal k you through the
application of the ACMRM The first thing we do
is identify the issue novenent paraneters which

are the top six lines on the slide. First is the
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commodity at the five digit STCC |l evel. For

pur poses of this exanple, we're using corn, STCC
01132. The distance in mles. For purposes of
this exanple it's 120 mles. Total revenue per
car and the variable cost per car are shown on
lines three and four. Variable costs are
cal cul ated using the URCS Phase |1l nodel. The
revenue to variable costs ratio is sinply
dividing the rate by the variable costs and the

jurisdictional threshold is the application of

the 1.80 ratio to the variable cost on |ine four.

Now t he conp group, based on the
criteria that was previously outlined, we would
search the confidential way bill file and find
all novenents that neet the selection criteria
for all railroads regardl ess of the revenue cost
rel ati onship and identify them For purposes of
this exanpl e, we have assuned there woul d be
conpar abl e noves on the Union Pacific, the BNSF
and CSXT as shown in colum two of the bottom
table. The distance based on the criteria is

plus or mnus 20 percent around the 120 mle
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i ssue novenent paraneter and the distance in
colum three falls within that bracket. The
revenue per car in colum four is the revenue
appearing for each of those novenents in a
confidential waybill file.

Next we identify the RAAF or the
Revenue Adequacy Adj ustnent Factor for each
carrier for corn. This RAAF woul d be cal cul at ed
for each carrier for the particular commodity
that's the issue novenent and those nunbers
appear in colum five. For purposes of this
exanpl e, we have assunmed as | explained a nonent
ago that the Union Pacific was revenue adequate
and at an RAAF of 12.5 percent. You can tell the
revenue adequacy by the negative sign. BNSF for
pur poses of this exanple is al so revenue adequate
as you can see the negative sign before the 4.2
percent and CSXT is considered revenue inadequate
because there is no negative sign and again these
are based on the current revenue adequacy
procedur es.

W next apply the Revenue Adequacy
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Adj ustnent Factor to the revenues and the results
are shown in colum six. It's sinply taking
colum 4 and either increasing it or decreasing
it for the Revenue Adequacy Adjustnent Factor.
We then conpare the adjusted revenue to the
vari abl e costs and agai n based on Ag Phase |1
for that novenent as it appears in the
confidential waybill file and get the adjusted
RBC ration appearing in columm eight. This is
done for each novenent in the conparabl e group.
W then go to line seven and take the
si npl e average of the RBC ratios appearing in
colum eight for lines A through J. The sinple
average in this exanple is 185.5 percent. W
next adjust or calculate the rate based on this
adjusted RBC ratio by taking the variable costs
of the issue novenent which appears on line four
and multiplying that value by the 185.5 percent.
The result is $742 that appears on |ine eight.
We next identify the maxi numreasonable rate,
which is the greater of the nunmber we just

calculated on line eight or the jurisdictional
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t hreshol d appearing on line six. In this case,
in this exanple the adjusted RBC rati o produced
t he maxi mum rate.

I'"d i ke to change the subject
slightly and tal k about corporate structure and
rail road revenue adequacy. Current STB rul es and
policies allow the railroads |atitude in what
subsidiaries they include in their annual report
form Rl statenment. The Board requires the
railroads to include in their Rl reports
financial and operating statistics for the
consolidated railroad entity. The decision of
what constitutes a railroad and rail rel ated
affiliate and therefore, what and what not to
include in the RL ultimately lies with the parent
conpani es of the railroads.

In addition, the STBin its role as
regul ator of railroad econom c issues in the US
has chosen to require railroads to report only
their US based operations. The Canadi an Nati onal
R1 report filed with the STB covers the prior

Grand Trunk Western and the Canadi an Pacific
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covers the prior Soo Line. For RO purposes,
return on investnment purposes, we suggest that
the Board change its policy and require the CN
and the CP to report on their entire corporate
structure. The chart on the screen denonstrates
the difference between the RO for parent CN and
CP versus the RO for subsidiary, Gand Truck and
Soo and I'd just like to wal k you through that
chart.

On the left side of the chart is the
G and Trunk and Canadi an National ROs. The blue
is the Gand Trunk and the green is the Canadi an
Nat i onal , which we estinmated based on filings at
t he SEC nmade by Canadi an Nationals. You can see
in all years shown the Canadi an National as a
parent had substantially higher ROs than the
Grand Truck Corporation

On the right side, it's a simlar
anal ysis for the Soo Line and the Canadi an
Pacific. The interesting thing here is the 2014
calculations. 1In 2014, there is no return on

i nvestnment for the Soo Line because the Rl report
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of the Soo includes the wite down of the sale of
t he DMRE.

Wiile that wite down had little
i mpact on the parent, as you can see at 16.1
percent estimated RO for the Soo Line portion of
the parent there is no return. It's actually a
negative return. That concludes ny conments and
"1l turn it over to M. WI cox.

MR WLCOX: Good afternoon, Chairnan
MIller, Vice Chairman Begenan. Thank you for the
opportunity to be here today. Wth the remaining
time we have on our panel | was going to address
a few | egal aspects of the NGFA proposal and one
of the other topics that you nentioned in the My
8 hearing notice, that in particular being the 49
C.F.R 1300.5 regulation on notice of grain
rates.

CHAIR MLLER: Could you maybe tal k
nore directly into the mc?

MR. WLCOX: |Is that better?

CHAIR M LLER  Yes.

MR WLCOX: Ckay. So I'mgoing to
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address three of the points as tinmes permts. |f
| don't get to all of them I'Il include it in
our suppl enental comments since you' re keeping
the record open but we want to get to your
guestions, so, the first point is that NGFA
i ncluded in part four of its opening subn ssion a
t hor ough review of the Board' s authority to adopt
a separate rate rule schene for a group or a
cl ass of commodities and then to al so adopt a
rul e schene along the |ines proposed by NGFA
This authority derives from Section 10701(d) (1),
10701(d)(2) and the rail transportation policy.
The original D.C. Circuit opinion in MCarty
Farnms which you heard about earlier today froma
coupl e panels affirmed that the agency has very
wi de | atitude and di scretion when adopting rul es
to the test of reasonabl eness of rail rates.

In June of |ast year, the D.C
Circuit, when they upheld the changes in ex parte
715 to the rate rules confirmed this broad
authority and that under 10701(d)(3) and that the

sinplified approach under that section can be
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used regardl ess of the value of the case. The
court rejected the argunent of the railroad that
there's no statutory mandate to use SAC once the
case reached a certain value and in response to
sonme of the testinony you heard earlier today
fromthe AAR Panel on the 1993 McCarty Farns
opi nion, we explained, this is pages 18 to 20 of
our openi ng evidence, the reasons why that
opi nion or the reasons that the court relied upon
in that decision are no | onger applicable to the
current facts or NGFA's proposal and, in fact,
certain parts of it were overruled by the opinion
in ex parte 715.

In that case, and we go into it in
detail in the opening, the Court, D.C. Circuit,
pl aced a very heavy enphasis on the fact that BN
at that tinme was revenue inadequate and that the
STB or I1CC at that tine needed to ensure that
BNSF, or BN becane revenue adequate and the Court
in that case also | ooked at | think |ooked at two
or three coal cases involving nultiple origins

and destinations and then concluded that grain
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ori ented cases coul d be brought under the SAC
case with the nmultiple origins and destinations
and it's been many years since that decision. W
still haven't seen a grain SAC case so the
Court's rationale for deciding for not uphol ding
an I1CC in that case has been superseded by tine.
And the NGFA's argunents on authority at the end
of the day were really not strongly refuted by
the railroad comenters.

In essence, they only argue that the
STB can't adopt a rate methodol ogy of the type
proposed by the NGFA, that there is no statutory
authority to preclude you fromdoing it. They
are arguing that STB shouldn't and that the Board
shoul d adhere to the status quo and in doing so
they are ignoring a key prem se of the NGFA' s
proposal which you heard about from our panel so
far is that the STB's rate rules, you know, now
must factor in that the Cass | railroads are
revenue adequate or nearly revenue adequate and
t hat changes the past focus on differential

pricing, extrene market pricing, SAC concepts.
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The Board is addressing those issues in EP72 as
was nentioned earlier today but it shouldn't

i gnore revenue adequacy in this proceeding and so
NGFA' s approach was to include revenue adequacy,
sone concept of it or sone way to account for it
in their proposal.

The second point is that sone of the
railroads in their coments have resurrected the
argunment that because NGFA's proposal, its
nmet hodol ogy utilizes RBC conparisons that all ag
commodity rates will be ratcheted down
i medi ately to the 180 percent jurisdictional
threshold. The STB and the D.C. Circuit put that
argunment to bed last year in the EP715 appeal
opinion, at least as to the 3 benchmark and our
nmet hodol ogy is simlar to 3 benchnark.

In that case, the Court agreed with
the STB that ratcheting would not occur under the
3B rul es because in those cases relief would be
limted, an aval anche of cases would be required
and the Board can reassess if it |ooks like

they're being flooded with cases and the rates
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are ratcheting down, the Board can reassess its
rul es and then the | ast point was that there was
a need to bal ance any ratcheting concerns with a
need to give shippers with snaller clains a way
to chal l enge rates.

The third issue is NGFA and you heard
testinony earlier today on the issue of
aggregating of clainms and standing. NGFA feels
very simlar to the Montana w tnesses you heard
earlier today about how you're finding a way in a
ag rate proposal to aggregate clains and to all ow
producers and other parties who don't directly
pay the rate but feel the brunt of the rate to
bring clains. Notw thstanding the railroad
parties and their comments do not disagree that
parties indirectly affected by rail rate
i ncreases could file a conplaint under 11701(b)
but they argued that standi ng woul d be determ ned
on a case by case basis. | believe it was M.
Tiller who, earlier today, pointed out a good
point. That this, would required cases be filed

in order to establish the rules on standing, so
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you'd have to litigate to whether you have
standing, which is a deterrent to bring in a
case. So the guidance fromthe STB on the
parameters of standing, would be hel pful in that
regard rather than requiring soneone to bring a
case to you to determ ne whether standi ng can
occur.

The other issue is whether parties who
indirectly suffer fromrate increases can receive
reparations. The general rules they establish
that the party who paid the rate to the railroad
is entitled to reparations but the ultimte test
is whether there is injury, in fact, or pravity
to the railroad in terns of assessing the rate
and paying the rate, so in that regard the
rail road' s agai n sayi ng no gui dance fromthe STB
i s needed but the Board and effective parties
could explore in a rule nmaki ng whet her and how
various parties affected by railroad rate
increased in the agricultural markets could
establish the necessary injury.

In fact, the big issue we've heard
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today is the fact that producers often bear
directly the past through fromrate increases but
there are other players in the agricultural
mar ket that do feel the brunt of the rate
i ncreases indirectly.

The final point was to address the 49
C.F.R 1300.5 rules. The Staggers Act contains
many provisions that are specifically geared
towards protecting shippers of agricultural
products and that's broadly defined. One of the
provisions in the Act that protects agricultural
shi ppers and is 1149 US Code 1110.1(d) and that
requires nore information on rates and service
changes but it also includes references to
proposed as well as actual rate increases. This,
at least, applies a longer lead tine of notice to
ag commodity shippers than the 20 days' notice
t hat appears in 1110.1(b) and in the Board's
regul ati ons under 1300.5(d) they require that any
schedul ed changes nust be published in a nanner
that provides tinely notice to subscri bers.

A current area of uncertainty is
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whet her rate changes for agricultural products
are subject to the sanme 20 day notice requirenent
for other rates in 1110.1(b) or whether 1110.1(d)
and the Board's regul ations create a | onger
tinmeline of tinely notice, which is be a nore
fact specific inquiry so what notice is tinely in
one set of circunmstances but naybe it's not
timely in another. The latter approach could
hel p situations where shi ppers have nade
significant capital investnents based on
representations by the railroad of certain rate
| evel s and certain investnments were made. [|f you
have a longer lead tinme for rate increases in
those situations, it could help mtigate capital
i nvestments being stranded. |[|f sufficient notice
is given, then maybe the investnent's not made or
maybe there's sone way to mtigate the damages.
That concludes nmy testinony. |[|'ll give it back
to Kevin.

CHAIR MLLER Geat. Thank you all
very much. So, Kevin, | think maybe this is a

guestion to you, although anyone on the panel
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woul d be wel cone to respond to it. Wen you
started off, if | could nmake sense of ny notes,
think you talked a bit about the issues that are
specific to grain that led to this proposal but
really the suggestion here is that we have a rate
relief process designed specifically for grain
shippers and | would like to hear a bit nore
about what makes grain distinct from other
commodi ties such that it should have its own rate
relief process.

MR, THOWSON: Well, Madam Chai r nan,
| think the one thing is grain is not a conmodity
| i ke coal that typically noves fromone originto
one destination all the tinme. W have a | ot of
noving parts. They're driven by gl obal narket
dynam cs and because of that, spreads change,
mar ket changes and because of that, the railroads
can nove their rates and spread it around to
dictate where grain can flow. Just fromthe
onset, you've got nultiple changes in QD Pair
changes can change years that will change

vol unes. So really, when you | ook at just the
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commodity side of the business there's so many
different noving parts. That could be
regionally, that could be by comodity, it could
be between eastern US and western US

There are just a lot of different
t hi ngs that can change year on year for ag that
can be dictated by changing of rail rates and
ot her things. Sonme of the things that Bruce
tal ked about that kind of makes ag a little bit
different than some of the other commodities that
only flow frompoint Ato point B, pretty nuch
year on year.

CHAIR M LLER Isn't that also true
t hough for commodities |ike any of the chem cal
commodities, a lot of the origin and destination
pairs are changing all the tine?

MR, THOWSON: To be honest, |'m not
famliar with the chem cal side so |I'm probably
not the best one to answer that.

CHAIR M LLER  Sure. That's fair
enough. And, M. WIlcox, you nention the issue

of ratcheting but you know t hat has been a
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concern expressed about the proposal, that in
fact it would lead to a ratcheting and bringi ng
all rates to roughly the 180 percent and you
cited to a court case that said that our 3B
process wouldn't likely lead to ratcheting but
could you say a bit nore why this particul ar
proposal woul dn't?

MR WLCOX: Well | can speak from
experience in litigating three benchmark cases is
that they are, well rate cases in general are
rare and their shippers are very reluctant to
bring themto begin with and so | think that the
ot her aspect of as | said earlier if you have a
rat e net hodol ogy that works and that both parties
know work, then you will reach a negoti ated
solutions that |I think would nost |ikely be above
the 180 percent and then again what as D.C
Circuit said and the STD said in that case if it
| ooked |i ke there was an aval anche of cases, we
haven't seen an aval anche of three benchmark
cases and that was the sane fear when we --

CHAIR MLLER W certainly haven't.
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MR WLCOX: -- when sinplified
standards were passed or in the process, you
heard a | ot about ratcheting there as well, that
if that was to cone to pass, if there was an
influx of all these cases, then the Board could
reassess because as we said, at the outset, NG-A
wants to find a solution to the fact that cases
have not been brought in 30 years for grain
shi ppers but they want the railroads industry to
be healthy and so | think those would be
mtigating circunstances. M. Crow ey can speak
nore to this than me but in a revenue adequate

i ndustry, RSMs cone down to around 180 percent or

less, | think its revenue adequate situation the
180 percent. It's not an objectionable rate.
CHAIR MLLER | want to go back, M.

Thonmpson, | think at the end of your testinony,
you brought up the issue of the ag contracts

whi ch was one of the things we were interested in
pursuing, | nmean just getting an understandi ng
about how useful or hel pful those are and so |

just sort of want to confirm | take it from your
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testinony that you would say yes, it's inportant
that they're out there but the current way
they' re being posted is not so helpful, so if
that requirenment is to remain in place we should
change sonme of the requirenents in terns of
what's reported and then howit's posted. |Is
that a correct understandi ng of your conments?

MR. THOWPSON:. Yes, by and | arge.
Basically, it's just the formatting of the way
that when they' re posted if we could sonehow do a
better way of sorting it out and then finding out
speci fic, because sone of the way the OD pairs
are reported they don't, they're not specific to
the origin or destination. They're in groups and
it really doesn't give you any information on
what that is and sonetinmes not even what the
commodity is, so | guess just a little bit nore
transparency and specificity on really what those
contents are.

CHAIR MLLER So | think if I'm
under standi ng you correctly, there are both

things that the STB could do in ternms of how
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we're posting it to make it nore usable but also
ways that the railroads could change the

i nformation they're providing that woul d make it
nor e usabl e.

MR. THOMPSON: That is correct. |
think there is only one or two of the Class |I's
that aren't really reporting themin the
granularity to where you can actually see what
t he contracts are.

CHAIR M LLER:  Un- huh.

MR THOWSON: So | think ---

CHAIR MLLER  So perhaps we could
| ook to the ones that are being reported in a
nore granul ar nethod and use that as an exanpl e
of what woul d be useful ?

MR, THOWSON: That is correct. Yes.

CHAIR MLLER Can | ask you a sort of

a related question but on the issue of tariffs.
One of the things |'ve been interested inis if
you're looking for a tariff for a specific
commodity, is that an easy thing to find? | mean

what do you have to do to find out what the
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tariff is for a commodity?

MR. THOWPSON: Basically so every
Class | railroad website has all the tariffs
| isted so basically all we do is go into the
website and then search basically by commodity
and then you can sort through the tariffs there.
Sonme of themare pretty user friendly, sone of
themare not but it's all out there public for
you to see.

CHAIR MLLER: And generally, if you
need to know what a tariff is, you can find that
i nformation without problenf

MR, THOWPSON:. Ch, yes. Yes,
typically w thout a problem

CHAIR MLLER Ckay. Al right.
Thank you. Ann?

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN. Thank you very
much, and |'m going to apol ogi ze i n advance
because ny questions are all over ny head and all
over ny papers. If | don't get to themnow, | nmay
shout sone into the audi ence towards you | ater.

If I could start with you, M. Thonpson, although
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you're all welcone to fill in the hot seat a
little bit, help ne understand how your proposal
hel ps a grain shipper across the board? | nean,
does it help Cargill to the same extent it helps
M. O Hara, who was on the previous panel in
Montana? |s it across the board fairness or is
it sonehow nore orchestrated for |arger grain
shi ppers?

MR, THOWSON: No, no, and | think
that's kind of why we went down this path is
because being as for fornulaic as it is and being
able to | ook at defendant care and ot her cares,
you're really going to get the subset of
everything that's out there. This should have
the sane inpact on a small shipper versus any
| arger shipper so really it's an all-enconpassing
approach. W were | ooking for something fast,
easy and fair and this is what we cane up with to
achi eve that goal.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN. Does a | arge
grain shipper typically ship under tariff or do

you perhaps al so ship under contract or is it
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kind of a m xed bag?

MR THOWPSON: It's a mxed bag and it
depends on the products. By and |large, the
western US on corn and beans, they do still ship
on tariff. In the eastern for exanple, the
eastern railroads we still negotiate contracts
for soy beans and in the case of corn it's done
by the destination so it varies by railroad and
it varies by commoditi es.

VICE CHAIR BEGEMAN:. M. CrowW ey, if
you could help me a bit with your charts, they
are actually really helpful. | appreciate that
you clarified that things are hypothetical as far
as sone of the railroad data. Let's start with
the fact that the conparison group would incl ude
novenent s both above and bel ow 180. |'mtrying
to understand what sort of criteria or what
safeguards, that's not quite the right word that
| nmean but, because we want to have a fair
process. | wouldn't feel confortable putting
sonet hing out that allowed every conpari son group

to be at or below 180. So what is the criteria --
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| guess the factors of A through E -- the

di stance? Commodity? What is going to constrain
your conparison group so you can't just go to 100
percent to get your conparison?

MR. CROALEY: The way the procedure
works is you don't have a choice. You have to
take all of the novenents that neet the criteria
so in the exanple on the text it was 120 nmle
haul of corn so all novenents between 96 mles
and 144 mles of corn regardless of the RIVC
ratios are in the conp group.

VI CE CHAIR BEGEMAN. So they're not
sel ect ed?

MR. CROALEY: They're not sel ected.
It's a given. You' ve got to take themall.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN:  Ckay.

MR. CROALEY: That, in our opinion, is
the rel evant nmarket for corn that goes 120 mles.

VI CE CHAIR BEGEMAN. Tom this may be
a question for you, but I know that you do not
care for "other relevant factors”, at least with

respect to 3B. | guess, I'd like to hear a bit
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nore fromyou. It seens, in ny opinion, fromny
experience with one of the cases, that ultinmately
settl ed, because 3B is crude, but the rel evant
factors did allow sone reality to be brought in
by either party.

MR WLCOX: Well, the issue has with
other relevant factors and I nmay know the case
you're referring to is that | think that the
original intent of the 3 Benchmark rul es was
expanded upon by the defendants in ternms of with
the aimof putting burdens on the conplainant and
what it ---

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN. By burden do you
mean costs?

MR WLCOX: Well, yes, the 3
Benchmar k nmet hodol ogy i s designed to be sinple,
cost effective and that was directed towards the
smal | er shippers but the other relevant factors
conponent of 3 Benchnmark at least in the | ast
case we've seen was really expanded into sone
real ms that involved expert testinony, costs that

rai sed the estimate of what are, or the
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expectations of what a conpl ai nant would pay to
have his rates litigated to be greatly expanded
in reality and that puts a chilling effect on
subsequent 3 Benchmark cases. Qur proposal
again, the enphasis is to try to find a way to
get a decision done quickly. As we also said, in
ternms of market donmi nance, we proposed that the
Board use its current, well the traditional
mar ket dom nance rul es as opposed to the limt
prized, but that it be done on an expedited
basis. So that in essence is the reason why we
did not include other relevant factors, was to
make sure that the understanding that the result
and the process woul d be sonewhat crude |ike
t hrough Benchnmark but also to get a faster result
and keep the costs down.

VI CE CHAIR BEGEMAN. M. Thonpson, and
Deb, you are welconme to interrupt and ask a
guestion, I'mkind of free flow ng, but could we
go back to the beginning of your testinony? You
menti oned the NGFA's arbitrati on process, and

there's been sone di scussion, sone outreach, with

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

186

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

respect to allowing rates to be arbitrated. D d
| understand that correctly?

MR, THOWPSON. So today in our real
arbitration systemwe basically arbitrate
everything but rates. Al right, so rates are
not included but as NGFA we woul d be very open to
have those di scussions. What woul d have to
happen, we woul d have to have all the nenber
Class | railroads agree to a nandatory
arbitration system

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN:  And why woul d
they all have to agree? Could one just vol unteer
and let's say, | don't want to even naeke a
hypot hetical, one carrier said we'll arbitrate.
Coul d you not just allow your nmenber to proceed?

MR. THOWPSON: Yes. So if a railroad
came and agreed to arbitration with a nmenber
conpany that coul d happen.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN:  Ckay.

MR. THOWPSON: As |long as they were
bot h menbers.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN:  Ckay.
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CHAIR MLLER. Can | slip in there
because |' m hoping |'munderstanding this
correctly, but I think under the Board's
arbitration procedures there is one railroad
that's agreed to arbitrate and | don't think any
shi pper has stepped forward to take them up on
it.

MR, THOWPSON:  Yes --

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN: But not rates.

CHAIR M LLER  But not rates. Thank
you.

MR THOWPSON. So | will say that with
t hat being said we have been approached within
the last six nonths by a Class | that wanted to
have open di al ogue about the potential of
starting up the rail arbitration process again,
or not the process but the discussion, so we have
entered into discussions with one. W were
havi ng ongoi ng di scussi ons but now, you know, to
make this happen we have to reach out and get the
other Cass 1's to agree to go down that path as

wel | and today we do not have a standard process
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for rate arbitration, so we would have to cone up
wi th what that would | ook |ike, what the rul es
woul d be, you know, what are we going to
arbitrate against, so we wuld have to have sone
work to do but, you know, we really would want
somewhat of a good understanding that nost of the
railroads or all the railroads for that matter,
woul d want to enter into NGFA arbitration for
really for us to really put a lot of tinme and
effort to go forward on it.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN: | say take what
you can get and if one will do it, start your
program

MR, THOWPSON: Well, what the problem
is we have a |l ot of nenbers that are captive to
ot her railroads.

VI CE CHAIR BEGEMAN: | know. | know.
It's just that | assune it's a large railroad. |
nmean if it's a short line |I can understand your
hesi tati on.

MR, THOWPSON: No, it's a large

railroad.
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VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN: M. Sut herl and,
could you please clarify sonething? | think | may
have m sunder st ood your discussion of a certain
rate increase that your state has recently
received froma Class 1 carrier. | thought that
what you said was -- now |l can't find ny notes --
- but that it was going to lead to nore traffic
on that carrier's main line and off of the short
| i nes.

MR. SUTHERLAND: Right. Right. W
felt that at first analysis it certainly | ooks
| i ke short line origins with the newrate
structure will be at a significant disadvantage
to main line carriers, or main |line shippers
because of the rate spread now at rail cost is
much, will be significantly nore than perhaps
what the truck difference woul d be out of an
origin that would be in a short |ine area noving
to amin line point, so it puts that short |ine
shi pper at a disadvantage in the new structure to
a main line shippers.

VI CE CHAIR BEGEMAN. Are you sayi ng
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basically, that as a shipper you' d be induced to
trucking your grain to a | ocation where it can
get picked up on the main |line?

MR SUTHERLAND: That or a farmer
custonmer may see, because of increased freight
costs and the bid difference has gotten so w de,
that they can afford to actually now truck beyond
your short line shipper origin to a main |line
shi pper because unfortunately of unconpetitive
situation froma price standpoint.

VICE CHAIR BEGEMAN: M. Crowley, I'd
like to know if you have an opi nion on sone of
the earlier comments? The TRB's first conment
with respect to URCS, and then kind of contrast
it with M. Gay's comments that it's actually
fixable, but it certainly would cost us. Do you
have an opinion on this?

MR. CROALEY: | have an opinion. |'m
not quite ready to bury the URCS formula. |
think it is outdated. | think it should be
updated and | think we've been advocating that

for a while. The regression analyses that form
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the basis of the variable cost calcul ations were
performed back when there were a | ot of

rail roads. There aren't a |lot of railroads today
and so | think what you'll find ----

CHAIR MLLER: Is your mcrophone on?

MR CROALEY: It's not on?

CHAIR M LLER |'m not sure.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN: Maybe pul |l it
cl oser.

MR. CROALEY: How s that? There's
fewer railroads today obviously than there were
when the regression anal yses were done that have
formed the basis of the variable cost
calculations in URCS and so | think at a m ni mum
that should be done. It's a fornula. Any
formula you can tinker with and you can nmake it

as expensive as you want it be to update it. To

update the regression package, | don't think
that's necessarily a big deal. |It's not totally
| nexpensive, but not a big deal. There is one

thing that | did agree with that the AAR w tness,

M. Gay, stated, so | think I'll share that with
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you. There was only one and that is | believe he
said that we should factor in density in these
calculations and | agree with that. Density was
a part of arail formA which was the URCS
predecessor and it was captured through a
curvilinear regression equation which was

el i m nat ed when URCS cane al ong. URCS is based on
just a straight Iine regression, sinple
regression analysis, so if you're going to update
URCS consider the curvilinear or density inpact
on the variable cost calculations. D d | answer
your question?

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN:  Yes.

Now | just lost ny train of thought,
pl ease excuse ne for a second.

When you wal ked us through the
proposal, it struck ne that although it
certainly is easier to understand than trying to
have you explain to us the SAC process, or at
| east to do a flow chart of the SAC process, it
sounds to ne that we would still need consultants

to review the cases if you need your confidenti al
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waybi || data. But then since you're a
consul tant, maybe there was sonet hi ng behind
t hat . How sinple is sinple?

MR, CROALEY: Wen | was asked to put
this sinple proposal together one of the criteria
wasn't to elimnate the consultants so.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN:  Uh- huh

MR. CROALEY: So | kept ny job. It is
sinple and it is straightforward. |I don't even, |
think if you follow the rules that we've laid out
| don't think you need either party. | think the
Board staff could do this w thout having either
party invol ved.

VI CE CHAIR BEGEMAN. Right, and we
just need the perm ssion or the confidentiality
request. You' d have to get permi ssion to use the
waybi | | .

MR CROALEY: The staff would not need
the perm ssion. They could just solve the
equation thensel ves. They woul dn't need either
the railroad consultant, | just put myself out of

busi ness, or the shipper consultant to make these
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calculations. There's theoretically nothing to
argue about. Follow the rules and you'll get the
answer. Do it quickly, sinply, cheaply. W just
made it cheaper.

CHAIR M LLER | was curious and |
guess in sone ways you're now reflecting on this.
| don't know if I would have asked the guestion
if it hadn't been for Dr. Schnal ensee this
norni ng basically throwi ng cold water on the
rel evancy of a revenue adequacy finding and
really tal king about quite a different process
and obviously built into your formula is a factor
rel ated to revenue adequacy and |' m wonderi ng
what the consequences of using or not using the
factor, if you just got rid of that factor what
woul d end up happeni ng under the fornmul a?

MR. CROALEY: There'd be one |ess
cal cul ation for each probable nove. That woul d
be about it. It would depend on the revenue
adequacy status of each of the railroads in the
conpar abl e group. |If they were revenue adequate

t he revenue cones down on the conparabl e noves
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and the RRVC ratio for the conp group conmes down
as well, so if you took that cal cul ation out they
were all revenue adequate railroads then the
result would go up and the opposite would be true
if it's the other way. So the revenue adequacy
adj ust nent factor protects both sides, both the
revenue adequate side and the revenue inadequate
si de.

CHAIR M LLER:  Mm hnm

MR. CROALEY: In the conp group
cal culations. So you probably heard this, this
norning in the AAR panel basically di sagreenent
with the idea of including other railroads in the
conpar abl e group and | guess primarily arguing
that, you know, no matter how nuch alike they nmay
| ook they're not alike enough to include. [|'m
j ust wondering what you all would say about that?

MR. CROANLEY: The railroads are
amazingly alike, especially now that we're down
to four big ones and a few small Cass 1
railroads and | think you can see that by | ooking

at the URCS fornula that nobody |ikes except me.
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URCS will tell you on a total system basis, the
total variable costs that it calculated and the
total fixed cost, which are these commbn costs
that they were tal ki ng about, conmon or fixed
costs. If you |look at the relationship for each
carrier you'll see they're very, very close.

In other words, the fixed costs of one
carrier's basically the same percentage as
anot her carrier so what they have to recover is
basically the same thing. Now the other point is
that this cross carrier idea, | know the Board
hasn't necessarily liked it in a |ot of these
anal yses but they use it, the Board, you guys use
this cross carrier idea in the revenue accuracy
cal culation. You calculate the cost or capital
for an individual railroad and then you conpare
it to the railroad industry cost capitals based
on all the railroads. So we get inputs from al
the railroads to conpare to an individual
rail road. W' re not doing anything different
here in this approach.

VI CE CHAIR BEGEMAN: Do you care to
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comment on ARCs proposals, the 2B approach. Since
they're going to testify later and you won't be
back, you're welconme to give conments now.

MR. CROALEY: | think that obviously
that the NGFA approach is superior to the --

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN: W know t hat .

MR, CROALEY: Yes.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN: W knew t hat .

MR, CROALEY: I'mglad you do but | do
think the ARC approach is better than your 3
Benchmar k approach so if you don't |ike our
approach 1'd go with ARC before I'd go back to 3
Benchmar k.

CHAIR M LLER: Do you want to say nore
about why you think the 3 Benchmark woul d be a
better approach than the 2 Benchmark?

MR. CROALEY: It's the other way
around.

CHAIR M LLER  Sorry.

MR CROALEY: | think ARC will take
care of all that for you.

CHAIR MLLER: Ckay. | m sunderstood
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you, or | didn't listen carefully maybe. So M.
Thonpson, did you say or now am| confusing this
with what |1've read, is it your proposal to
broaden the definition of grain so it would
i ncl ude et hanol and ot her?

MR. THOWSON. Correct. Correct.
Basically what we were proposing is that of the
68 commodities that would mrror what we use
today in our trade rules, so everything that's in
our what we use in NGFA today would be in there
whi ch does include ethanol and the bio-diesel.

CHAIR MLLER: So could you maybe say
a bit nore about that because it seenms on its
face that shipping ethanol or bio-diesel is very
di fferent than shipping corn or shipping wheat?

MR, THOWPSON: | guess when we | ooked
at it we |ooked at ag products and when we | ooked
at ag products it was everything that evol ved
around that. | guess |I'mnot quite sure what the
dynam cs woul d be versus shipping the ethanol. |
mean obvi ously you've got the tank car side and

the regul ati ons and everything that goes al ong
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with that, but basically |I nmean you still have,
you'd still have your OD pairs, you know, a | ot
of the ethanol is in contract formso to us it's
anot her commodity. W're not really |ooking at
this so much as a hazmat or a different product
versus what we're doing on the grain, corn, beans
and wheat side of things.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN: Ckay. Well |
just really wanted to thank you for the effort
t hat your association went to, to heed our call
and make a reconmendation that we could explore
and perhaps tinker with or do nore than that. |
know there was a cost in tinme and expense, M.
Crowl ey. Thank you for the effort that you've
made to help us get to the goal that we have.

MR. CROALEY: Thanks for the
opportunity.

CHAIR M LLER: Thank you all very
much. Very interesting. GCkay, we're ready for
Panel Nunber Five, which includes Union Pacific
and BNSF. Welcome. M. MIller, are you | eading

off here?
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MR MLLER | am

CHAIR M LLER.  Ckay.

MR MLLER |If that suits.

CHAIR M LLER  You bet.

MR MLLER Is this on or can you
hear ne?

CHAIR MLLER: Do you have a red
light?

MR. M LLER There we go. Thank you
very much. Chairman M|l ler and Vice Chairnan
Begeman, thank you for the honor to speak here
today. My nane is John Ml ler, group vice
presi dent of agricultural products, BNSF Rail way.
| have been with BNSF for over seven years now
and prior to that | spent 25 years in various
managenent roles in the grain industry on the
shi pping side. Again, that you for the
opportunity today.

As the lead Class 1 rail carrier of
agricultural products, we are continually
i nvesting to maintain and expand our network, our

grain network. Qur custoners are responding to
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mar ket opportunities with significant investnents
in BNSF grain facilities which I'll describe in a
bit. The massive conbi ned i nvestnents between
rail road and shippers suggests a very strong
belief in our ability to deliver commercially
conpetitive rates for a liable grain service over
time along with the expectation that when nore

i nvestments are needed to neet demand for service
we will respond.

In nmy remarks today, | will give a
brief overview of the BNSF grai n business and our
record of innovation which is well known to this
agency and the stakehol ders here. | wll
descri be the virtuous cycle of investnent by both
BNSF in our agricultural business as well as by
our custoners on our railroad. | wll address
some of the concerns we know that some of our
custoners have about the rate process as well as
outlining the innovative steps BNSF has taken on
its own to address its custoners' concerns. |
will take sonme of ny tine to address several of

the issues raised by the groups and our custoners
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t hat have been in testinony today.

Before | get into the detail on our
grain system | would |ike to address a coupl e of
i ssues fromthis norning. 1'd like to speak for
a nonent to the small shipper. To the smal
shi pper that feels that he or she does not have
access to the rate relief, that feeling is
justified. W always advi se our custoner to comne
call us at BNSF, at nmarketing to voice his
concerns about the market rate. W get feedback
about the markets all the tinme. Qur shippers are
not shy about telling us when the rates aren't
conpetitive as well as when there are al so
wor ki ng opportunities that benefit us both. W
treat that trust with great care. |f he has
al ready done that or is not satisfied with our
response and still feels he has a rate concern,
then the process allows themto address it to the
STB. |Is that process flawed in terns of taking
too nuch tine or costing too nmuch for the smal
shipper? Yes. W agree. This is exactly why we

| istened in Montana and after nultiple
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di scussions with Montana grain growers and the

Mont ana Farm Bureau, we agreed upon a

conprehensive solution which I'Il refer to a
little bit nore in detail |ater.
This is why we are also willing to

consider a different solution to rate conplaints
brought before the STB changi ng the process but
not changi ng the nethodology. To this snall

shi pper, | would say we have al ready nade a
proposal to the NGFA to use the current NGFA
arbitration base systemfor practices to be
tailored to STB conplaints for rates. The
organi zati on which has the | argest nenbership of
grai n conpani es today has the tools to | ead an
effort to get a faster and | ess costly process

for you and the railroad alike.

Wiile we are waiting to hear back from

NGFA, we are willing to support themin the
effort to bring all railroads into the sol ution
to get to the point where you do feel |ike you
have better access to market based solutions to

address your rate concerns.
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Anot her issue that | feel like I've
got to address up front is, and it was nentioned
earlier today, and is that this notion that
custonmers out there today are reluctant to raise
rate concerns or rate conpl aints because they
feel retaliation. Personally |I'm offended by
that. W' ve heard that over tinme in the past and
fromny standpoint and our staff at BNSF and al
of our enployees at BNSF, it's not true. |
cannot di sagree with sonebody of the way they
feel and they may feel that way but today the
notion of retaliation at BNSF is a personal
affront to us and it's just sinply not part of
our culture and that's not how we run our
conpany.

To the contrary, we have robust open
di scussi ons about rates with custoners daily. In
fact, we encourage the give and take with our
cust omers about how to capture and market
opportunities. Qur customers again, aren't shy
about telling us when they don't work. W

encourage that. That tells us what works and
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what doesn't work. It's part of that daily
di scovery of what the nmarket is for us. W are
constantly assessing market dynam cs to address
t hose i ssues and how they may be rai sed.

kay, let ne get on to the slides and
tal k about the breadth of our narketplace. Mre
than hal f of our whole grain shipnments noved to
export markets. The export market is
i ncreasingly inportant to our grain shippers.
Grain shippers need efficient transportation to
participate in these export nmarkets. As | wll
discuss in a noment, the investnents we have nade
to inprove the efficiency of our rail network
have been critical to the success of US farners
in this inportant export sector. For donestic
consunption, we also transport a significant
anount of grain, nostly wheat and corn, while our
export destinations tend to be concentrated in a
di screet nunber of |arge export facilities, our
donestic grain shipnments are delivered to a | arge
nunber of wi dely dispersed donestic destinations

including feed lots, ethanol plants and fl our
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mills.

Let ne nove next to BNSF' s investnents
in our network in general and in our agricultural
network in particular. As | said, we are in a
virtuous cycle of investnment in our agricultural
busi ness taking the revenues we earn and
investing it right back into our network. W
have nmade enornous capital investnents in the
systemw de infrastructure. In 2014, we had an
all-time high capital budget of $5 billion and
actually spent $5.5 billion. BNSF plans to
exceed that in 2015 investing $6 billion. | know
this slide is hard to see but we take this to
custonmers all the tine so we thought we'd include
it. Qur 2015 capacity project plan includes a
nunber of critical infrastructure projects across
our network, many of which benefit agricultural
shi ppers. Many of BNSF' s nore recent capital
expendi tures have concentrated on the northern
corridor where nuch grain traffic noves and the
breakdown of 2015 capital projects shows

conti nued i nvestnent in areas of our network that
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our grain custoners rely on which of course,

i nclude this northern region. These capital

i nvestments and our physical plant will provide
per manent capacity that will benefit every

busi ness sector. Qur investnents extend beyond
just track. Qur grain shippers benefit fromthe
addi ti onal systemw de investnents that BNSF nmade
in 2014 and 2015 in | oconotives and personnel.
BNSF al so made significant investnents that
directly benefits its grain shippers including
over $1.5 billion in investnents in our own fl eet
of grain cars.

Qur rail service is inproving as a
result of these investnents. W have seen strong
velocity in our agricultural business reflected
in areturn to historical trip per nonth shuttle
figures and key | anes and m ni mal past dues
across our network. Those investnents and
resulting velocity gains have brought reliability
back into the grain system | will also note we
are currently storing over 7000 BNSF grai n hopper

cars as a result of slackening demand at the
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nonent whi ch can sinply highlight how cyclical ag
really is. Over tine our innovative prograns and
i nvest ments have enabl ed producers in nany states
to access destination markets whether they be
overseas nmarkets, Mexico or donestic markets |ike
Cal i f orni a.

As a result of BNSF' s innovations
efficient transportation and reasonabl e rates,
grai n shi ppers nade significant investnent of
their own and built their grain facilities on
BNSF. BNSF's grain shuttle train programis a
prime exanple of the inproved efficiency in the
supply chain that has resulted frominnovation
and investnent. BNSF's witten testinony and our
prior subm ssions describe in detail our shuttle
program which grew out of a recognition by BNSF
and our shippers that conpeting with other grain
exporting countries required increased
efficiencies across all elenents of the supply
chain. The nunber of grain shuttle facilities
built on us has increased dramatically over this

time franme. It went from69 shuttle origins in
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2000, a few years after the grain shuttle program
was initiated to a total of 229 BNSF served
shuttle origins by the end of 2014. Mbre
importantly that represents an estinmated $2.2
billion in investnent by our custoners since the
shuttl e program start ed.

The nunber of unit and gathered train
ethanol facilities built on us has also increased
significantly over the sane tinmefrane
representing an estimated $2.1 billion additional
in custonmer investment. The nunber of uni-train
fertilizer facilities built on us over the sane
timeframe has increased significantly with
another $750 million in custoner investnent.
These investnments by our custoners on BNSF' s
network reflect the partnership that exists
bet ween BNSF and its grain shippers.

Let's turn now to the nature of the
grain markets and this is inportant. Contrary to
sonme of the clainms nmade today, the constant
drunbeat of market economics has resulted in

reasonabl e and conpetitive rates across our
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network for BNSF agricultural shippers. The
market reality is that we have to keep our rates
conpetitive to keep the business. The key
feature of grain transportation is that grain
must nove by truck to a grain elevator at the
very beginning. Since it noves at the first
i nstance, a grain producer can often direct the
truck to deliver the grain to nultiple elevators
as a first step in the supply chain or even to
ot her local end users. An inportant
characteristic of grain markets is the existence
of strong and w despread geographi c conpetition.
There are several types of geographic conpetition
that affects rail rates. For exanple, in this
slide, a grain shipper in Aberdeen, South Dakota
has the option to ship to nultiple markets on
BNSF. Each of those destination narkets you see
there are al so buying fromnultiple origins
i ncludi ng origins not served by BNSF providing a
mul ti tude of conpetitive options.

Wth respect to export nmarkets, BNSF

must consider rail rates for transportati on of
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grain to a particular export facility based on
alternatives available to shippers at other
export facilities including foreign conpetition.
For exanple, corn fromthe upper plains noving to
t he P&W conpetes with corn fromthe corn belt
transported to New Orl eans via barge into foreign
mar kets. A key reason that we do not have rate
cases is the fact that our rates are reasonable.
As you can see in this slide, the constant
pressure of conpetition in grain markets has
resulted in reasonabl e and conpetitive rates
across our railroad for agricultural shippers.
There have been few rate cases precisely because
t hese mar ket mechani snms have wor ked so wel | .

BNSF sets rates based on narket
conditions, not on regulated costs but | know
this agency often focuses on revenue to URCS
vari abl e costs when it analyzes rates so as shown
in the study submtted by our outside experts,
our grain rates are low on a revenue to vari abl e
costs basis. BNSF believes that these shuttle

RVCs are overstated in fact for the shuttle side
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because they do not reflect the nmeaningful
| oadi ng and unl oadi ng and i ncentive paynments that
are paid to qualifying shuttle trade novenents
and that actually reduce the actual rates paid to
transport that grain. These paynents are
actually left out when consultants and ot her
third parties generate their studies of ag rates.
W regularly comunicate with our
custoners and our custoner groups to better
understand the issues they face and we have
devel oped good working relations with them Sone
of these groups are set out in this slide. CQur
rates are reasonable but as | said when | started
out we do understand that in some regi ons and
particularly sonme shippers and custoners in those
regi ons do not agree and view the regul atory
process as unworkable. W understand that
concern and that's why we have proposed
alternatives. As nentioned, BNSF established an
arbitration mechanismw th Montana grain
producers. It is a two-tier structure of

nmedi ati on foll owed by arbitration using
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predefi ned market based standards that take into
account the conplexities and conpetitiveness of
agricul tural markets.

As mentioned, we have recently offered
i deas to the NGFA executive conmttee and our
support for expanding their existing arbitration
process to cover rail rates w thout underm ning
the current rate case criteria. W remain
interested in discussing ideas that will provide
expert based market focused resolutions that also
mai ntain a strong incentive to continue to
reinvest by all in the industry. W are proud of
the | evel of investnment we have made in our
agricultural network to nmeet current and future
agricultural demand and the significant
i nvestments our grain custonmers have in turn nade
to bring nore and nore of their business to BNSF.

This is clear evidence that the market
is working well. Wile inprovenents in the
process for resolving disputes can al ways be nade
the large industry investnent and the supply

chain's success story experience by US grain

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

214

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

partici pants suggests strongly the overall
prem se is that the conpetitive marketplace is
wor ki ng efficiently. Methodol ogies for resol ving
grain rate disputes including those offered by
the STB nust take into account the practical
realities of agricultural markets including their
conplexity and their conpetitiveness.

We believe that the alternatives
proposed by others here, even if well
intentioned, will create a range of unintended
consequences. Some of these suggested rate
setting alternatives will enhance the influence
of larger market participants through either cost
based or di stance based rate making and w ||
encour age vol une based contractual agreenents. A
result would be to limt producer market and
geographi c access. A net decrease in conpetitive
mar ket based solutions. A longer termresult
woul d be fewer dollars to support rail network
i nvestment and a | ess responsive and resilient
rail systemwth less ability to provide

capacity. Making thoughtful changes to the
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process by exploring nmarket based arbitration
solutions that enbrace industry expertise in a
conpl ex market environnent nakes sense. Making
arbitrary and outcome oriented changes to the
STB' s exi sting standards by which agricul tural
rates are reviewed does not.

Finally, et nme just address a couple
of points fromearlier today and then |I' m done.
Let's go back to earlier in the testinony. Rate
i ncreases that were nmentioned earlier in the
state of Montana. | have a couple of points.
After not raising rates on the pul ses and wheat
rates across the whole systemand certainly in
Mont ana for the last couple of years, since back
since 2013, we engaged the industry to understand
what the narket conpetitive rates would be this
year and after announci ng our wheat rate
i ncreases earlier this year, we actually pulled
back part of that rate increase after discussion
with the Montana grain growers and that was not
menti oned. W also had a rather good and robust

di scussion with all of our pul se shippers and the
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f eedback fromthe pul se shi ppers about our
increase in pulse rates this year are narket
responsi ve and we have had no conpl ai nts about
the price increases. 1In fact, the nost often
response we get back is keep investing in the
railroad. We |ove the nmassive reinvestnent plan
that you have out there. Make sure that you have
capacity to nove what we want to nove and the
rates are certainly rates that the market can
absor b.

As far as the standing in Mntana,
farmer does go through the association if they
would Iike to file a rate conplaint for wheat and
barl ey and they can ask themto represent the
farmer to BNSF and the arbitration proceedi ngs so
t hey do have standing. The percentage of wheat
and barley that noves on us out of Montana is 90
percent of what we nove, so of all the
agricul tural products you can certainly make the
case that the farmer that noves stuff on BNSF in
Montana is well represented in ternms of what we

nove. |It's a vast, vast majority of what we
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nove.

One ot her coment about contracts out
of Montana, there was illusion to contracts of
wheat being noved to Montana and the difficulty
of understandi ng what they are. W don't have
contracts that nove wheat out of Montana. They
all nmove on tariff. They're all public and I
just wanted to make sure that's clear. So, thank
you for the opportunity to speak to you today.
We do appreciate it. M colleague, Jim Milligan,
and | are here to answer any questions as foll ow
up and when the panel's done.

CHAIR M LLER: Thank you very much.
Ms. Rinn?

MS. RINN: Good afternoon, Chairnman
MIller, Vice Chairman Begenan. |'m Lou Ann Ri nn
and | represent Union Pacific Railroad. M.
Jason Hess, our vice president and general
manager of agricultural products is also here
this afternoon to observe this Hearing.

In nmy remarks today, | will explain

how conpetition to transport grain ensures
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reasonabl e rates, how the result oriented rate
tests proposed by the grain shippers have no
econonmic validity and how such special rate rul es
for grain shipnments would raise serious public
policy concerns. Conpetition to nove grain as
resulting market driven rates explain why no
grain rate cases have been brought despite
nuner ous changes by the Board to nake it easier
to pursue conplaints. Al the parties agree that
conpetition to sell and buy grain between nations
and within the USis intense. Such conpetition
extends to the transportation of grain. [If Union
Pacific's rates are not conpetitive to the
nati onal and gl obal markets, soneone else wll
nove the grain and we will |ose the revenue. All
grain noves by truck to either a barge termnal,
near by processor or an el evator.

This map of |owa, which has the nost
acres of production of any state illustrates
t hese choices. Producers can send grain to
dozens of processors, those are the blue squares,

to receive corn or soy beans by truck. They can
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send grain to hundreds of elevators |ocated on
different nearby railroads. There are five
railroads that crisscross |lowa east to west and
in addition KCS and NS have haul age rights that
allow themto transport |Iowa grain.

Don't forget the brown triangles near
the rivers representing the barge term nals.
lowa with access to multiple carriers and nodes
is far fromuni que anong the major grain
produci ng states that we serve. |Illinois,

M nnesota, M ssouri and Wsconsin are
crisscrossed with railroads with at |east four
and as many as six Cass 1 railroads, not to
mention the short lines placing nost farners
wi thin trucking distance of two or nore
railroads.

Li kewi se, they have many processors
and they have barge access. Even states with
fewer railroads and perhaps not as nuch water
benefit from geographic conpetition and what do |
mean by geographi c conpetition? Railroads

serving different origins but simlar
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destinations conpete to nove grain. For exanple,
BNSF, CN, KCS and UP all conpete in the

M dwestern grain states to take grain to the gulf
ports. O you have carriers that are serving a
common origin conpeting to nove grain to
different destinations. W conpete with trucks
to nove corn only we want to nove themto feed
processors or export nmarkets and the trucks are
going to nove themto the ethanol producers.

So we have a |lot of conpetition and
that conpetition is basically what inforns and
drives the rates we charge for our custoners.
Because grain is fungible and because it conpetes
in both national and international markets, our
rail rates would be found reasonable if they were
tested under a nethod that has a valid econonic
principal behind it and the record is going to
support this.

First of all, the grain shippers admt
that the RRVC ratios for grain are generally
bel ow 180. URCS admits that 61 percent of the

top four grain and 69 percent of the top four

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

221

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

grain products all have revenue to vari abl e cost
rati os below the jurisdictional threshold. Now
contrary to ARC s clains, the preval ence of so
many novenents bel ow the jurisdictional threshold
basis is not based on a problemw th URCS not
recogni zing the efficiencies trainload noves.
URCS does recogni ze the efficiencies associ ated
with grain trends.

This slide shows a hypot heti cal
novenent. The difference between the URCS
vari abl e cost per car on a trainload novenent and
the sanme car in cargo service is nore than $1000
or 37 percent less than it would be in a car
noving by itself but in a train. That's not just
the train, it's a manifest train. So if you
recal cul ated URCS to assign even greater
efficiencies to trainload grain novenments nore
cost woul d have to then be assigned to single
carl oad shippers, ironically including grain
custonmers, who do ship by single carl oads which
woul d i ncrease their cost and force nore of those

novenents bel ow the jurisdictional threshold
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basis. There's no basis for making a grain cost
adj ustnent factor and there's also no reason to
t hi nk that sonehow t he preval ence of novenents
bel ow the jurisdictional threshold for grain and
grain products is a technicality on URCS and is
not reflective of market reality.

For grain traffic that is above 180,
the record offers other evidence that rail rates
are reasonable. The shippers justify their
proposal on clains that railroads are charging
hi gher rates and capturing an unfair share of the
econonmic rates. They assume the unreasonabl eness
of these rates as a given but the facts say
ot herwi se. USDA and AAR data show that Class 1
rail road revenue fromgrain as a percentage of
farmincone actually has been trendi ng downward
for the | ast decade and while there was an
i ncrease | ast year because we all know 2014 was a
menor abl e year as nmuch as we mght like to forget
it, there was an increase to only 5.2 percent.

In other words, we get a nickel for every dollar

of farmnet income in 2014 and that figure is
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still below the average for the |ast 10 years.
So rail rates may have increased but incone to
producers has grown faster.

Pervasi ve conpetition and narket
driven rates are a better explanation for the
| ack of rate cases by producers than problens
with the STB rate conplaint process. | wll also
add one point here that we, of course, do market
different rates but we also look at if we think
there's a danger zone, we |look to conmply with the
Board standards are so we actively are trying to
not get into rate cases. So we're going to claim
credit for that and not bl ane the board.

The NGFA and ARC proposals are result
oriented and they are not based on economc
principals. Neither the NG-A nor the ARC
proposal sinplifies the 3B test. Both seek to
change critical features of the 3B test with a
clear goal. Rates for grain should be reduced to
the jurisdictional threshold. Qur reply coments
and those of other railroad parties address in

detail about how those proposals are nerely
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mechani snms to drive rates down. Critically, both
NGFA and ARC woul d expand conparable traffic to
i ncl ude novenents with RFVC rati os bel ow 180 and
novenment s on nondependent railroads.

In reality, this would nerely coll ect
a large set of nostly irrelevant data points. It
woul d not constitute a neani ngful market or
econonmi ¢ analysis. To take an exanple from
outside the railroad world, if you were
considering buying a first class ticket from New
York to LA on United, you would not conpare
United's RIVC for that ticket with what the RI'VC
woul d be for Southwest to take you from Baltinore
t hrough Denver to LA.  You don't conpare R/ VCs
when you' re buyi ng sonething. You | ook at what
the rate is. You don't conpare it. The R/ VC,
particularly the RI'VC by other firnms, does not
tell you anything about the transportati on market
for different transportation products and it
doesn't tell you anything about the cost
structure or what the returns are of one carrier

versus another carrier. That is why this is not
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an econonmic or a narket anal ysis.

The special way rules for grain
shi ppers al so that ignore econom c principals
woul d rai se serious public policy issues. Gain
shi ppers can't justify why they are entitled to
special rules especially once they extend the
scope beyond conmodities grown by small farners
to include agricultural products that are
processed and nade by |arge congl onerates. Gain
product originations on Union Pacific are not
wi dely dispersed. Mre than 80 percent of our
shi pments are accounted for by only 21 origins
for ethanol, 8 origins for soy bean neal and 5
origins for corn syrup. That is not the nodel of
wi dely dispersed small and they don't know how
much they're going to produce that was given to
you by one of the advocates for the grain
proposal .

Wth regard to corn, wheat and soy
beans, the majority of our traffic is shipped by
| arge conpanies that could well afford to bring a

3B case and they concentrate on 60 origins which
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draw from producers in a larger area yet the NGFA
and the ARC proposals would apply to all of
those. They are not making any distinction as
much as they may press forward with a certain
subset they are not limting their proposals to
any such subset. They want everybody to be able
to use these rules. The grain and grain products
custonmers do not appear to be markedly different
than other custoners in terns of the nmajority of
traffic still noves over certain |engths.

| believe that Chairman MIller, you
asked about chenical shippers. Yes, in nore than
one proceedi ng we have had the ACC and chemi cal
shi ppers say that they are the very same as grain
in the sense that they nove to a | ot of different
destinations. They don't know where it's going
and they're noving in carload, not as many
trainload but they identify with many of the
conplaints you've heard fromthe grain custoners
today. But even if there were a subset of snal
grain custoners who really were different than

all the other shippers in a way that justified
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special rules, the rules would still have to be
economni cal Iy valid.

Rat e reasonabl eness det erm nati ons
require the Board to all ocate econonmic rents
bet ween the shippers and the rail carriers. If
one group of customers gets nore, than econonic
principals justify that extra share nust either
conme from ot her shippers, which would be an
| mper m ssi ble cross subsidy or it nust conme from
t he defendant railroad. By inposing an RIVC rate
cap based on traffic noved by non-def endant
rail roads without regard to difference in
suppl y/ demand situations, route characteristics,
cost structure, those proposals would punish nore
efficient carriers and di scourage efficiency by
all other railroads because you get hurt if your
R/ VCs get higher and one way to increase an R/ VC
is to becone nore efficient.

Wrse, by conpletely detaching the
concl usi on about whether or not a rate is
reasonabl e from market information from your

custonmers on the traffic that you're originating
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or termnating or interchanging you re |osing
critical market signals about the demand and we
rely on that information in order to determ ne
not only where we need to be investing for growh
but al so where do we need to have crews. Do we
have enough power? Are we prepared to handl e the
traffic? Wthout that kind of information, you
end up not providing the reliable type of service
t hat our custoners want to have.

Thank you very much for the
opportunity to appear today. | will be pleased to
answer any questions and | would be particularly
delighted if you woul d ask ne a questi on about
how t he NGFA proposal will guarantee work for
consultants but put ny marketing people at risk.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN: Thank you, thank
you very nuch. M. Mller, | don't want to put
words in your nouth, but in case | didn't wite
it down quite precisely, | think what you said
was that, with respect to whether or not there is
a workabl e rate nethodol ogy for the Board that

you' re not necessarily synpathetic but you
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recogni ze there needs to be a process. You
support a different process but not a different
nmet hod. |s that what you sai d?

MR, M LLER  Yes.

VICE CHAIR BEGEMAN: | 'msorry. |
can't find where | wote it.

MR MLLER Yes. It's a good gquestion
for clarification. 1It's the process by which a
resolution is resolved so that woul d be the
noving to an arbitration process that again, you
know, uses market based and sort of expert
revi ewed processes that we can agree on and we're
just at the starting stages here to try to define
that but those are sort of key characteristics.
By nethodology |"mreferring to the change in
met hodol ogy bei ng proposed by NGFA in terns of
just all the, essentially a soft rate cap, which
| allude to in terns of the consequences which
woul d be I think very wong for both shippers and
t he railroad.

VI CE CHAIR BEGEMAN:. | conmend you for

your willingness to have the discussion with NGFA

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

230

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

totry to establish a programw th their nenbers.
What woul d your hesitation be to joining an
arbitration program here?

MR MLLER It sinply has to be, we
have to be involved, | think since we're part of
this, at the design phase, so the key is what is
the design of the criteria used to decide the
arbitration ---

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN:  You just want to
know what you're signing up for?

MR MLLER Exactly. Right, so when
it tal ks about Montana, use that as an exanpl e.
Mont ana was carefully negotiated on both sides.
| think we took into consideration what the
associ ation and farmers needed and they took into
consideration frankly the market based nature of
the markets and what was really quite frankly
preval ent and obvious in determ ning rates and we
came to resolution so if that could be that
process of making sure what is it that we're
getting into and nmaki ng sure that we've got

t hi ngs that safeguard which we, which | alluded
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to or outlined in the presentation.

VICE CHAIR BEGEMAN. Did you say that
90 percent of all the ag products that BN noves
is eligible --

MR MLLER Qut of Mntana, yes.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN: Qut of Mbnt ana,
is eligible for that --

MR, M LLER Yes.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN: -- that
arbitration progranf

MR MLLER It's wheat and barley so
it's eligible for arbitration so.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN. So 90 percent --

MR, MLLER O our ag products.

VI CE CHAIR BEGEMAN. -- of your ag
products --

MR MLLER R ght. The rest are
going to be pulses and small, small grains, so

but wheat and barl ey, we nove so nuch wheat and
barl ey the percentage of what we haul that
essentially means, referring to your earlier

guestion earlier in the day that it is widely
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available to many farmers in the state of
Mont ana.

VICE CHAIR BEGEMAN. It's nore w dely
avai l able than I woul d have envisioned. That's
amazi ng.

MR. MLLER Yes, and to nmake a foll ow
up conment on that, we've had, the nost recent
case, which was the Shel by case referred to the
Decenber of 2009 and part of the arbitration
proceeding we agreed to is there's a nediation at
the very beginning. That was solved in nediation
and that was resulted in $165 rate per car drop
at the tinme and didn't go to the arbitration
phase because the nedi ati on worked but what
happens now quite frequently is we have rather
robust conversation and frequent conversation
with the groups in Montana, with custoners in
Mont ana about what works and what doesn't work so
if, as a strong advocate as a forner shipper and
al so woul d be NSF today, that if a procedure is
known and defined and cl ear ahead of tinme and

both sides believe that there is sone consi stency
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and predictability to what it will get at, it
causes all sorts of great discussions. Sone
ot hers mentioned that, too, but before you ever
there, that's one of the reasons why you don't
see any arbitration cases in Mntana.

We're constantly tal king and evi denced
in nost recent, which is May 1 rate increase we
roll ed back. W' ve got, essentially, feedback
fromthe growers that it was not market
responsi ve, we needed to be | ower on the
i ncreases and we did and we cane to a good
accommodation for both. So no arbitration
needed. No nedi ati on needed. That's a
di scussi on that ought to be had and certainly
that's preferable by all of us for our custoners,
right, to have that constant discussion so that
it doesn't, we're elimnating costs and tinme when
we have those kind of discussions and it does
wor k that way.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN:. Coul d you comrent
on sonething that the representative fromthe

Mont ana Ag Departnent nentioned? He stated that
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they were trying to put together, or they had
proposed putting together, their own shuttle --
no, I'mnot getting the right words for it but
their own nore efficient trains, but that BN
rejected that.

MR MLLER Oh, he referred to a
reverse deed. Yes, that is do you have any that
origininawy to then nove then as a unit at a
later tinme is what | believe he's referring to.
| haven't talked to himspecifically to see if
that was what he was referring to but we've
| ooked at that. We'Il have discussions about it.
It's certainly a cost inherent, shippers, what
they'd like to of course have is try to do that
in a way and Montana is a big state and you' ve
got broad geography that you'd like to try to
gather those facilities over but there are costs
i nherent to us that are part of that so you just
si nply cannot be the sanme cost base, sinply the
sanme kind of rate that you see for a pure 100
car, 110 car shuttle | oader on the system

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN:. Because you have
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to pick up freight along the way?

MR, MLLER Pick up, yes, they're
assenbl ed, noved.

VI CE CHAIR BEGEMAN: It's not that
it's all in one spot?

MR. M LLER No.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN:. They haven't
noved it to one spot. You have to gather it.

MR MLLER Right. They're mles
apart fromeach other; that's why they call it
gathered. You'd have to bring themtogether and
nove them together so there's costs in doing that
as opposed to 110 car shuttle where that | oads
and once it starts noving, it noves straight
wi t hout stopping all the way.

CHAIR MLLER: So could you say, now
" mcurious, in that proposal what were they
doing then? Just like sort of lining up the
nunber of cars and getting a conmtnment? | mean
what was their role in sort of assenbling ---

MR MLLER Well | think the proposal

is that they would like to do that and have
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access to a rate that's better than the |ess than
100 car shuttle rate that's out there today,
right, so try to create a different product.

W' re al ways anenabl e to those kinds of ideas but
it's typically when they don't work it's because
the rate that they would |ike to have is not the
rate that we can provide for that kind of

product .

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN. Have you expl ored
whet her it woul d make sense to try to offer an
arbitration program a private program as you
have with Montana, to other states?

MR MLLER W have but it's going to
be difficult. Mbntana has got sone uni que
characteristics. W are by and large the primary
normal railroad. You' ve got two other railroads
that do conme into the southwest and the northeast
but it's very small. Montana is sort of wheat and
barley so it's very specific to one or two
commodities, typically noves all in one
direction. It's created a platformthat nakes it

nore anmenabl e to making this kind of system work.
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O her states, other railroads you need to make
sure, in that case and you have to have ot her
railroads that both buy in for conpetitive
reasons we need to nake sure we're all adhering
to the sane proceedings and | would reiterate
that point. Even we have done that w th NGFA as
well as far as arbitration that we think can be
better, less costly, nore tinely, we do think we
can't do it unilaterally. It has to be done with
all railroads in mnd for strictly conpetitive
reasons. To be held to a different standard than
ot hers than our conpetitor is not sonething that
we believe is fair for us.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN:. For both of you,
do you think the Board has fulfilled its nandate

to provide a workable rate review process for al

shi ppers?

MR. M LLER  Again, since we have lots
of discussions with folks, |I think the feedback
is that small shippers and | will agree with our

counterparty on the table that |arge shippers, if

they want to bring a rate case they certainly
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can, right? |If they don't |ike the resources or
the tine to do this. It's really a case for the
smal | shippers and that's why | spoke to the
smal | shipper earlier. We think that there are
sone folks that clearly feel that way. There's no
doubt about it. It's not do they feel that way
or we think they mght. They do. In fact, we
think that we'd have to agree with themthat
there's a better process, a faster |ess costly
process that we should be all striving to get
forward. Not only for them but for us. W
think that's the right thing to do. W're in

mar kets that change all the tinme so as for the
alacrity in getting a response and clarity and
consi stency and predictability of what the
outcone is, they're all equally inportant, and
they need to be market based because as you know,
we are in a rabid market based environnment at the
rail road and those things have to be taken into
consideration and |I'll agree they're conpl ex but
they' re not unsol vable. They can be solved. It

just takes sitting down and wal ki ng through the
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specific lane that is out there that is to be
| ooked at .

It's inmportant for that snmall shipper
we think to know that they have the option. |
really don't think it creates a conplicated
cases, | don't, but | do think it creates nore
di scussion and it creates a chance for the snall
shi pper to be heard or at |east feel |ike that he
can be heard and today they're not, there are
sone that feel like they can't.

M5. RINN: | think we're always | ooking
for ways of inproving the process. | think that
the feasibility of 3B can't be condemed now
based on current experience in grain cases
because | will point that the last two 3B cases,
one of which was litigated against Union Pacific,
both involved chlorine, a TIH so clearly you' ve
got issues about who pays for PTC. You' ve got
what is the risk and at least in the case that we
had, which was litigated to a victory by the way
by M. WIlcox on behalf of his client, also

i nvolved a | ot but a very serious difference of
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opi nion where UP said you' ve got to use other
chl ori ne novenents to determ ne conparabl e
traffic and USM di sagreed and they cane up with a
group that was nostly amoni a.

W did not nake that issue up to
create costs for USMand | want to nmake a
personal record that | thought that that comrent
was uncal l ed for and that Union Pacific has a
definite record of stipulating to nmarket
dom nance. W have stipulated that we woul dn't
win a SAC case and all we have to do is figure
out what 180 percent is. W do not try cases in
order to drive up costs for our opponents and |
think the record needs to be clear on that. So
i f you take away the very unique and very serious
issues in the first time either of those parties
or lawers had tried a 3B case, | don't think you
can take the USM as an exanple or as a benchmark
as to what it would cost for grain.

W nmove a |l ot of grain. W don't nove
much chlorine. W nove nore anmoni a but we don't

nove that nmuch nore ammonia so there shoul d not
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be anywhere near the issues of finding conparable
traffic and because grain is fungible | just, |
cannot rule out that there are no other issues
but the likelihood of there being the type of
contentious issues that conplicated the record in
the USM and the other last 3B case | think are
not there, so we haven't seen whether 3B can work
in a grain case and we are certain and | wl|l
make one point. There was a |lot of discovery in
the USM case, but it was discovery conpounded by
t he shi pper against UP. Qur discovery requests
were very nodest because we were too busy
producing all the docunments we were requested to
produce. Do | have any ideas right now on what
we can do to inprove 3B? No, but if we cone up
with any by the 24th we will share themw th you.
VI CE CHAIR BEGCEMAN. We'I| extend the
comment period if it's necessary. Please, | know
you wanted to be asked a question about how the
proposal that we just discussed with the previous
panel , how that woul d pronote the consultants.

Maybe you were being facetious.
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M5. RINN: | was, but I'malso very
serious. Wen M. Crow ey was nmaki ng the point
that the NGFA formula is very sinple to apply,
all you have to do is go through the wave of
data, plug it in the conputer ---

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN:  That even we
could doit, | think, is what he said.

M5. RINN. Exactly. However, nobody

in Omha could do it because we do not have

access to the waybill data. W can only see our
own waybill novenents. W do not have access to
waybi || data on specific novenents for any other

rail road. Therefore, the only people who can
eval uate whether or not a rate is likely to be
above or close or bel ow what the NG-A formul a
woul d tell you would be the nmaxi mum reasonabl e
rate are going to be consultants and outside
counsel and nenbers at the STB.

Wrse yet, if that systemwere in
pl ace today and M. Hess were to cone to ne and
say these are the rates that we have in m nd.

Can you tell me whether or not if a rate case was
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brought agai nst us we would be able to win? |
woul d be giving himadvice for forward | ooki ng.
What is the 2015 harvest season where we spend a
lot of time talking to our custonmers trying to
figure out where, how much and when it's grow ng
based on waybill data from| think 2012 is stil
t he nost recent year avail able for other
rail roads whose rates and certainly ratios we
can't see.

I f you want to have what | woul d
consi der the Board' s objective should be for a
good workable rate test standard, yes, it should
be predictable. It should allow parties an
opportunity for a renedy but it also has to be
wor kabl e in the sense that those who are subj ect
to the standard have the ability, particularly
when you're tal king about it applying to a whole
| ar ge bl ock of business, they have to be able to
conply with it and that system nmakes it
i npossible. It nmakes it inpossible so the only
way | coul d guarantee that we would be able to

conply is if we drive our rates all down to 180,
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which is not what | understand to be the purpose
of or a proper objective of a definition of a
successful rate test.

CHAIR M LLER 1'mcurious for both of
you. You use slightly different |anguage but you
sort of tal ked about market based rate setting |
think is how you said that so when you're saying
that basically what your railroads do is, you
know, you create a narket based rate. Can you
say a little bit nore about what that nmeans? |
mean what is it then that you know based on the
mar ket that goes into your determ nation of your
rate?

MR MLLER It's constant and
persi stent market econonmics that we see every
day. So today, as | saw one of the slides that
you saw up there. You saw the fact that the P&W
exporter conpetes with a New Ol eans exporter
every day on sales to Asia, Korea, Taiwan, Japan,
three of the biggest buyers in the China shipping
for soy beans. [It's constant. |It's an ocean

freight spread. It is the spread between our
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rail rates going west and the barge rates going
south and of course if you're anywhere close to
that it's trucks going one way or the other.
Certainly, it's processor demand that's pulling
grain away fromour rail and it's also our
conpetitor and that's a very strong conpetitive
environment. We're all fighting for market
share.

CHAIR MLLER. So you're |ooking at
truck rates, you're |ooking to see what's
happening with other railroads, you're |ooking at
comodity prices?

MR, MLLER Sure. W get elevators
that will conme to us and say, |'mlosing vol unme
here. This isn't working. It's being trucked to
t he et hanol conpany, the ethanol plant down the
road i s outbidding us. W get that feedback al
the tinme, so when we | ook at a rate increase as
t hey may happen we consider all these sort of
mar ket conplexities and there's lots of it. |
mean it's just constant, so we get that feedback

really every day and it is sonething that we have
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to take into account and inforned and frankly our
custonmers are very well infornmed on it. The
shi ppers know what works and what doesn't work
because it's just pure econonics.

CHAIR M LLER:  Mm hnm

MR. M LLER The beauty of it is that
you' ve got nultiple markets and this is what
geographi c conpetition is all about. It isn't
that you're on BNSF and ship only on BNSF and
then there's no other choice. You have to
conpete. If BNSF corn shipper in South Dakota or
a soy bean shipper in North Dakota is conpeting
wi th soy bean shipper/farmer in the Delta going
t hrough New Orl eans to China, they're conpeting
with each other and that forces us to conpete as
well. We're volune driven. W're back to this
virtuous cycle of investnent. W have to have
growt h, which begets revenue which begets
rei nvest mnent which builds capacity and growh
which revs it up all year long and year after
year, so that's what we nmean by narket based and

it's hard to explain frankly in a few sound bites
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and | don't nean to do that, but that's what we
have to do frankly. That's what keeps it rather
conpetitive and oh, by the way, we |look at how it
plays out with RFVCs it turns out that really
that this works right because R/'VCs are nore than
reasonable and, in fact, if you look at the R/ VCs
as you saw on the chart for the nmanifest shippers
they're extrenely reasonable. So and that's the
result of this market based conpetition

M5. RINN: M. Hess and his team are
doi ng the same thing. What we're | ooking at what
are the production, what are the weat her reports
here in Canada, in South Anerica, in the rest of
the world? Are people shifting to this? Are
they shifting to that? |Is there a new product
comng up here? Wat is it costing to send it
overseas? What are the barges costing? |If
you' re tal ki ng about the pul se products in the
areas we serve, ours are nostly in donestic
markets. Are we conpetitive with truck that
woul d either be noving it to say the Snake River

and Colunbia River or is it going to be
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conpetitive with trucks that are going to be
noving it to processors? W are always getting
i nformation. W nake our best guesses. CQur
custonmers tell us when they think that we've got
it wong and they press us for adjustnents.
Sonetimes we agree with them and we nake

adj ust nents, sonetinmes we don't but we are al ways
in a two-way dial ogue with the custoners on the
origin end and the custoners on the destination
end, not to nention all the brokers who are out
there who are using the sane information to
figure out what the narkets are. It is not as
sinple as basically sitting in and putting a
programin, in Oraha and it conmes out with the

rates.

CHAIR MLLER: So how often, generally

| guess, we're talking tariff rates, | suppose
t hat same kind of thinking goes into your
contract negotiations but if you' re setting
tariff rates, is that something that gets done
annual ly? Does it happen when you think there

have been significant changes in the market
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condi tions?

MR MLLER Wll, and | should know
we have the right to raise themon 20 days
notice or drop themimmediately but we don't, the
i ndustry likes sone certainty fromus. W have
to take that into account so we do have sort of),
we do our best to certainly give themplenty of
notice so typically speaking 60-90 day notice if
we're going to take a rate increase. Partly that
is to put it out there and then have di scussi ons
wth the custoners about this, does this make
sense, but it's also nostly to give them sone
notice about what's com ng, so before they nake
sal es or purchases based upon a certain rate,

t hey have an i dea.

In some cases, we're actually tal king
six nmonths ahead of tine. W're notifying them
of rate changes, particularly ahead of a harvest,
whi ch has got lots of volune. So typically
speaking for us you'll see your rate changes once
or twice a year. Now that can change, it

certainly can be nore frequent or |ess depending
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upon the market conditions, but typically that's
what the custoner sees fromus and that's again
varies by commodity but it's typically one to two
times a year.

M5. RINN. It would be very nuch the
sane. W have, and this is based on the feedback
we've gotten fromour customers. | guess they're
| ooking for sonething that's relatively stable in
what is obviously a very dynam c market pl ace for
them but we aimto give themhere is the price
for this season. They know when we're going to
give that price but before that price is
established there is discussion going on saying
this is what we're | ooking at. Wat do you
think? W get that feedback before it's
established and it is published before the rate
beconmes effective. W are not rigid about that.
| f somet hi ng happens and there has to be an
adj ustnent again we talk to our custonmers and we
do that. That nay or nay not be in the formof a
tariff.

CHAIR M LLER.  Your tariff rates on a
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website, searchable, even | could figure out what
t hey are?

MR MLLER CQur tariff rates are
avai lable to all of our shippers that ship on us
and if you ask us for those rates we can wal k you
t hrough and explain those to you. For BNSF,
virtually all of our novenents are tariff based.
| know that there was an illusion earlier about
the railroads are different and we are virtually
all tariff based. W' ve got very few contracts
on the grain side. They're very narrow and very
specific but we are virtually all tariff based.

M5. RINN. | believe they are. | have
not recently done it nyself but | have in the
past been able to find what | was |ooking for on
our website and | am not technically adept.

CHAIR M LLER. So, here's the other
thing that I'mwondering and | thought M.
MIler, your charts were very interesting
show ng, you know, the huge growh in shuttle
facilities and investnent nmade both by your

custonmers as well as by the conpany and certainly
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and broadly, just even for the US econony, that
kind of an investnent has a wonderful effect.
What we heard earlier today though fromthe fol ks
who were here from Montana was the feeling that
we' re doi ng what the railroads have asked us to
do, we're nmking investnent but we don't feel

| i ke that efficiency that should be created from
that investnent then is showing up in our rate
and I'm you know, wondering what you say about
that and |l et ne add one nore thing. As near as |
understand it, and naybe there's a lag in the
nunbers, but you can see the grain rates have
tended to trend hi gher than other commodity type
rates and so |' mwondering where it seens |ike
there is a lot of investnment on fromag shippers
in this world, is that efficiency then not
getting played out in the rate?

MR MLLER | think that's a really
different argunment to nake it that way. W are
mar ket based. |'Il bring it back to that. W're
mar ked based by commodity and how we price the

rates so when soneone says to ne that our rate

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

i ncreases are different percentage than say

| unber, | say we don't know what |unber is
priced. | don't, what | do know is what the
market is for corn and what it takes to be
conpetitive on corn. For exanple, |last year we

t ook zero based increase in wheat, corn or soy
beans across the US. That's a zero percent. You
know, that's based upon what we felt at the tine
was valid and the right thing to do and this year
we're taking different increases.

It's market based. It's as sinple as
that. So conparing to other commodities for us
is sonething we just don't do and | don't know
how to respond to it other than to sinply say
that. W also talk a | ot about it being a right
to grow so we are again, this virtuous cycle of
i nvestment, we are nassively reinvesting in the
railroad. That is putting tremendous anmounts of
noney and cost back into the system That's al so
the right thing to do. That's exactly what our
custonmers want us to do. That's how we all grow.

So | think the conbination of being market based

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

254

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

and maki ng sure we earn the right to grow at BNSF
results in rates that the market sees.

Again, | hate to harp on it but as we
get feedback that the rates aren't valid with the
mar ket pl ace or they're not conpetitive and if we
agree we'll assess themover nultiple inputs we
get fromthe marketplace, as we did on May 1, and
we'll pull them back. W pulled back part of the
wheat increases, so again that's an argunent that
pulls me in a direction that frankly isn't the
reality about how we set grain rates. It's set
to the market for each conmmodity.

M5. MULLIGAN. | would just add to
that just on some evidence that's in the record,
| i ke John said he doesn't pay attention to it but
we did take the waybill sanple that was avail abl e
in this proceeding and we | ooked at the relative
i ncreases across different comodity groups for
BNSF. If you | ook in our opening evidence under
the FTI, fair fight statenent, there's a chart
there that shows where the various grain

commodities fit in terns of percent increase
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versus other commobdities and they're pretty close
to the nedian in one case and then both the other
two major grain conmodities are significantly
bel ow t hat .

CHAIR MLLER. Ckay. Thank you. M.
Ri nn, you used the termthat, you know, if the
rates are getting in the danger zone you do
sonet hing about it but can you say a bit nore
about what you neant by that?

MS. RINN: Well, what | meant is that
our marketing departnent, the folks in the
regul ating areas, if they're taking an increase
and they're concerned about whether or not that,
in fact, could get theminto rate litigation they
consult with us in the | aw departnment and we take
a look at it based on what we know, what about
t he Board standards are, about whether or not it
is and we discuss with them you know, whether it
and what our options are. | really can't go nuch
beyond that wi thout getting in attorney client
privilege and even if BNSF is at the far end of

the table --
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CHAIR MLLER: They're in the room

M5. RINN. They are conpetitors.

CHAIR M LLER. Thank you. And then a
guestion that | have for both of you is one of
the things we were |looking at is, you know, we
have this auction format for grain shuttles and
grain cars, but that's a cost that then doesn't
show up in the RRVCratio and is that a flaw in
R/'VC? Should it be there?

M5. MIULLIGAN. | can add maybe a poi nt
of clarity on that. |In terns of the primary
auction that BNSF participates in and that we do
see revenues fromin tinmes frankly, nostly where
we have capacity constrai ned environment |ike
| ast year, so |ast year was a bit of anonaly for
us, but as | understand it when we generate the
revenues as part of our waybill sanple that we
pass on to the Board, we do include prem uns from
the auction for that period. |It's not allocated
down to individual shipnments, but it is allocated
to show traffic that participates in the auction,

so it is actually in our waybill sanple.
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MR MLLER And | would just follow
up by saying that |ast year was a rather unusual
year. Historically speaking, those prem uns are
very close to zero or just slightly above zero in
nost years and which we're back to today, in
fact.

MS5. RINN: I n our case, |ikew se, npst
of the tinme it's zero on the auction in terns of
the revenue we get. Last year was unusual in
that we did get revenue because those were vi ewed
as very valuable. M understandi ng though is |
don't believe that the revenue we are paid for
the shuttle is, in fact, reported in the waybill
data that we report to the sanple because it
really is an option on a train and then that
cust omer basically decides where that train is
going to be | oaded and we don't know that at the
time they give us the noney. W also have
incentives that are associated with the shuttle
SO we pay to the parties who | oad and unl oad the
shuttle to make sure that they load it quickly

and they unload it quickly so that we can keep
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the | oconotive with the shuttle so that trainis
al ways ready to go.

So that's a cost and we don't get that
is not treated as an adjustnment and that's not in
the waybill sanple, plus if the, we have a nutual
comm tment on the shuttle that the custoner is
basically going to get that train and as soon as
it's basically dropped off one |load they're
supposed to send it sonepl ace el se for another
|l oad. If they live up to their vol une conm tnent
we give theman incentive and we |ikew se don't
reflect that as a net adjustnent because we don't
know when that, again, is happening at the tine
we have to report the waybill novenent. So they
are comrercially related but froman accounting
point of view, trying to match themup on tine
for a reporting basis does not work out.

CHAIR M LLER: Thank you. And then
" mjust curious, one of the things that you said
was that the RFVC ratio doesn't really tell you
about the transportation market.

MS. RINN: NMm hmm
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CHAIR M LLER. And that seened to be,
t hat made ne think back to what | heard this
norning fromTRB in their report when they were
tal ki ng about this alternative nodel where you
woul d use market based rates or rates that had
been determned in the market | guess is the way
| would say to determ ne what your threshold was
for when you could bring a rate case and | was
just sort of curious when, maybe | didn't hear
what you said correctly or maybe I'mstill not
gui t e understandi ng the proposal but |'mjust
wondering if that resonated with you, if that
felt like that was nore of a market based way to
judge rates, what you were hearing the professor
say this norning.

M5. RINN: | amalso very curious to
see that report and how they did that market
anal ysi s.

CHAIR M LLER  Yes, we don't know too
much about it yet. |I'mnot trying to, you know,
trick you into endorsing the TRB report.

MS. RRNN: But | will make one
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observation. |In nmy experience when | see

mar ket i ng peopl e assessing the market and trying
to figure out what's the sweet spot for the rate,
| don't see them conparing RIVC ratios for
different custoners. What | see themdoing is try
to come up with sonething, whether' it's mlls
per ton mle or it's dollars, they're using
sonet hi ng about that goes to what is the price
the custoner pays in the relevant nmarket to try
to figure out whether or not it's nmarket based.

CHAIR MLLER. Any nore questions.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN. Just maybe one or
two. M. Mller, you nentioned that you
currently have 7000 cars in storage, and again,
not that we want to relive last year in any way,
probably especially you, so | don't really want
you to conpare it to a year ago. But generally,
at this point, this second week of June is it
normal that you have 7000 in storage or is it, |
mean you have what, 227

MR. MLLER 28,000 cars.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN: 28 total.
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MR MLLER It's nore normal than
people realize. | think three out of the |last six
years we were near this nunber but it really
changes. The crop size and crop demand. One is
where I'mat right nowis the US dollar is
hurting US exports we're nmassive crops in
Ukrai ne, Brazil, Russia are hurting the ability
to conpete because they're currencies have
deval ued and they've got nmassive crops and the
farmers in the US as you' ve seen prices drop are
holding on to it and conbine that with our very
strong velocity across the systemand you're
seei ng you know, velocity actually kick assets
back out so it's creating cars that are parked
and we have | oconotives now in storage on the
systemand it has changed quite fast in the |ast
seven, eight, nine nonths. But we think that was
| ed clearly by resources comng to bear on our
rail road.

Vel ocity was our problem|ast year and
vel ocity has brought us out of it. W have cone

back in spades on velocity and that's directly
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due to the investnent in |oconotives, people,
track capacity across the system and we know t hat
this is part of being in the ag markets. There's
sonme reciprocality and volatility that's part of
it but it's a cost that | think sonme fol ks don't
really fully realize that there's sone years when
t hi s happens and then ten nonths ago, |'m not
sure anybody woul d have forecasted 7000 cars
parked. We're offering freight today we're not
getting a bid for and we're getting sone
custoners that would |ike us to sl ow down, so
we're nmoving too fast. |It's a good problemto
have. 1'd nuch rather be in that environnent.

Quite frankly, our nessage today in
the marketplace is we're ready and willing and
able to carry us, see the next big harvest cone
because we've got | ots of capacity planned to
take it and we're real hopeful that's going to be
the case this fall

MS. RINN: Li kewi se, we have themin
storage. Last year, we had actually gotten down

to the point where | think you could count on
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your fingers and toes the covered hoppers that
weren't in service. Thank goodness we were able
to | ease those 1500 in January. W now have nore
than 1500 in storage. Partly it is in fact yes,
vel ocity has been restored but it's al so demand
is down this year as conpared to | ast year.

VICE CHAIR BEGEMAN: Wl I, 1'Il end it
where | started earlier. This proceeding really
isn'"t to debate in this forum whether or not
grain rates are too high. It's really to nmake
sure that we are neeting our obligation of having
a nmeani ngful, econom cally sound and fast but, a
fair process. So for post-hearing conments, we
are open to constructive ideas. And that applies
to everyone in the roomand everyone |i stening.

M5. RINN. Thank you.

MR. M LLER Thank you.

M5. M LLER Thank you, Ann. Thank
you, panelists, and | think we'll take a 10
m nute break before we start our next panel.

When we come back it's Panel Nunmber VI and

that' |l be NS, CSX, CP and CN.
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(Wher eupon, the above-entitled natter
went off the record at 3:09 p.m and resuned at
3:20 p.m)

CHAIR MLLER: Al right. Wl cone
back. | think we'll get started now with our
sixth Panel and it's also a panel of railroad
representatives. So we have Patrick Sinonic from
NS al ong with John Scheib and with CST we have
TimMNulty and Pat Hitchcock; w th Canadi an
Paci fic, Janes Cenents is here and with the
Canadi an National Railway, Ted Kalick. So,
wel comre to you all. Thank you very nmuch and
we'll start with Norfol k Southern.

MR. SCHEI B: Good afternoon. My nane
is John Scheib and | serve as general counsel of
commer ce and represent Norfol k Sout hern Rail way
Conmpany this afternoon. Wth nme is Pat Sinonic,
who serves as group vice president for
agriculture, fertilizer and consumer products.
M. Sinmonic will open our presentation by
di scussi ng the extensive conpetition Norfolk

Sout hern faces to transport grain which NS
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believes is a core reason why there have been no
grain rate cases involving Norfol k Southern. As
you' ve seen in the highly confidential record,
NS's grain rates are such that only a small

per cent age of those shipnents could neet the
guantitative market dom nance test before even
considering the qualitative test. Then |'|
return to address sonme of the issues raised in
the Board's notice. All of those issues have
been fully briefed and so obviously, we

i ncorporate all our positions stated in those
papers. Pat.

MR. SIMONIC. Good afternoon. As John
menti oned, nmy nanme's Pat Sinmonic. |'mgroup vice
presi dent of agriculture, fertilizer and consuner
products group with Norfol k Southern. Today I'II
define our network and the diverse markets we
serve, the conpetitive |andscape in which we
operate and sonme of the operating challenges this
busi ness can present and you will see that we are
quite different fromsone of the other Class 1's.

For the purpose of definition, ny coments refer
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to the Comodity Group grain as defined by the
AAR group, Standard Transportati on Conmodity
Codes 0113 and 0114. Although NS hauls | ess
grain than any other railroads, NS noved

approxi mately 200, 000 carl oads of grain in 2014.
O those, 120,000 carl oads were corn and

approxi mately 40,000 carl oads were each wheat and
soy beans. That total expands to approxinmately
350, 000 carl oads when you include the AAR group
grain mll products.

My testinmony will briefly highlight
sone of a few of the ways that the different
types of grain transportation on Norfol k Southern
face very different nmarket conditions and define
any sweepi ng generalizations. First, our average
|l ength to haul for grain is approximately 565
mles. But specific novenents very widely due to
the variety of markets we serve. For exanple, we
recei ve wheat from beyond Chicago and deliver to
mlling facilities at distances in excess of 1200
mles but we also handle unit trains of soy beans

and corn traveling within one crude district
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whi ch sonetimes can be less than 40 mles. Due
to the type of the market and the | ocation of the
mar kets within our network all offer very
different conpetitive and operating chall enges.
From a conpetitive nodal perspective,
we conpete with truck, barge, inports, and other
rail both directly and indirectly. The direct
nodal conpetition we face is easy to define. For
exanpl e, where two conpeting nodes serve a set of
comon points; however, today w th custoners
nati onal and international market distribution we
must | ook nmuch further into a supply chain and
consider the inpact of indirect conpetition,
mar ket conpetition as well. For exanple, take a
hypot heti cal nove, corn froman elevator in
northern Illinois to a feed mll |ocated 1200
mles away in a destination nmarket where both the
shi pper and the receiver are both served by NS.
There are a nunber of factors we consider when
trying to ensure our custoners are receiving the
| onest delivered cost in the marketpl ace.

First, on the supply side we want to
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attract as nuch grain to our network as possible.

The farnmer has a nunber of choices before the
corn can even get to an NS served elevator. The
corn can be delivered by truck to another
el evat or on anot her conpeting railroad or to a
river termnal or to a | ocal processing plant or
it can sinply be stored awaiting future sales
dependi ng on certain market conditions. On the
destination side, we nust take into account that
we are conpeting with larger crops of corn being
grown locally in our destination market that can
be trucked to a custoner. Barge and rail truck
transfers that allow plants to source from ot her
| ocations. Gther commpdities that can be
substitute for corn and delivered locally by
truck. And in sone |ocations, South Anerican
i mports. W nust provide an all in delivered
price that allows this particular feed mll to
produce and price his product conpetitively in
the markets in which he conpetes.

Finally, grain transportation all

provi des us sone very significant operating and
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cost chal l enges across our network. Agriculture
products are seasonal, cyclical and many of our
agricultural custoners are |located in rural areas
on our lighter density network. For exanple,
unli ke nost non-agriculture production facilities
we serve, grain and grain products do not always
| oad at the same |ocation or at the sane tine of
day or at the sanme day of the week or even the
sane time of the year to a single commobn point.
Due to this, we are unable to schedul e
t hese novenents and in turn plan resources in
advance. So a lot of our grain and grain product
shi pments require on demand servi ce whi ch can
cause a nmmjor strain on resources, track
capacity, equi pnent and our crew base and all
must be available for all the different |anes
over which this custonmer m ght tender a
particul ar shiprment. Further, agriculture
products nove across nmany of our |ower density
| i nes and sonetines are the only business
supporting the operation in certain branch Iines,

SO in sone cases these branch |ines are
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subsi di zed by the bal ance of the network.

In conclusion, while this is just a
cursory sunmary, grain transportation on NS is
varied in its formand in its market. |In short,
Norfol k Southern's traffic does not support many
of the generalizations made about grain
transportation, grain rates in this docket and
t he Board shoul d avoid relying on sweeping
assunptions or concl usions about these narkets.
Those are my comments and |'Il pass it back over
to John for

MR. SCHEI B: Thank you, Pat. As Pat
noted, we price to the market. Neverthel ess, we
recogni ze the regul atory regi ne and our core
principle in this proceeding is sinple. It's the
econonics of providing the rail transportation
service that matters when eval uating the
reasonabl eness of a rail rate. The stand al one
cost test is a gold standard precisely because it
is firmy rooted in econom cs of providing the
transportation service in a contestable market.

In order for the Board to adopt a rate
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reasonabl eness test for grain only, that test
must be rooted in the sane sound econom cs but a
grain only test would require nore. |t nust be
based on sonme uni que characteristic of rai
transportation that affects grain and only grain
differently than the econom cs of rail
transportation for any other commbdity and to be
clear, the relevant inquiry is not whether
t here's sonet hing uni que about grain narkets.
The question is whether there is sonething unique
about the econonics of providing rail
transportation services for grain shipnments that
should result in a different test for the
reasonabl eness of rail rates for grain than for
any other comodity.

Now, I'll turn briefly to a few of the
i ssues in the Board's notice. First, the Board
asked the parties to address whet her the board
shoul d revisit the prohibition on novenent
specific adjustnents in determning the
guantitative market dom nance threshold in rate

cases for grain shipnents. The real question the
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Board is asking is whether the Board should all ow
novenment specific adjustnents in all rate cases.

| f grain shippers believe that the system average
cost of URCS overstates the cost of their

shi pnments, that nmeans they al so nust believe that
URCS understates the cost of other shipnents,
perhaps |ike coal and chlorine. O there may be
under or overstatenents based on whether a
commodity noves in a single car, a unit train or
a nmulti-car service. It's sinply the nature of
averages |ike URCS uses. Sonme novenents are
actually above the average and sone are bel ow and
t hat proposition's not controversial.

Even a shipper witness, M. Fauth, a
witness for ARC in this proceedi ng acknow edges
this fact when he says, "Since URCS reflects a
railroad' s system average cost novenent specific
cost adjustnents can work both ways. Actual
vari abl e costs can be higher or |ower than the
system average." Accordingly, in order for the
regul atory systemto account for all railroad

costs, the issue of whether to permt novenent
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specific adjustnents is sinply an all or nothing
proposition.

Second, we've presented substanti al
evi dence that the specific proposals for new rate
met hodol ogies in this proceeding are all
arbitrary at best and in sone cases, conpletely
unsupported. Arbitrary rate regi nes have been
struck down by the courts tinme and agai n over the
years. These proposals in this docket |ike any
econoni ¢ underpinning, in fact, this norning when
you heard about proposals, they didn't once
expl ain the econon cs under pi nni ng them and
they're nerely a rate cap. Finally they fail
core principals, they're not econom cally sound
and they do not account of any aspect of rail
transportation that's unique to grain. [|ndeed
the DC circuit has al ready expressed skepticism
that grain requires a test different from any
ot her conmmodity in Burlington Northern versus
| CC, 985 F2nd 589. |In short, the STB is not an
ATM  The economi cs are the econonics and sound

econoni cs cannot be sacrificed for the political
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desire of a single segnent of shippers.

Third, the board invited comrent on
the i ssue of revenue adequacy in the context of
this proceeding. Any consideration of revenue
adequacy in this proceeding is prenmature given
the fact that there's a separate revenue adequacy
proceedi ng i n an upconm ng hearing. Therefore
we're not going to spend a lot of tinme on it
except to say that the evidence in revenue
adequacy proceeding clearly shows first that the
only statutory purpose behi nd revenue adequacy
was to establish an annual benchmark to ensure
that the agency was doing its job to help
rail roads becone revenue adequate. Second the
annual cal cul ation substantially overstates
whether a railroad is revenue adequate and third,
a separate top down revenue adequacy restraint
woul d function as a rate of return regul ation
which is the kind of regulation that is
di sfavored by econom st and is bei ng abandoned
all the world and across the United States

because of the substantial disincentives that it
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creates.

Finally, the board asks whether nore
i nformati on should be provided in agriculture
contract summary in the interest of, quote, great
transparency, close quote. Those reports are not
filed for generally transparency. 49 USC 10709G
clearly states that railroads file those
sumaries for only one reason, so that the
shi pper can bring a conplaint and the board can
open a proceeding within 30 days after the
summary's filing based on four limted grounds.
Al'l the information necessary to achieve the only
regul atory purpose is already included in those
contract sunmari es.

Now, our point is different, no such
conpl aint has ever been filed so in essence CSX
petition about a year ago to have the board
exenpt fromregulation, the requirenent that
railroads file summaries of agriculture contracts
because it's not clear that these summaries are
needed even for that |imted regul atory purpose.

Al t hough they take substantial resources to
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conpile, it appears shippers hardly, if ever
access themat all much |less review the sunmari es
to evaluate or file a conplaint under the
statute. The shippers basically admtted as much
in response to our petition. Although shippers
may want to place nore owners reporting

requi renents on railroads, there's no general
right to transparency into the private contracts
of other parties. Thank you.

MR, MCNULTY: Thank you and good
afternoon. My nanme is TimMNulty and |'m
responsi ble for the agriculture and food markets
for CSX transportation. W did bring a few
slides with us.

MR SIMONIC. The slides are ready and
showi ng here on this nonitor, so we just need to
get them connect themto the screens.

MR, MCNULTY: Perfect. Thank you.
Now, if | can figure out how to work the renote
we'll be in good shape. Right here, perfect.
Thank you. This first slide gives a sense of how

i mportant agriculture is to CSX s diverse
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portfolio. We're a $11 billion conpany and AG
represents about 9 percent of our revenues and
it's critically inportant to CSX over the |ong
term | think it nmay be a distance thing, why
don't you just drop themfor ne. That would be
great.

In this next slide represents again
just to qualify a little bit, about 60 percent of
CSX business is related to feed grain commodities
and those are really what we'l| be discussing
over the course of the next several slides. O
those commodities really the preponderance of it
is feeding animals in the southeast. About 60
percent of our business of the category we're
tal ki ng about represents animal feeding. There's
25 percent that goes into processing nmarkets
whi ch nostly soybeans or wheat that will nove
into a further process channel and then the
bal ance is export grains. So 15 percent of our
business is export grain. Wile export grain is
an inportant conmodity just the eastern dynam cs

don't necessarily allow for a large quantity of
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grain to be exported off the east coast and
there's several options relative to river
facilities and the |lake facilities. That just
makes it difficult to conpete.

Just from a perspective of public
versus private rates, CSX is structure only 18
percent noves under the public donmain and there's
really three reasons | think for that. First and
forenpbst, we try to reach an agreenment with our
custonmers on an econom cs that they need to
enhance their business. W understand that
feeding costs are a | arge percentage of chicken
production and rate stability is an inportant
conponent of our custoners in terns of how they
treat their business. So we strive to reach
agreenent. The second benefit of that is in a
guid pro quo situation, custoners are generally
commtting sone volune to us so it allows us to
plan better for the harvest season. Gain can be
vol atil e enough given crop conditions and car
supplies so we have to very solid idea going into

a harvest period of exactly how nuch grain we
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expect to handl e from our custoners.

So in addition to our contracts we
have pre-harvest discussion with all of our
custonmers relative to what they're expecting for
t he upcom ng season and it hel ps bal ance and
snoot h our expectations as well as our custoners'
expectations. And thirdly just to kind of a
little bit on that public domain, our tariff
freights are readily avail able on the internet
and what we find is they' re used for a | ot of
different reasons, across a |lot of different size
conpani es. So even sone of our |arger custoners
will use our tariff publications to handl e spot
novenents or to handle rejected cars, there's a
mul ti tude of reasons why sonmeone m ght use our
public information, so it's a very val uable too
to allow our custoners to get rates quickly and
to make decisions quickly relative to their
busi ness.

And our custoners are large. This
graph represents the annual revenues, 2014 annual

revenues of a |ot of public custoners, and then
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we have a |l arge contingency of privately owned
customers too. But | think the point is that the
custonmers that we're dealing with are very

conpl ex. Most of themhave nmulti facilities that
are either on the feed mll side or they have
multiple feed mlIl or on the processing side and
t hese conpani es have significant conpetition

avai lable to them and significant choices on how
they're going to source their business and supply
t he needs of their aninmals.

So this one is going to be tough on
you, Pat, all right, so be ready. | really want
totell the story of what Pat outlined. At the
end of the day we want to feed chi ckens and we
want to feed as many chickens as we possibly can
feed. In order to do that, we really do
understand that not only do you have to have
incentives to build feed mlls on CSX
transportati on but you al so have to very vi brant
origin elevator infrastructure and we take that
bal ance very seriously to nake sure that both of

the ends of the equation nake sense from an CSX
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perspective. In order to really have a healthy
el evat or system you have to have a healthy farner
that's what to sell to that el evator.

So under a perfect scenario that
farmer will sell to that elevator and then that
elevator will sell to that chicken, the chicken
gets fed and everybody's happy.

CHAIR M LLER. That's some chi cken.

MR, MCNULTY: Yes, it is. As we peel
back though to one | evel of conpletely, really
| ook at the farnmer and he says, you know, that
farmer has a choice, he can sell to a processing
facility and in fact east of the M ssissippi
there's north of 55 processing facility that they
have choice to sell to and nost of those
processing facilities, whether they're ethanol
processing facilities or either they' re being a
corn processing facilities, they're nostly
| ocated in Mchigan, Indiana, Chio and Illinois
which is the corn that we want to grab to feed
t hose markets. So that farner does have a choice

to sell to those processing markets.
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Secondly he has a choice to sell to
river termnals. | nean, quite frankly the river
systemin our country is adequate, it needs
i nvestment but it's certainly adequate in
| ocations that it attracts grain to nove down to
t hose situations and al so the Great Lakes.
There's a | ot of eastern grain will nove out over
Tol edo, Ohio. So though there are options for
those farners to sell to that, the rivers or the
| akes. He has another option he can sell to
anot her elevator. W feel that once that farnmer
| oads into a truck it's not that hard to go to a
different elevator and if goes to a different
el evat or than what we consider that prinmary
elevator, it could be on CSX, it could be on the
river, it could be on a conpeting railroad, it
coul d be on any nunber of things so it's a
choi ce.

And the real catch is, is that farner
can choose not to do anything and he can store it
on his own farmfacility and wait until tonorrow

and make those sane kind of choices. W hope
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that he does sell it to the elevator, but once he
does again, that el evator has those sanme choi ces.
That el evator can in turn sell to the processing
facilities, much |like the farmer, or he can sel
into the river system So all that action is

t aki ng place and we haven't even fed our poor
chicken in North Carolina or South Carolina. So
let's just talk about himfor a little bit.

That chi cken does have sone choi ces as
well. He can buy fromthat el evator which is
what want to happen, or he can buy from anot her
elevator. And that choice is out there for him
it could be closer for him it could be further
away, it's an option that he has. He can also
buy fromthe river system Several of the
Tennessee, Al abama are designation river points
are transfer points for grain and that grain can
work into as far as east as North Carolina. The
chi cken al so has a choice of the local crop.

Now, granted there's probably not enough | ocal
crop to feed all the chickens in the southeast,

but i nproved fam ng practice really have shown
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that over the past ten years that | ocal crop has
i ncreased 30 percent so it is significant and
it's significantly grow ng.

| f the chicken doesn't like that |oca
sout heast grain, he also has the option to call
on his closes port and feed on South American
grain. And over the past three years South
American grain has cone in through WI m ngton
t hrough Norfol k, through New Ol eans and even
t hrough Tanmpa in drought situations. So to think
that we can control whether that happens, | think
is alittle bit difficult to do because econonics
will dictate whether that grain is inported
t hrough South America and it's been happening.
Al'l those conplexities are at work and all we're
trying to do is again, nake sure that that
chi cken can thrive and grow.

But what really keeps us up at night
is that chicken relocating to another area,
whet her that be a different feed mlIl in the
sout heast or a feed mll closer to the corn

supply which cuts out rail altogether or even
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worse, is if nmoves internationally or noves to
anot her source. Al those we feel are capabl e of
occurring.

CHAIR MLLER Tim excuse ne, |I'm
wondering could you let that chicken know t hat we
need nore eggs and it should get busy |aying and
stop doing so much grain buying. It's like
focusing on the wong things right now.

MR, MCNULTY: We'll do our best. Just
one other thing, if you ook at this conplexity
and how this conpletion translates into the
market | think here's a great graph that shows
are receipts for CSX at 170 percent. | want to
take one mnute real quickly with the remaining
about ny tine to address an earlier conversation
fromthe Panel about sone spread changes that CSX
has made. And | want to be very cl ear about what
that is just for the purposes of this. And
origin spread change as we see it, it's a car
grain pricing A plus, B pricing. The A portion
of it is the origin grain spread and that's the

rate fromthe origin elevator to Col unbus, OChio,
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that's the A portion. The B portion is the rate
from Col unbus to the designation.

The A portion of the rate which is
bei ng di scussed in ternms of the origin spreads
represents | ess than 25 percent of the through
rates and that A portion has not been touched by
CSX in 15 years. So there have been changes to
shoreline econonics, there's been changes to
productivity within CSX costing, there's been
changes within the shoreline industry as |I said
and just things that have really evolved that we
needed to address that. | think before you can
make any assunptions on that we have to | ook
through toll through transportation and the rates
t hat have changed on that. So just keep in m nd
as we tal k about origin spreads that is a
significant factor.

Nunber two, not to confuse origin
spreads with capital investnent and incentives of
our origin elevator or destination feed mlls to
grow. Because we have encouraged investnent in

feed mlls and those investnents are separate
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fromthe origin spreads. W offer anywhere from
15 to 18 percent rate discounts for facility
devel opnent s t hrough rate encouragenent and we
al so have express | oad incentives that offer
additional rate incentives to be efficient and
| oad quickly and that can anmount to a 2 to 4
percent of the rates. So keep those separate in
your mind also. And really, what | really want
to address is process, because we did change
t hose origin spreads but we want to be very clear
on the process associated with doing that.

W announced t hese changes back in
April and we did give a 45 day kind of discussion
period with our custoners, with our shoreline
partners to give theman opportunity to discuss
wi th us how those changes were going to inpact
them should things be done differently and we
encouraged and did discuss with every major
agriculture custonmer across CSX about how it
shoul d evolve. After that 45 day period, we did
rei ssue the spreads and they were different than

what the spread was in April. So when you talk
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about process | want to nmake sure that we're very
clear that we inplenmented that process to take

f eedback from our short |ines, from our customers
and then secondly we gave six nonth notification
that come October 1 is when those changes were
going to go in.

Peopl e can argue that that wasn't | ong
enough or that was too long, | don't know what
the right answer to that is, but six nonths
appears reasonable from our perspective to
prepare yourself for some of those econonic
changes. So thank you very much, | appreciate
it.

CHAIR M LLER: Thank you.

MR. CLEMENTS: Thank you and |I'm
grateful today to be in front of the board with
an opportunity to present the comrents of
Community and Pacific Railway Conpany on its own
behal f and al so on the behal f of Soo Line Rail way
Cor porati on, Del aware and Hudson Rai | way
Cor porati on and Dakota, M nnesota and Eastern

Rai | way.
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My nane is Janes Clenents, |'mthe
vi ce president of strategic planning and
transportation services at CP. | have over 20
years of experience at CP and | think nost
relevant to this hearing includes nore than three
years in various roles in our Canadi an grain
mar keti ng and sal es group and anot her three years
as the director of our US grain nmarketing and
sal es team

Today | will specifically be
addressi ng the proposal nade by the Nati onal
Grain and Feed Association in this proceedi ng
that the board shall consider the revenue and
cost of CP's conbined US and Canadi an system
oper ati ons when determ ning revenue adequacy and
t he reasonabl eness chal | enges of grain shipnents.
| will note that the issues raised by the NGFA
proposal and ny remarks apply nore generally all
of the CP's business as well. In ternms of policy
| ssues, the NGFA proposal is bad policy, it
focuses only on the immediately allegedly

positive inpacts on revenue adequacy
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determ nations for the purposes of making it
easier for US grain shippers to obtain rate
prescription fromthe STB and fails to take into
account the uni ntended and adverse policy
i mpl i cations.

Firstly, this proposal would distort
t he measure of financial health of the US rail
operations and underm ne the board's ability to
regul ate effectively the rail operations subject
toits jurisdiction. 1In 2001 deliberations
regardi ng consolidating reporting for conmonly
controlled class 1 carries, ex parte 634, the
board recogni zed that due to different regul atory
and | abor reginmes in Canada and the US which can
ef fect cost structures and earnings of railroads
and require the report their non US operations
may di stort the operations subject to the board
regul ation and to avoid that distortion the board
confirmed it would continue to require reporting
only on rail operations within the United States.

Secondly, the proposal makes US

regul atory deci sions sensitive to Canadi an
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regul atory deci sion and the econonic environnent
in Canada. |If the regulatory and economc
conditions in Canada create superior financial
performance for the Canadian rail entity, this
proposal woul d essentially anbunt to cross
boarder subsidies to the US shippers. Simlarly
i f those conditions create inferior financial
performance for the Canadian rail entity the
proposal would make it nore difficult for the US
shi pper to obtain a rate prescription. Consider
a situation where there is an adverse Canadi an
regul atory situation that |owers the rates for
novi ng Canadi an grain and negatively inpacts CP' s
financial performance in the Canadian entity.
That regul atory change coul d than have a negative
ef fect on the revenue adequacy cal cul ation for
the US grain shippers and nmaking it harder for
themto obtain rate relief.

The end result is that the US grain
shi pper woul d get a conpetitive disadvantage, in
some ways you could say it's a double

di sadvant age because you had a decrease in Canada
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and now no access to rate relief on the US side
at the sane tinme. Thirdly the NGFA' s proposal
coul d penalize and di scourage corporate
structures that enable railroads to provide nore
efficient cross boarder service and realize
econoni es of scale. Consolidation of managenent,
back office and other functions translates into

| ower cost for operating entitles on both sides
of the boarder. These |ower costs are reflected
in the US operating entities data reported in the
Rl and in turn flow through to the revenue
adequacy determ nati on.

Finally, the proposal is
discrimnatory as it focuses only on CP and CN.
It ignores performance of the foreign operations
of railroads affiliated with other class 1
railroads. A summary of the difference in the
Canadi an and US regul atory environnents highlight
the potential that Canadi an coul d di scourage US
regul atory determ nations under the NGFA
proposal. CP is subject to differences in |abor

| aws in Canada and the US and the differences in
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t hose | aws and ot her regul ati ons nean we have
different work rules and separate | abor
agreenments for US and Canadi an wor kforces. The
result is that the cost structure and nature of
the operations in Canada are different fromthe
US operating entities, |ikew se the potenti al
financial and operating inpact of |abor disputes
in the two countries differ.

The approach to rail policy and
regulation in the two countries is radically
different. The Canada policy objectives stress
the need for conpetition to achieve the | owest
total cost for all nodes of transportation and to
advance the wel | -bei ng of Canadi ans, irrespective
of the inpacts on the rail industry. There is
not explicit provision in Canadi an | egi slature or
supporting regulation to review and consi der rail
revenue adequacy. Canada tends to take a nore
heavy hand to regul ation than the US.

Regul atory differences are evident at
the technical level as well. CP does report

separate |l edgers of the relevant entities under

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

294

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

295

bot h the Canadi an uniforned classification of
accounts, the US unifornmed system of accounts and
for tax treatnment in Canada and the US. These

di fferences can have material inpacts on the
reported conmpany's finances. For exanple, in
Canadi an regul atory accounting pensions and ot her
enpl oyee benefits are recogni zed on a cash basis
as opposed to an accrual basis in the US. The US
rail regulation has been fairly stable in the
post staggers area. |In contrast, in this same
period the Canada rail regulation has experience
nuner ous significant changes. |In fact, the
Canadi an Transportation Act mandates regul ar
conprehensive reviews of the act. Such a review
by the federal governnent is currently underway
and reconmendati ons for change are due in
Decenber.

The changes coul d af fect any conponent
of the law or regulation and with the NGFA
proposal could then flow down into determ nation
in the US market. Mst significantly on a

regul atory basis the regul ati on of Canadi an grain
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for the novenent to export positions is done
under the form of a maxi mumrevenue entitl enment.
This is adjusted annually to reflect changes in
i nput prices and al so the vol unmes noved by the
rail ways. There's also significant economc

di fferences between Canada and the US, at the

hi ghest | evel Canada has a population simlar to
California and is the second | argest country in
the world by area. So as result we are very
sparsely popul ated country and very heavily
dependent on primary resource industries |ike

m ning and agricul ture.

W al so have a relatively small
donestic market leading to a nuch nore focused
novenent towards export markets. The ot her
factor is there's a different currency invol ved
and currency fluctuations can correct two types
of variability. This creates changes in the
nmeasured financial report performance of CP and
its entities as reported in Canada dollars, and
t hese changes can also affect the relative

conpetitiveness of Canada and CP based custoners
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that are export oriented. CP's transportation
mx reflects the export orientation of the
Canadi an econony. Simlarly in the context of

t he NGFA proposal there are other market

di fferences focused in the grain area. US
produces eight tines as nuch cereals, coarse
grains and oil seeds than Canada does, but Canada
exports a much hi gher proportion of those.

For exanpl e, Canada exports of these
crops were one-third the value of the US exports
even though there was eight tinme the production
in the US. In our franchise we have about
290, 000 car | oads of Canadian grain, 75 percent
of that noves to export. |In the US we have about
170,000 car | oads of grain and about 28 percent
of that nobves to export, so again you can see the
significant differences.

Finally, there are issues of what |
woul d call reporting integrity and inplications
that CP nade artificially understate the revenue
adequacy of its US operations. CP offers a

highly integrated transportation service in North
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Anerica to its custoners and this high degree of
i ntegration requires centralized nanagenent that
benefits the entire CP network. There are
functions that exist within CP in Canada that
provi des serves to the entire CP network and the
-- both in Canada and the US. CP consistently
uses the services cost nethod in accordance with
the RS treasury regul ations section 1.482-9B to
all ocate head office cost that benefit the US
operations. Canada has simlar tax regulations
requiring such allocations. |In accordance with
our interconpany policies, we have an internal
transfer pricing commttee and we foll ow
consistent practice fromyear to year for the
al l ocati on of these nanagenent services cost. W
have undergone tax audits from both the Canadi an
and US tax authorities to ensure that such
al | ocati ons have been reasonabl e made.

As a check, we also | ook at the
operating ratios of the Canada and US entities to
ensure that they're reasonable and we w ||

i nvestigate any unusual variance and you m ght be
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interested to know that sonewhat simlar to
evi dence that we saw fromthe NGFA in 2013 the
Canadi an entities operating ratio were slightly
hi gher than the US entities operating ratio.
Finally I just want to nmake a brief conment on
the jurisdiction, the proposal by the NGFA is
fundanental ly inconsistent with the statute
authority of the STB and its nandate and the STB
| acks jurisdiction over rail transportation in
Canada. The NGFA proposal ignhores the long term
negative inplications of making US shi pper access
to rate relief dependent on the rail operations
in Canada. |It's an effort to mani pul ate revenue
adequacy and again, we think it is neither |aw ul
or inthe interest of USrail carriers and
shi ppers. Thank you.

CHAIR M LLER: Thank you. Apparently
Vi ce Chairman Begenan didn't hear the part about
turning off your cell phone.

MR, KALICK: Chairman MIler, Vice
Chai rman Begeman, good afternoon. |'m Ted

Kal i ck, senior US regulatory counsel for CN and
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| "' m happy to be here this afternoon. CN joined
in the cooments today of the AAR and a we ago
many of the comments of our rail colleagues with
regard to the inportance of nmintaining sound
rail econom cs as a basis for eval uating
reasonabl eness. CNis here today like CP to
address the question raised by the board inits
notice of quote, whether the board should
consi der the revenues and cost of Canadi an
carriers full system operations to include the
parent conpany and subsi di ari es when determ ni ng
revenue adequacy and rate reasonabl eness
chal | enges of grain shipnents.

Just to nmake a couple of points and a
contextual point at the outset. Echoing M.
Scheib's comments, if the board were to | ook into
revenue adequacy in this situation it is
premature. The board shoul d be | ooking at that
i ssue holistically, not pieceneal and it has
proceedi ng as you well know, set up to do that in
July. There really is nothing you can see from

this record or the testinony that woul d sonehow
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require grain to be treated differently in that
context if the board were to undertake that

exam nation. There was a | egal point to nake
that M. Cdenents just nade and that is that the
board's jurisdiction is confined to
transportation in the United States. Wat does
that nmean really when it cones down to it? It
nmeans that if you were to order apparent Canadi an
conpany to provide reports on its Canadi an
revenues and cost for its Canadi an operations, we
respectfully submt that that woul d exceed the
board's jurisdiction.

But | think the inportant point here
and it may be equally inportant with the
jurisdictional point is not whether you can do
t hat but whether you should do that. And there
t he board has | ooked at that nmatter before in the
ex parte 3634 proceedi ngs sonme years back when it
ordered commonly controlled US railroads to file
consolidated reporting. And the issue was raised
t here, whet her Canadi an i nformati on shoul d be

i ncluded in that report and the board found that
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it would distort results. There really has been
not hi ng since then to ny know edge or anything
presented today that should change that result.
W' d al so suggest that it's really
i nportant for reasons of regul atory econony as
well that it would be inposing different and
overl aying reporting requirenments on carrier
operations regul ated in Canada woul d be an
| nappropriate intrusion into Canadi an rail
regulation. It would wongly inpose regul atory
requi renents fromcost on entities properly
subject to Canada's rail regulatory regine it
could create new regul atory coordi nati on issues
as Canadi an regul ators nust take into account
relief granted by US authorities based on
conditions in Canada and it would in the end, |
think be generally viewed as an attack on the
control of Canadian authorities over entities
delivering rail service within Canada. And as a
matter of regulatory econony we woul d
respectfully submt the board should avoid this

court.
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Lastly, M. Crow ey's presentation
this norning on making the request to include
Canadi an i nformati on had a chart conparing
revenue adequacy determ nations in the US and
ot her information gathered suggested that revenue
| nadequacy carriers in the US, CN, CP. He had
posed woul d be found revenue adequacy if in the
fact the Canadian information was included. |
woul d just point out that in 2013 CN and its US
oper ati ons under GIC Corporation was found
revenue adequacy. Before sone of ny rail
col l eagues tried to | asso nme out of here I would
be rem sed to say that one year's finding of
revenue adequacy is not, in our judgnent a
determ nation that a carrier is revenue adequacy
over the long haul which | think is the way that
t he board should be | ooking at that. And | would
certainly predict in advance that CN and ot her
shi pper interest are likely to di sagree of
revenue adequacy in |ooking at the reasonabl eness
of individual rail rates. But | point that out

that there's really nothing that has been pointed
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out about the board's cal cul ati on today, the way
it cal cul ates revenue adequacy today. The inputs
that go into that calculation that were in error
so that the determ nation of CN was revenue
adequacy in 2013, was an error.

When you contrast that to the risks
and the cost | think that are involved in trying
to add additional information that's post both
jurisdictional and other elenents, that is
anot her reason why the board should not consider
that information or require that kind of
information in its consideration. |1'Il be happy
to try to address any questions you may have.

CHAIR M LLER: Thank you all very
much. So | want to follow up on a couple of the
guestions related to the Canadi an i ssue and, sir,
| appreciate that. W have our hands full trying
to be the regulator on the Anerican side of the
boarder. W certainly don't want to slip over
and try to regulate on the Canadi an side. But
when this issue of revenue adequacy and the

conpani es conme up |'mnot asking this gquestion to
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i nply any determ nati on having been made up in ny
mnd, it's just a curiosity in sone ways as |
think about it. As | understand it, your
conpani es, | nean you operate holistically, is
that correct? | mean, you don't' have an
Anerican operation with personnel and bookkeepi ng
and administration and all of that in the
Canadian, it is one conpany. |Is that a correct
under st andi ng?

MR. CLEMENTS: Yes, for the nost part
t hat woul d be correct.

MR. KALICK: And it's true for CN as
well. Legally we are organized differently.

CHAIR MLLER: So broadly if you're
| ooki ng at whet her or not the conpany is
operating at a revenue adequacy level it feels
| i ke, you know, one has to holistically | ook at
t he conpany?

MR. CLEMENTS: Well, that's why | nmade
t he comments about there are standards in both in
Canada and the US about allocation of comon

costs if you want to call themthat.
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CHAIR MLLER. And how you al |l ocate
fromthe US to versus Canada.

MR. CLEMENTS: Wth financi al
statenents and the R1.

CHAIR M LLER  Uh- huh.

MR. CLEMENTS: Everything that is
consisted with the appropriate gui dance on
transfer pricing and cost that we can allocate to
the different entities. As | said, we have
policies internally, we've been audited by the
tax authorities and we follow a nunber of
standards. So we do report through the results
in the US that are related to the operations in
the US through Soo Line Corporation. That has
all of our US operations incorporated into it and
refl ects sone of those head office costs.

The point 1'd also make is that by
operating as a common entity and then having
t hese cross boarder allocations for tax purposes
and reqgul atory reporting we can be nuch nore
efficient than if we had to have two accounting

depart nents.
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CHAIR M LLER  Oh sure.

MR. CLEMENTS: Two engi neering
departnents and everything else. So those
benefits, because we can create those cost
efficiencies and then allocate a portion of that
t hrough the US gives you a better result than you
woul d ot herwi se with duplication.

CHAIR MLLER: |'mwondering after we
had the presentation this norning from Dr.

Schmal ensee on the TRB proposal and one of the

t hi ngs they focused on was the issue of
arbitration and final offer arbitration | think
Is what he called it and referenced the Canadi an
approach. |If you all have any comment about

t hat .

MR. CLEMENTS: You are probably
t al ki ng about one of the few people in the room
that's participated in a Canadian final offer
arbitration. The biggest thing or the first
thing I'd say is that it's a very contentious
process, in sone ways if you |look at the design

it's baseball style arbitration so there's offer
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A and offer B. The arbitrator in the Canadi an
process does not have the ability to say these
el ements are good fromthis offer and you can't
pi ck and choose and they can't actually find a
m ddl e ground.

CHAIR MLLER  Yes, that's the way |
under st ood from our discussion with TRB, that was
their proposal as well.

MR. CLEMENTS: Yes. \What that does is
creates a lot of tension, a lot of aninosity
where really you should be | ooking at trying to
create a solution between you and the custoner in
a nore, |'d say standard arbitrati on process
where the arbitrator is trying to help the two
parties cone together or find a solution to the
probl em at hand. W' ve said this in the Canadi an
regul atory proceedi ngs, there's no test about
conpetition and market dom nate so you can end up
in final offer arbitration when there's alternate
nodes, conpeting railroads and a nunber of
factors. | think, w thout having some kind of

test, you can create unneeded final offer
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arbitration and then end up in a very aggressive
situation with a custoner. So it's not ideal, if
you want to say that.

MR, KALICK: | would concur with M.
Clenents so | don't have firsthand experience
with participating in an FOA, | certainly know
fromny colleagues the difficulties with
processing. The only thing that | would add is
that at the end of the day there really no
standards attached. You essentially get a one
| i ne answer as to what the rate is and so there's
no expl anation, so there's consistency, it's not
really rooted in any kind of sound econonic
policy. One case may wei gh sonme evi dence one way
but there's no kind of coherent whole into how to
fairly evaluate what the right rate should be.

MR. H TCHCOCK: If | could el aborate
on that froman invest perspective. | listened
carefully to Dr. Schnal ensee this norning. |
understood himand the TRB to be indicating that
anything that would require arbitration of rates

woul d be require legislation and | have to agree
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with that and | believe it took legislation in
Canada to get to that result. So the parties

t oday who have been suggesting that the board

shoul d pursue mandatory arbitration really are
kind of in the forumrespectfully. And then I
woul d |i ke to echo what --

CHAIR MLLER I'msorry, would you
say that again?

MR, H TCHCOCK: It is in the wong
forum they should be up on Capitol H Il if
that's their goal and not asking the board to do
sonething that would require legislation. 1'd
| i ke to echo sonmething that Ted Kalick just said
and that is we heard a lot of arbitration today.
We heard not hing about standards except fromthe
gentl eman from Burlington Northern Santa Fey.
Every arbitration |I've ever been in and |I've been
in alot of conmercial arbitrations in 30 plus
years, has applied sone |egal standards, tort
case, was the defendant negligent, a contract
case, was there a neeting of the m nds, another

contract case, what is the neasure of damages as
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contract |law provides. An arbitration that takes
pl ace without a standard, it's a small clains
court or worse television court. | nmean, you
have to have a standard if you're going to have
any kind of a justified result.

Lastly, that standard needs to be
econonmically based. |If a standard for rates is
not economcally based than it's sinply a natter
of sonebody's judgnent about what's fairer to one
party and fairer to another party. And how one
woul d ever define that concept is beyond ne.

CHAIR MLLER: Well, | guess in sone
ways whether we're using arbitration or not isn't
that what the board' s asked to do in many cases
is to determ ne an econom cally based rate.

MR, H TCHCOCK: Absolutely. The board
is a governnmental authority, it's invested with
the power to transfer from funds fromone private
entity, arailroad to another private entity, the
shipper in the event that it finds that a rate is
not reasonable. So yes, the board does nmke that

determ nation but they're not a private
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arbitrator, they're an official of the
governnent, they're taking a governnment action
subject to review and above all it is subject to
a standard which is today the gold standard for
what is an econonically appropriately rate in the
event of market dom nance and that's standing one
cost.

MR. CLEMENTS: And I'll just add in
t he Canadi an side and final offer arbitration,
M. Htchcock is exactly right, there is no
mandate that there is an econom c basis or any
theory. It is the determ nation of an arbitrary
of what is the nost fair of the two offers with
no ot her guidance or no other input. Cearly
parties will make argunments around econon cs and
other factors is to their proposal, but that is
not a specific mandate of the arbitrator and in
fact one of the other flaws is the arbiters often
don't cone fromthe rail industry, don't have any
under st andi ng and so you can have sonebody naki ng
on a very arbitrary basis a decision in economnc

and regul atory type decision with no expertise or
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understanding of the industry and it can create
consi derabl e i nconsi stency in the decisions that
conme forth because you get in sonewhat what
arbitrator you end up with and what do they think
and what are their individual personal
phi | osophi es.

CHAIR MLLER It's been interesting
t oday t hough how often arbitrati ons conme up and
how many di fferent w tnesses have nentioned it in
one way or another. So | wonder if arbitration
woul d be a feasible decision nmaki ng approach if
one did fully define the standards to be used and
address sone of the issues that you found to be
| acking in the Canada system

MR. CLEMENTS: |'d say that is
reasonable if it's defined, well defined and with
a clear process around it. | think it creates an
opportunity for nore efficiency and | ower cost in
t he process.

CHAIR MLLER. One last thing, | mean
| guess not really a question but one of the

things | found interesting in Dr. Schmal ensee's
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presentation this norning was his point that
arbitration was an informal way to discuss the
| ssues and these nore conplicated i ssue can nore
easily and quickly be dealt in an arbitration
kind of setting, not a |l egal pleading setting and
| probably have a roomfull of attorneys who
m ght all have strong feelings on that, but.

MR. CLEMENTS: Actually, one comrent
| had while into the Canadi an pi ece and maybe at
danger of saying too nmuch. Final offer
arbitration has been around for a little while in
t he Canadi an regul atory environnment. They have
actually added an informal nediation and
arbitration process subsequent to creation of the
regul ati on and | egislation around FOA. Wi ch
wasn't mandated through |egislation and because
of sonme of the concerns | think around FOA and
ot her proceedi ngs, and that has been used a
nunber of tines as well and it's a process
supported by the agency in Canada.

Di spute resolution in the context of

a comrercial disagreenment between the seller and
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a buyer occurs only after there is a failure of
the parties to conme to an agreenent. Now, the
parties may fail to come to an agreenent for nany
di fferent reasons but one reason the parties can
sonetines fail to cone to an agreenent
unfortunately is that one party may see di spute
resolution as a better alternative to a

negoti ated settlenent and therefore | ooks to the
di spute resolution process as a better result.

VI CE CHAIR BEGEMAN. | have a few
guestions. You asked what | was really
interested in with respect to the Canadi an
system So how does the arbitrator get picked?

MR. CLEMENTS: In the final offer
arbitration or the other one?

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN:  Yes.

MR. CLEMENTS: There is subm ssion of
proposal, and | nmay not get this exactly right,
proposed arbitrators by both parties. There is a
common recommendation on arbitrators than there
is usually the agency will pick that or appoint

that person. |If there's a failure to have sone
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comonal ity there's a bit of a negotiation

bet ween the agency and the two parties to try and
deternmne who is going to be the arbitrator for

t he process.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN. How | ong has the
process been in effect for Canada?

MR CLEMENTS: | can't renenber
exactly iteration of Canadian --

VICE CHAIR BEGEMAN: It's been awhile?

MR CLEMENTS: | think it was since
87 but let me confirmthat back to you.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN. Ckay. Between
the two carriers, has it been used agai nst one of
you nore than the other?

MR. CLEMENTS: The process of final
offer arbitration is supposed to be conpletely
confidential, even the specific cases.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN: (h.

MR. CLEMENTS: Yes, so we don't really
know specifically what has happened with a
Canadi an National Case and they don't know

specifically what's happened with us.
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VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN: | under st and.

MR. CLEMENTS: So | can't conment.

VI CE CHAIR BEGEMAN:. There's not a way

to find out how nuch it's utilized?

MR. CLEMENTS: No, unless the agency
woul d share it with yourselves on a confidential
basi s.

VICE CHAIR BEGEMAN. Ch, that's
interesting. |I'lIl stay with you, M. denents,
because of sone the discussions that kicked off
about URCS and subjective cost allocations, et
cetera, when you tal ked about the cost
al | ocati ons between your operations in the US and
Canada, | assunme that they are robustly and
accurately accounted for?

MR. CLEMENTS: There's tax law in
particul ar that prescribes what you can and can't
do and you have a |l ogical and sort of
nmet hodol ogi cal approach that they agree with on
the allocation of those costs. And like |I said
there is audits and we've been subject to tax

audits. So yes, | would say it's alittle nore
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robust .

MR. H TCHCOCK: If | could comment on
t he URCS discussion. URCS got a pretty bad rap
t hi s norni ng.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN: It did.

MR, H TCHCOCK: Let ne first say that
| "' man econom c regul ation | awer but not an
econom st but it seened to ne that Dr.

Schmal ensee and Dr. Gray were not that far apart.
Now, it sounded very nuch like it but what I
understood Dr. Schral ensee to be sayi ng that
there is no econom c construct that you can apply
to a costing systemthat will support the

deci sions that have to be nmade in conming to a
costing system Now, any costing systemtakes a
set of total expenses of an enterprise or an
organi zation and attenpts to break those down
attributing some portion of those cost to certain
activities and that's a very effective way for
managenment to nake eval uati ons of what deci sions
it should be making internally, should they be

produci ng this product, increasing its production
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of another produce, all kinds of industries use
cost accounting for nmanagerial purposes.

So there is, froman econom st
standpoint at Dr. Schmal ensee was | ooking at it,
there is an arbitrariness to anytine that you
take the railroads Rl expenses and start trying
to deci de how shoul d they be all ocated here or
here or here, what part of them should be
consi der capital, what should be consi dered
mai nt enance, what parts should be considered j ust
the very barest of increnmental cost, what shoul d
be sort of a marginal cost in a |longer term
basis. They are judgnental but they're not
wholly arbitrary. They m ght not have an
econom ¢ foundation which is Dr. Schmal ensee's
point. But as Dr. Gray said there is value in
them They are, if not perfect they are
directionally hel pful in maki ng managenent
deci si ons incl udi ng nmaki ng regul at ory deci si ons.
Can any costing systemwhen it involves decisions
about how to all ocate cost be made better,

absol utely, no question about that.
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But and you heard the experts
including M. Crowl ey agree with that | think.
You know, it could be nade better but | don't
think that the two of them were in such violent
di sagreenent as it m ght have appeared because
they were | ooking at URCS fromtwo different
st andpoi nt s.

CHAIR MLLER So | m ght be
addressing this question to sort of the wong
group, maybe this is nore of a shipper group, but
| " ve appreciated Vice Chairman Begenan' s point
that she's nade several tinmes today that really
our purpose here shouldn't be to try to
understand our grain rates too high but rather is
the process available to grain shippers. And |I'm
wonderi ng how you all would address that from
your various perspectives and your railroads
experience?

MR, SCHEIB: 1|'d be happy to take a
crack at it.

VI CE CHAI R BEGEMAN.  Surprise us,

John.

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

320

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

MR, SCHEIB: 1'Il be happy to take a
crack at it but, you know, Pat and | were having
a side bar about M. MNulty's presentation
because, you know, simlar to CSX we serve those
chickens with those sane operations. And we're
not sure we can | eave a better inprint on you
ot her than maybe standi ng up and doing the
chi cken dance. Wth that said --

CHAIR MLLER 1'd like to see it.

MR, SCHEI B: That said, | think

there's a sinple reason why you're not seeing

grain rate cases. |If you look at our highly
confidential filing you will see what our average
R'VCration is and you will see the substance

percentage of our traffic that noves bel ow 180
percent. Add into that fact that the renai nder
of our traffic a very high percentage, which we
woul d be happy to provide to you highly
confidentially, a high percentage of our traffic
noves under confidential contracts. There's just
not a lot of traffic that would even neet the

jurisdictional threshold for you have to rate
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case from us.

Add into that fact all the indirect
conpetition that Pat's tal ked about that's
surprising those rates and I just don't think
you're going to see one, you know, regarding
Nor f ol k Sout her n.

MR. HI TCHCOCK: There was a consi der
amount of criticismof the three benchmark test
and certainly CSX has plenty of criticisnms of the
out cones of those test and the size of the awards
that are available, but the lawis the |aw, we
accept that. | would just |ike to point out that
by nmy count seven traffic | anes have been
chal | enged so far since the board adopted its
three benchmark test. Six of those involve CSX
going from nenory, one involved Union Pacific.
CSX was successful in defending one of those
| anes that was chal | enged because the vast
preponderance of the business had al ready been
noving for some tinme by barge. Direct head to
head conpetition and were successful in having

that di sm ssed of no narket dom nance.
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We | ost the renmai nder of those | anes;
Union Pacific lost its lane so by ny count
| ooki ng at | ane by | ane chal | enges by shi ppers
using the three benchmark test the score is
shi ppers seven, railroads one. Now, if |'ve
m scounted | stand to be corrected but |I'm not
far off I don't believe.

MR. CLEMENTS: In terns of the system
| first would | ook at the CP system and say
conpetition is alive and well. You' ve had a
nunber of people testify that grain gets a truck
before it arrives in an elevator and if you | ook
at the regions of the states that we service
there's conpeting el evator on another system or
et hanol plants and ot her processing that overl ays
the entire production territory that we serve in
the US. So | think you' ve got a strong market
base systemthat is setting the rates across our
network. W haven't put in evidence on the R VC
and we haven't done a recent analysis but, you
know, there's a very strong conpetitive

envi ronnent .
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If there is any opportunity for
I mprovenent, |'ve heard the comment of the very
smal | shi pper and, you know, |'d echo those that,
you know, their perception is their reality and
so there's always opportunity to inprove. And |
think the efficiency and the access and the cost
to expeditiously deal with the conplaints of the
smal | shipper. The |arge shippers are
sophisticated multinationals, they have as nany
resources as any of the railroads and | think
have the capability if there's a concern that
they have with their rates to bring forward
conpl ai nts.

CHAIR MLLER. Anything to add?

MR, KALICK: No, | think I would just
go with sone of M. Scheib's points. There are
forces out there whether the board considers them
or not on rate nmatters. They keep rates at
conpetitive at levels, | think that may be a
reason, you know, why you don't see as many rates
cases as you do. In terns of process, you know,

| think like the rest of the railroads | think
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we're all interested in making a process that
wor ks for you, in essence to serve your
objectives. | think at least a discussion with
regard to final offer arbitration as discussed
this norning by the professor and I don't want to
mangl e his name, but, you know, | think | eaves a
lot to be desired. It's sonmething to |ook into
as certainly based on the Canadi an for a way.
It's not in good process for the reasons we've
di scussed. If there's sonething in between that
can, let's say, inprove the current system and
make it nore accessible | think the industry is
open to considering that.

| think we have to be careful of
arbitration. | knowin terns |like infornal
arbitration as conpared to regular arbitration
| eads a |l ot, you know, to be defined. | think I
can speak for nyself, ny own invol venent at
commercial arbitration with CN, arbitration can
approach full blown litigation, whether we're at
the board or in court. It really depends on the

process and the rights that are involved in
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arbitration, including the right to discovery.
You can have an arbitration proceeding that |asts
a long time and there are fairness reasons to do
that. At least with regard to noving through
arbitration, | think it needs to be studies
pretty carefully.

VI CE CHAIR BEGEMAN:  Wel |, one of the
benefits that all of you have on